550 AR I It 42 JB A3 B i)

‘. \
YII-IAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LTD.
(77 Bl 2 B S R A S A PR A 7D

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
BEEL/ 5% Stock Code:1579

3
ANNUAL REPORT



Definitions

Corporate Information

Five-Year Performance Review

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Report

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Balance Sheet
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EBx

NEER

T FRERRE
EERHEE

BB WA
EEReREEEEHN

EERERARS

e MBImRME

CONTENTS
B &

10
13
14
17
35
42
69

102

146

154

156

157

158

159

2017 Annual Report & [Z 3 &

1




Definitions

B

“AGM"

“Articles of

Association”
“associate(s)”
“Audit Committee”
“Board”

“Chengdu
Yueyihai”

“Chengdu Lease
Agreement”

“China” or “PRC”

“Company”

“Companies
Ordinance”

ESEEERARQA

the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held in Beijing on Friday, 27 April 2018 at 2:00 p.m.
or any adjournment thereof

the articles of association of the Company,
as amended from time to time

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing
Rules

the audit committee of the Board

the board of Directors of the Company

Chengdu Yueyihai Co., Ltd.* (R &R EEEEH
FR A2 F), a limited liability company incorporated in
the PRC on 28 April 2014 and an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

the lease agreement dated 1 December 2015,
as supplemented by a supplemental agreement
dated 5 January 2016, which was entered into
between Chengdu Yueyihai and Sichuan Haidilao
in connection with the lease of a parcel of land
together with the properties and fixtures thereon by
Sichuan Haidilao to Chengdu Yueyihai

the People’s Republic of China and, except where
the context requires, references in this annual
report to the PRC or China excluding Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan

YIHAI INTERNATIONAL HOLDING LTD. (E& % B B
ERREPFRAE]), an exempted company with limited
liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18
October 2013

the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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“Controlling
Shareholders’

“Corporate
Governance
Code”

“Director(s)”

“Financial
Statements”

“Framework Sales
and Purchase
Agreements”

“Group”

“Haidilao
Customized
Products”

“Haidilao Group”

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing
Rules, and unless the context otherwise requires,
refers to Mr. Zhang Yong, the non-executive
Director, Ms. Shu Ping, (the spouse of Mr. Zhang
Yong) and ZYSP YIHAI Ltd

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules

director(s) of the Company

the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 as
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

collectively, the hotpot soup flavouring products
sales agreement dated 18 September 2017 entered
into between Yihai Shanghai and the Joint Venture
in relation to the sales of hotpot soup flavouring
products from Yihai Shanghai and its subsidiaries
to the Joint Venture and the the self-serving
small hotpot products sales agreement dated 18
September 2017 entered into between the Joint
Venture and Yihai Shanghai in relation to the sales
of Small Hotpot Products by the Joint Venture to
Yihai Shanghai and its subsidiaries

the Company and its subsidiaries

the hot pot soup flavoring and Chinese-style
compound condiment products manufactured
using formulas owned by Haidilao Group for use in
its hot pot restaurants

comprises (i) as of the date of this annual report,
Singapore Haidilao and its subsidiaries, the
principal business of which is to operate hot
pot restaurant chain in the PRC and overseas
countries; and (i) for the year ended 31 December
2017, Singapore Haidilao, Sichuan Haidilao and
their respective subsidiaries
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Definitions

B

“Haidilao Retail
Products”

“Haidilao
Warehouse

Storage Service

Agreement”

“HK$” or “HK
dollars” and
“cents”

“Hong Kong”

“Investment
Cooperation
Agreement”

“Jingyuan
Investment”

“Joint Venture”

the retail hot pot soup flavoring, hot pot dipping
sauce and Chinese-style compound condiment
products manufactured by the Group using
formulas the Group owns for display and sale to
consumers in Haidilao Group hot pot restaurants,
which are the same products as those sold by the
Group through independent third-party distributors

warehouse storage service agreement dated 24
June 2016, entered into between Sichuan Haidilao
and Yihai Shanghai, each for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries, Sichuan Haidilao Group agreed to
provide warehousing facilities and related services,
including sorting process management, stock-
taking and other logistics services, to the Group for
products we sell to Haidilao Group

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the
lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
the PRC

the investment cooperation agreement dated 11
July 2017 entered into between Yihai Shanghai and
Xinpai Shanghai in relation to the formation of the
Joint Venture

Jianyang City Jingyuan Investment Co., Ltd.* (f§
BhERRERMRAT), alimited liability company
incorporated in the PRC on 13 March 2009, which
is held as to 68% by Mr. Zhang and Ms. Shu
(the Controlling Shareholders), 32% by Mr. Shi
Yonghong (the non-executive Director) and his wife

Fuhai (Shanghai) Food Technology Co., Ltd.* (B8
(L) ERBHAER2AR), a company incorporated
in the PRC and a 60% owned subsidiary of the
Company

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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“Latest
Practicable
Date”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules

“Macau”

“Master Sales
Agreement”

“Model Code”

“Nomination
Committee”

“Non-competition
Undertaking”

“Prospectus”

“Remuneration
Committee”

“Renminbi” or
“RMB”

“ RSU”

27 March 2018, being the latest practicable date
prior to the printing of this annual report for the
purpose of ascertaining the information contained
herein

13 July 2016, the date on which the Shares were
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the
PRC

the master sales agreement dated 24 June 2016,
entered into among Yihai Shanghai, Sichuan
Haidilao and Singapore Haidilao, each for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries, in relation to
the supply of Haidilao Customized Products and
Haidilao Retail Products by the Group to the
Haidilao Group

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules

the nomination committee of the Board

the non-competition undertaking entered into
between the Company and the Controlling
Shareholders on 25 June 2016

the prospectus issued by the Company on 30 June
2016

the remuneration committee of the Board

Renminbi yuan, the lawful currency of the PRC

the restricted share units granted to RSU
participants pursuant to the RSU Scheme
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Definitions

B

“RSU Scheme”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Shuhai Sales
Agreement”

“Shuhai Supply
Chain”

the RSU scheme approved and adopted by the
Company on 24 February 2016 for the grant of RSUs
to RSU participants, a summary of the principal
terms of which is set forth in the section headed
“Appendix IV — Statutory and General Information
— D. RSU Scheme” of the Prospectus

the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the
Company with nominal value of US$0.00001 each

shareholder(s) of the Company

the sales agreement dated 24 June 2016, which
was entered into among Yihai Shanghai and Shuhai
Supply Chain, each for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, in relation to the sale of hot pot soup
flavoring products, hot pot dipping sauce products
and other compound condiment products by the
Group to Shuhai Supply Chain Group

Shuhai (Beijing) Supply Chain Management Co.,
Ld* (BBt R)MEREEEREMELA), a
limited liability company incorporated in the
PRC on 3 June 2014 and is indirectly held as to
approximately 52.17% by Mr. Zhang Yong and his
associates, 24.652% by Mr. Shi Yonghong and his
wife, and 10.95% by Mr. Gou Yiqun (Nete)

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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“Shuhai Warehouse the Shuhai Warehouse Storages Service

Storage Service
Agreement”

“Sichuan Haidilao”

“Sichuan Haidilao
Group”

“Singapore
Haidilao”

“Small Hotpot
Products”

“Stock Exchange”

Agreement dated 24 June 2016 and entered into
between Shuhai Supply Chain and Yihai Shanghai,
each for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
pursuant to which Shuhai Supply Chain and
its subsidiaries agreed to provide warehousing
facilities and related services, including warehouse
storage, sorting process management, stock-
taking, and other logistics services, to the Group in
connection with storage of our products

Sichuan Haidilao Catering Corporation Ltd.* (I
JIBEHERKRM B R A F), ajoint stock limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on 25
June 2009, or its predecessor, Sichuan Jianyang
Haidilao Catering Co., Ltd.* (I9JI| & &5 1 /8 &K &
ZEEMREE L T), which was incorporated in the
PRC on 16 April 2001. Sichuan Haidilao is directly
held as to approximately 33.5% by Mr. Zhang Yong
and Ms. Shu Ping(the controlling shareholders),
50% by Jingyuan Investment and 16% by Mr. Shi
Yonghong (the non-executive Director) and his wife

Sichuan Haidilao and its subsidiaries

HAI DI LAO HOLDINGS PTE. LTD., a limited liability
company incorporated in Singapore on 1 March
2013 and is indirectly held as to approximately
62.7% by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping (the
controlling shareholders) and 29.7% by Mr. Shi
Yonghong (the non-executive Director) and his wife

the self-serving small hotpot products manufactured
and sold by the Joint Venture

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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Definitions

B

“subsidiary” or
“subsidiaries”

“Supplemental
Master Sales
Agreement”

“Xinpai Shanghai

“Yihai (China)”

“Yihai Shanghai”

“Youdingyou”

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing
Rules

the supplemental master sales agreement dated
18 September 2017 entered into between Sichuan
Haidilao, Singapore Haidilao and Yihai Shanghai, to
regulate the sale of Small Hotpot Products by the
Group to the Haidilao Group

Xinpai (Shanghai) Catering Management Co.,
Ltd.* (¥R (L£8)BREE B R A 7)), a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and
is controlled as to approximately 62.70% by the
Controlling Shareholders of the Company, Mr.
Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping, 29.7%by Mr.
Shi Yonghong (the non-executive Director) and
his wife, and 2% by Mr. Gou Yiqun®°® (the non-
executive Director)

Yihai (China) Food Co., Limited (F&3& (T E) & &
PR/ E]), a company with limited liability incorporated
in Hong Kong on 6 December 2013 and an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Yihai (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd. (F&i% (L&) B mER
‘A 7)), a foreign investment enterprise incorporated
in the PRC on 1 December 2014 and an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Beijing Youdingyou Catering Co., Ltd.* (1t X & &
EE &R M ERADQF), (formerly known as Beijing
Youdingyou Catering Management Co., Ltd.*). a
company with limited liability incorporated in the
PRC on 30 July 2012, which is indirectly held as to
approximately 31.76% by Mr. Zheng Yong and Ms.
Shu Ping, 15.71% by Mr. Shi Yonghong and his
wife and 0.86% by Mr. Gou Yigun®ete)

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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“Youdingyou Sales the sales agreement dated 24 June 2016 and
Agreement” entered into between Youdingyou and Yihai
Shanghai, each for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, pursuant to which we agreed to sell
hot pot soup flavoring products, hot pot dipping
sauce products and other compound condiment
products to Youdingyou for use at spicy mixed
stew restaurants it operates

“ZYSP YIHAI Ltd” a business company with limited liability
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 10
October 2013, one of the Controlling Shareholders

% percentage

Note: Mr. Gou Yiqun has resigned from the post of non-executive Director with
effect from 21 March 2018.
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Corporate Information

DNEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Ms. Dang Chunxiang
Mr. Sun Shengfeng

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Yong

Mr. Gou Yiqun Mote )

Mr. Pan Di

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Ka Chi
Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yau Ka Chi (Chairman)
Mr. Shi Yonghong
Ms. Ye Shujun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Ye Shujun (Chairman)
Mr. Gou Yiqun Mote )
Mr. Qian Mingxing

Note 1: Mr. Guo Yiqun has resigned from the post of non-executive Director
and a member of the remuneration committee with effect from 21
March 2018. Ms. Shu Ping has been appointed as an executive
Director and a member of the remuneration committee with effect from
21 March 2018.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman)

Mr. Qian Mingxing

Ms. Ye Shujun

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Mr. Wong Yat Tung

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Mr. Gou Yiqun Mote2)

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

LEGAL ADVISER

Davis Polk & Wardwell

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Somerley Capital Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

P. O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion
Hibiscus Way

802 West Bay Road

Grand Cayman

KY1 - 1205 Cayman Islands

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

1st and 2nd, Building 6

Songlei Office Building, Heng Song Yuan
Middle Road of South 3rd Ring Road
Fengtai District

Beijing, PRC

Note 2: Mr. Wong Yat Tung became an authorised representative of the
Company with effect from 21 March 2018.
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Corporate Information

DNEEHR

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

18/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

T: +86-10-57423508

E: tzzgx@yihchina.com

WEBSITE

www.yihchina.com

STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1579

5 5 B fF 2 B2 B PR 2 & Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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Five-Year Performance Review

EFEEERRE
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE %G A 2 EIER
INCOME
(RMB’ 000) (AR®FT)
Twelve months ended 31 December
Bit12A31AL12M8A
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017 & 2016 % 20155 20145 20135
Revenue Y9N 1,646,221 1,088,014 847,339 498,231 315,863
Gross Profit E 611,806 416,942 294,233 119,478 69,416
Profit before income tax BRETEREERN 369,080 255,089 166,920 57,156 29,519
Profit for the period R 261,090 186,720 124,547 42510 22,064
Profit attributable to: UTATEGEERNGSE
- Owners of the Company S YNCIE: 2N 260,670 186,720 124 547 42 510 22,064
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL  fRAGEMBERIAER
POSITION
(RMB’000) (AR¥FT)
As at 31 December
#1r12A31A
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2017 % 2016 4 20154 20144 20135
Non-current assets ERBEELE 288,071 165,874 136,089 153,384 134,523
Current assets B EAE 1,518,620 1,257,792 453,275 132,253 90,218
Total Asset EEHR 1,806,691 1,423,666 589,364 285,637 224,71
Equity attributable to owners KRR AEIL#E R
of the company 1,501,389 1,266,205 141,924 45,738 37,686
Total Equity R 1,505,809 1,266,205 141,924 45,738 37,686
Non-current liabilities ERFaELEE = — 186,667 — —
Current liabilities RBaBEsaE 300,882 157,461 260,773 239,899 187,055
Total liabilities BERE 300,882 157,461 447 440 239,899 187,055
Total equity and liabilities EEkaESEE 1,806,691 1,423,666 589,364 285,637 224,741

2017 Annual Report
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EERBESE

ek B kA&
Chairman

EFR

Throughout the year of 2017, the trend of the national economy shifted
from stable to uplifting and performed better than expected, owing to
fast growth in the income of residents, a clear trend of consumption
upgrade, as well as expansion in the consumer goods market. The
catering market maintained steady growth with overall recovery of the
condiment industry. An increasing demand for consumption, a trend
of consumption upgrade and a distinct brand edge, as well as product
innovation and expanding channels and capacity, allowed the Group
to continuously lead the hot pot soup flavoring and Chinese-style
compound condiment industry in terms of rapid growth of its sales
revenue.

In 2017, the Group upgraded its brand and partial packaging image,
developed more featured products, expanded its sales channels.
Additionally, the Group increased productivity, management and
operation efficiency through a series of targeted promotional activities.

Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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In 2017, the Group continued to position its product strategy at
medium to high compound condiment market while diversifying
product lines. By staying market-oriented, the Group focused on
the optimization of research and development and innovation. For
instance, to satisfy the demand in different regional markets, the Group
introduced new products such as spicy fish and enhanced spicy beef
tallow. To adapt to the development and change of diverse channels,
the Group launched the new product series of “self-serving hot pot”
with the joint venture. While ensuring product optimization, upgrading
and innovation, the Group still firmly grasped the development of the
major categories of core products. In 2017, the Group’s hot pot soup
flavoring products accounted for 79.0% of its total revenue.

In 2017, the Group continued to its sales channels. We have
distributors covering 31 provincial regions in China, the Hong Kong,
Macau and Taiwan regions, and 23 overseas countries and regions.
During the year, our management of and interactive communication
with distributors was enhanced. We held a partner summit with the
theme “soul of pot upgraded Chinese-style taste (382384 FEK)”,
a communication meeting with the theme “from distributors to golden-
medal distributors” for the national top 100 distributor brand managers,
and a seminar with the theme “stirring up marketing with content” for
the national top 15 online distributors, to build collaborative and win-
win relationships with the distributors. Through such cooperation with
the distributors, we further extended and expanded the sales terminal
network, which in turn increased our sales efficiency. We continued to
develop our e-commerce sales network, enhance our online marketing
and expand our portfolio of online products. Total online sales revenue
to exceed RMB100 million during the year. Upturn in the catering
industry has enabled us to continually develop third-party catering
channels, and has allowed us to research and provide customized and
specialty products and services for more catering enterprises. As of 31
December 2017, our third-party catering custom-tailored customers
reached a number of 82.

In 2017, the Group enhanced its marketing campaign by organizing
various major promotional activities throughout the year, including
“January Year Start Dinner”, “May Foodie Season” and “October Hot
Pot Festival”, and initiated multi-faceted interactions with consumers
through themed displays, lottery drawing and gift-giving promotions,
etc.
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Chairman’s Statement

EERHESE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

In 2017, we built a new factory in Maanshan to effectively relieve the
growing pressure of consumer demand on supply capacity while
reducing logistics costs. The factory is based in eastern China and
extends to southern China.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In 2017, the Group maintained rapid momentum in its results. The
Group recorded a sales revenue of RMB1,646.2 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of 51.3%; and a net profit of RMB261.1 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 39.9%. The Group’s gross
profit increased by 46.7% from RMB416.9 million in 2016 to RMB611.8
million in 2017, and the gross profit margin decreased from 38.3% in
2016 t0 37.2% in 2017.

OUTLOOK

The catering industry is stabilizing and consumption upgrade is
accelerating. Against such a backdrop, the Group will continue to focus
on the mid/high-end condiment products and relevant markets. The
Group will further increase its market share in the compound condiment
industry by means of innovation in products, broadening of product
types and extending of channels, which would also consolidate our
leadership in the mid/high-end hot pot condiment and Chinese-style
compound condiment products markets. We will continue to study
the condiment products market and keep abreast of consumer trends,
and develop and launch more premium products to enlarge product
portfolio to seek a single hot selling product. We will continue to build
up our sales force with incentives to the sales personnel. To promote
cooperation with distributors for mutual benefits, we will improve our
sales network and sales revenue from third parties. We will further
our online sales efforts by capitalizing on online marketing platforms
and interacting with consumers more actively to increase online sales
revenue. We will continue to expand our third-party catering channels
in which specialized products and services will be provided. While
actively pursuing external expansion, internally, we will continue to
build our in-house quality pool of talents, thus establishing a solid basis
for the Group’s long-term and stable development.

The Group will join hands with all of our colleagues to continue the pace
of innovation, so as to provide higher-quality products to consumers
and customers, thereby creating more value for shareholders.

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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2017 PERFORMANCE REVIEW

In 2017, the national economy was stable with growth that
outperformed expectations. Income of residents increased rapidly with
further transformation and upgrading in consumption, and market size
of consumer products further expanded. The catering market recorded
stable growth, and the overall trend in the condiment industry was
upward and optimistic.

In 2017, the Group’s business mainly focused on product upgrading
and innovation, elaborative marketing, further development of
channels, expansion and optimization of production capabilities. For
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB1,646.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 51.3%.
Net profit amounted to RMB261.1 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 39.9%.

In 2017, the Group continued to enhance the efficiency of terminal
points of sales, diversify the marketing activities, develop low-tier
distribution network and launch new products.

For retail sales to third parties, benefiting from the optimization and
improvement of sales channels in 2016, the extensive and lower
tier of sales channels brought a wider sales terminal network to the
Group, and further facilitated the effective management and refined
establishment of the terminal points of sales. As at 31 December 2017,
the distributors of the Group covered 31 provincial regions and the
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions in China, and 23 overseas
countries and regions.

For sales through e-commerce, the Group continued to reinforce the
development and optimization of e-commerce channels. By launching
new products online, increasing marketing and promotional efforts,
streamlining and regulating the channels, the Group carried out multi-
perspective and comprehensive analysis and reform on its e-commerce
channels to keep up with the latest developments. As at 31 December
2017, the Group owned 5 flagship stores on e-commerce platforms
including Tmall.com and JD.com. The Group’s sales revenue from
e-commerce channels in 2017 amounted to RMB105.9 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 265.2%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

The Group focused on sales to third-party catering enterprises in 2017
as strategic deployment. Benefiting from the experience of serving
the Haidilao Group over the years, the Group had accumulated ample
experience in the PRC catering service industry. Through continuously
reinforcing the provision of diversified and customized products and
services to third-party catering enterprises, the customized customers
of the Group’s third-party catering enterprises participated in various
types of catering services and amounted to 82 as at 31 December
2017, representing a year-on-year increase of 86.4% as compared
to 2016. The sales revenue for 2017 amounted to RMB23.43 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 304.0% as compared to 2016.

In terms of product portfolio, the Group continued to devote its
efforts on improving and upgrading the existing products, as well as
on the research and development and launching of new products,
including optimizing the packaging and formulae of some core
products and the launching of brand new products. During the past
year, products launched successively in the market included spicy red
swamp crawfish (catering pack), clear soup hot pot (catering pack)
and five different flavors of self-serving small hot pot new products.
By optimizing and refreshing existing products together with the
launching of new products, the Group’s products were undoubtedly
better in meeting market demand, and could effectively ease the
problems of insufficient products during the low season. In 2017, the
Company introduced a total of 3 new hot pot soup flavoring products,
5 Chinese-style compound condiment products and 5 Self-serving
small hotpot products. As at 31 December 2017, the Company had a
total of 44 flavoring products, 6 dipping sauce products, 20 Chinese-
style compound condiment products and 5 Self-serving small hotpot
products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Throughout the year of 2017, against the macro backdrop of an overall
stable development trend of the national economy and an overall
optimistic trend in the condiment industry of the PRC, the revenue of
the Group amounted to RMB1,646.2 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 51.3%. Net profit amounted to RMB261.1 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 39.9%.
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Sales Channels

In 2017, in respect of establishing third-party retail channels, the
Group’s focus of operation was on continuous penetration in channels
of lower tiers, reinforcing the efficiency of terminal sales, developing
the methods of terminal sales and expanding the portfolio of third-
party retail products. Benefiting from improvement and optimization
of distribution channels in 2016, as at 31 December 2017, the Group’s
distributors covered 31 provincial regions in China, including all first-
tier cities, the Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions, and 23 overseas
countries and regions. Meanwhile, through the selection and screening
of existing distributors, reinforcing the product launching capability
and efficiency of terminal points of sales, timely capturing the data
of market terminals, manipulating the shelf arrangement of product
display and providing guidance on the methods of terminal sales, the
Group had further improved the refined and in-depth development of
the distributor channels, reinforced the marketing measures and efforts,
enhanced the optimized management of product shelves and boosted
the selling capability of the terminal points of sales.

The Group had further reinforced the management over e-commerce
channels, including mainly the development of multiple consumption
scenarios which could enhance consumers’ loyalty, increase in
promotional activities, expansion on online portfolio of new products,
improvement in the arrangement of product shelves and the
management of order price on network system. While the Group had
mastered the sales and marketing of traditional products, the launching
of a number of brand new self-serving small hot pots in the second-half
of 2017 was the highlight in sales over e-commerce channels. As at 31
December 2017, the Group owned 5 flagship stores on e-commerce
platforms including Tmall.com and JD.com. The Group’s sales revenue
from e-commerce channels in 2017 amounted to RMB105.9 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 265.2%.

Active development of business for third-party catering enterprises was
one of the Group’s key strategic developments, and significant mental
and physical efforts were contributed in 2017 to provide comprehensive
support. Benefiting from the experience of serving the Haidilao Group
over the years, the Group had accumulated ample experience in the
PRC catering service industry. Through continuously reinforcing the
provision of diversified and customized products and services to third-
party catering enterprises, the customized customers of the Group’s
third-party catering enterprises participated in various types of catering
services and amounted to 82 as at 31 December 2017, representing
a year-on-year increase of 86.4% as compared to 2016. The sales
revenue for 2017 amounted to RMB23.43 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 304.0% as compared to 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWED

In terms of sales to related parties (referring to the Haidilao Group and
associated companies), benefiting from the growth of the catering
industry and the hot pot catering consumption market in the PRC, the
Haidilao Group achieved not only stable growth in same store revenue
but also rapid expansion in the number of stores. In 2017, the Group’s
revenue from sales to related parties amounted to RMB915.9 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 51.2% as compared to of
2016.

Products

As urbanization in China became more generalized, the consumption
level of residents continued to rise enabling the continuous upgrading
in product structure, and the consumers’ awareness of the importance
of food safety also strengthened over time. Selecting quality products
with reputable brand recognition and with guaranteed food quality
and safety will be a general development trend in future. As the largest
producer of mid- to high-end hot pot soup flavoring condiments in
China, the Company took the lead in capturing the industry trend,
further strengthened the research and development and structure
upgrading of products, and continued to supply condiment products
which would better meet the needs of consumers.

In 2017, the Group launched new products successively, including
spicy red swamp crawfish (catering pack), clear soup hot pot (catering
pack) and five different flavors of self-serving small hot pot new
products. The development of new products in general was still
surrounding the two key conceptual lines of improving and upgrading
existing products, and developing emerging products to meet market
needs. These would not only enable products to better satisfy market
demand but would also ease the problems of insufficient products
during the low season. Through methods such as the launching of
tasting events and creating thematic promotional activities, terminal
sales were effectively boosted. The Group also communicated with
consumers and promoted its promotional materials by using new social
media (such as WeChat).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The table below sets forth the revenue, sales volume and average
selling price (“ASP”) of the Group by product categories and

distribution channels for the periods as indicated:

EEENWEDS

TREIAFREBASEERERER
REHRESTHEA - HERFHE

B8IE -

Twelve months ended 31 December

HE12R31AL12/8R
2017 2016
20175 2016
Average Average
Selling Selling
Sales  Price per Kg Sales  Price per Kg
Revenue Volume =N Revenue Volume SUND
ON #E FHER 0N #HE TIER
(RMB’000) (Tons) (RMB) (RMB’000) (Tons) (RMB)
(AR#T7) (M)  (AR¥7x) (AR®Tr) (W  (AR%7x)
Hot pot soup flavoring RBRA
Third parties =y 429,921 14,896 289 288,745 9,323 31.0
Related parties By 871,282 31,093 273 583,778 21573 271
Subtotal Nt 1,301,203 46,799 21.8 872,523 30,896 282
Hot pot dipping sauce KRR
Third parties %= 93,924 5,059 18.6 73,856 4,290 17.2
Related parties BEr 281 11 255 104 6 18.8
Subtotal Nt 94,205 5,070 18.6 73,960 4,296 17.2
Chinese-style compound condiment PREAAKR
Third parties =5 142,860 6,007 238 116,351 4,962 23.4
Related parties i 43413 1,908 228 18,194 706 258
Subtotal Nt 186,273 7915 235 134,545 5,668 23.7
Self-serving small hotpot products BMENKBER
Third parties =5 61,341 1,359 451 - - -
Related parties ) 104 2 52,0 — — —
Subtotal Nt 61,445 1,361 451 - — -
Others® Hipo 3,095 872 315 6,986 577 12.1
Total b 1,646,221 62,017 26.5 1,088,014 41,437 26.3
Note: MIsE :
(1) Mainly including the sales of certain products such as golden popcorn (& (1) FEEEHENETER WEBELIR

£ 5 ) and snail rice noodle (1247%5).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

The table below sets forth the absolute value of revenue of the
Company by product categories and as a percentage in the total

revenue of the Company

oL

Twelve months ended 31 December
HZ12A31HL12/@A

TREIFIRBBA R RRERER S
DHBANBHERERRTARANE

2017 2016
2017 % 2016 F

% of % of

Revenue Revenue

RMB’ 000 10N RMB’ 000 HEWA

AREFT BOlE  AR®BTR Btk

Revenue from hot pot soup flavoring K HBEFA 1,301,203 79.0% 872,523 80.2%

Revenue from hot pot dipping sauce NSRBI A 94,205 5.7% 73,960 6.8%

Revenue from Chinese-style FREERERRBA

compound condiment 186,273 11.3% 134,545 12.4%
Revenue from self-serving BINEVN N BERWBA

small hotpot products 61,445 3.7% — 0.0%

Other revenue HeWA 3,095 0.3% 6,986 0.6%

Total revenue FAI PN 1,646,221 100.0% 1,088,014 100.0%

In 2017, the three major product categories of the Group, namely
hot pot soup flavoring, hot pot dipping sauce and Chinese-style
compound condiment, increased as compared to 2016. In 2017, the
Group introduced a total of 3 new hot pot soup flavoring products, 5
new Chinese-style compound condiment products and 5 self-serving
small hotpot products. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a
total of 44 flavoring products, 6 dipping sauce products, 20 Chinese-
style compound condiment products and 5 self-serving small hotpot
products.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the 12 months ended 31 December 2017, the revenue of the Group
increased by 51.3% from RMB1,088.0 million for the 12 months ended
31 December 2016 to RMB1,646.2 million for the same period in 2017.
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Revenue by product

EEENWEDS

BEMEZHBA

Twelve months ended 31 December
HZ12A31HL12/@A

2017 2016
20174 2016 FF
% of hot pot % of hot pot
soup soup
Revenue flavoring Revenue flavoring
LON revenue A revenue
(RMB’000) {&KEBER  (RMB'000) fhASRIER
(AREFRT) BANESE (ARBTRT) WABSH
Hot pot soup flavoring revenue KEBIERIN
Revenue from third parties REE=FWA 429,921 33.0% 288,745 33.1%
Revenue from related parties REBEHHRA 871,282 67.0% 583,778 66.9%
Total revenue from hot pot soup KSR A AR
flavoring products 1,301,203 100.0% 872,523 100.0%

Revenue from hot pot soup flavoring products increased by 49.1%
from RMB872.5 million for the 12 months ended 31 December 2016 to
RMB1,301.2 million for the same period in 2017, accounting for 79.0%
of the revenue for the 12 months ended 31 December 2017. Of these,
revenue from sales of hot pot soup flavoring products to related parties
increased by 49.2%, while revenue from sales of hot pot soup flavoring
products to third parties increased by 48.9%. The increase in revenue
from sales of hot pot soup flavoring products to related parties was
mainly due to steady growth in the same store revenue of Haidilao,
an increase in the number of Haidilao restaurants and the effect of
an increase in the prices of products sold to certain related parties in
March 2017 due to cost factors of the Group. With further improvement
in the refining and penetration of third party sales channels by the
Group in 2017, the selling capability of terminal points of sales had
increased, the launching of new products received a certain level
of market recognition, and the revenue of sales from third parties
recorded remarkable rapid growth.
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Twelve months ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLE12/ER

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 F
% of hot pot % of hot pot
dipping dipping
Revenue sauce Revenue sauce
[ON revenue A revenue
(RMB’000) ffhksAEER  (RMB'000) {4 ASBEER
(NR#Fx) WAERE (AR¥TR) WAL
Hot pot dipping sauce revenue K EBEERIIN
Revenue from third parties REE=AWA 93,924 99.7% 73,856 99.9%
Revenue from related parties REBETBRA 281 0.3% 104 0.1%
Total revenue from hot pot dipping KEBEERE AN
sauce products 94,205 100.0% 73,960 100.0%

Revenue from hot pot dipping sauce products increased by 27.3%
from RMB74.0 million for the 12 months ended 31 December 2016 to
RMB94.2 million for the same period in 2017, accounting for 5.7% of
the revenue for the 12 months ended 31 December 2017. Of these,
revenue from sales of hot pot dipping sauce products to related parties
increased by 170.0%, while revenue from sales of hot pot dipping
sauce products to third parties increased by 27.2%. Revenue from
sales of hot pot dipping sauce products of the Group is primarily
derived from sales to third parties, the rapid growth of which was
mainly attributable to the market recognition of the four dipping sauce
products on which the Group has focused its marketing efforts. This
had driven the increased sales of hot pot dipping sauce products in
2017.
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Twelve months ended 31 December
#Z12A31H1L1218AR

2017 2016
2017 & 2016 F
% of % of
Chinese- Chinese-
style style
compound compound
condiment condiment
Revenue revenue Revenue revenue
WA EHREE A =
(RMB’000) EELON (RMB’000) E&SF®RA
(AR#F 1) Botk (ARETT) BO
Chinese-style compound P8 S AR AN
condiment revenue
Revenue from third parties REAE=AWA 142,860 76.7% 116,351 86.5%
Revenue from related parties RE R WA 43,413 23.3% 18,194 13.5%
Total revenue from Chinese-style I8 AR B
compound condiment products 186,273 100.0% 134,545 100.0%

Revenue from Chinese-style compound condiment products
increased by 38.5% from RMB134.5 million for the 12 months ended
31 December 2016 to RMB186.3 million for the same period in
2017, accounting for 11.3% of the revenue for the 12 months ended
31 December 2017. Of these, revenue from sales of Chinese-style
compound condiment products to related parties increased by 138.6%,
while revenue from sales of Chinese-style compound condiment
products to third parties increased by 22.8%.

In respect of sales to related parties, the Group carried out cooperation
with certain catering customers in the Shuhai Supply Chain to develop
new drivers of revenue growth. The Group introduced several Chinese-
style compound condiment products in 2017 to complement with
the sales of existing improved products of Chinese-style compound
condiment, which has driven the increase in revenue from sales of
Chinese-style compound condiment products to third parties.

PXEESFARRAESRABEBZE2016F
12A31AETZEANARYK13458
Bt N3ss%nE2017EBEH M AR
¥186.3E Bt 15 HL £2017F 128
S1THLE+ZEAWAN11.3% HF -
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Twelve months ended 31 December

BZE12A31HIL12{8R
2017 2016
20175 20166
% of % of
Self-serving Self-serving
small hotpot small hotpot
Revenue products Revenue products
0N revenue WA revenue

(RMB’000) 1& & fn /X 58
(AR¥Fr) ERMABERH

(RMB’000) 14 B &/ A 4
(AR¥TR) ERBABSH

Self-serving small hotpot products revenue B i/ X 852 @A

Revenue from third parties KEE=FWA 61,341 99.8% — —
Revenue from related parties REBEAWA 104 0.2% — —
Total revenue from self-serving ERIEYW ST 5EON

small hotpot products 61,445 100% — —

Self-serving small hotpot products is a new category of the Group’s
products in 2017, the revenue from which accounted for 3.7% of total

revenue for the twelve months ended 31 December 2017.

Revenue by Distribution Network

BMMENRBERE2017TFERAEFBHHN
ERmE HREAGEEEZE2017F12A

S1HIETZEBRBERARS.7% °

BREHARE D HBA

Twelve months ended 31 December
HZ12A31HIL12/@RA

2017 2016
2017 % 2016 F
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
[ ON revenue A revenue
(RMB'000)  f5#KA  (RVMB000)  f54UA
(ANR#T ) Bolk (AR#Tr) Ot
Related-party customers HEAER
Haidilao Group and its affiliates BRESEREEE AR 915,911 55.6% 605,728 55.70%
Third-party customers E=HER
Distributors FE 5] 587,076 35.7% 442,358 40.70%
E-commerce ER 105,942 6.4% 28,986 2.70%
Others Hit
Third-party catering companies F=REMLE 23,434 1.4% 5,836 0.50%
One-off sales events —REHETE 13,858 0.9% 5,106 0.40%
Total revenue FAl PN 1,646,221 100.0% 1,088,014 100.00%
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Benefiting from the upgrade of and growth in consumption of hot pot
catering, Haidilao maintained stable rapid growth in both the number
of restaurants and the same store revenue. The Group’s sales revenue
from sales to related parties, which mainly represents sales to the
Haidilao Group, amounted to RMB915.9 million in 2017, representing
an increase of 51.2% as compared to 2016.

With further enhanced optimization of third-party sales channels,
boosted sales capability of terminal sales points and continuous launch
of premium new products of the Group on 2017, sales revenue of third-
party manufacturers was significantly increased. Sales revenue from
sales to distributors was RMB587.1 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 32.7%; sales revenue from e-commerce channels
was RMB105.9 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
265.5%; sales revenue from third-party catering was RMB23.4 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 301.5% from 2016.

Revenue by Geographic Region

The table below presents the revenue of the Company by geographic
region for the periods indicated:

EEENWEDS

SENPEAXBEGE ST R HEIT
R BERBESNEBE2017TFEHESR
BR -EWEMEEE BERR/EEE
BREFBEREKR - AE®E2017 F @
BHS (EEEOSREEBEE)HE
HEERABARKII5.9FET » F
BE51.2% °

BEAEBFE2017TFHE=ZFHEEER
EREMREIENE—SPEE  RirE
HEERNBUER  BERIMTE
WH 2017EE=FHEEWRABLLEE
ESRER HARKEHHEENHEE
WABARKESS7T1EET RLLER
32.7% ; EFRENHEERABARYE
1059 BBt RIER265.5% ; 5=
FEVHEHERAARK2345E T &
2016 FEILL IR 301.5% -

Rt & 5 K WA

TERFIR T 750 B) B BT 7R HA ) A st 450 )
D EIA

Twelve months ended 31 December

HZ12A31HL12MEA

2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 F

% of total % of total

[N revenue A revenue

(RMB’000) G (RMB’000) LT 0N

(NE¥F ) Balt (AR®Tn) Btk

North China® Ec (el 874,665 53.2% 593,427 54.60%

South China® RO 715,674 43.4% 473,799 43.50%

Overseas markets BTS 55,882 3.4% 20,788 1.90%

Total g 1,646,221 100.0% 1,088,014 100.00%
Note: FFEE -

(@) Includes Heilongjiang, Jilin, Liaoning, Inner Mongolia, Beijing, Tianjin,
Hebei, Shandong, Shanxi, Henan, Ningxia, Shanxi, Gansu, Qinghai,

Xinjiang and Tibet.

(8) Includes Jiangsu, Shanghai, Zhejiang, Anhui, Jiangxi, Fujian, Hubei,
Hunan, Guangdong, Chongging, Guizhou, Guangxi, Sichuan, Yunnan and

Hainan.

(2 BEBEI -EN EE -RELH -1
= KFE e - R - W - AR -
2 -PBA--HE FE FERA
ﬁo

B BIEI&%- LE I Z#®- - IfA-
BE-HL HE - BER - BEE- B
M- Erm - W) - EEKIEE -
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Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales, including raw materials, employee benefit
expenses, depreciation and amortization and utilities increased by
54.1% from RMB671.1 million for the 12 months ended 31 December
2016 to RMB1,034.4 million for the same period in 2017.

The overall unit cost of raw materials increased significantly in 2017
compared to the same period of 2016 mainly indicated that the unit
price of soybean oil, pepper, chili, and packaging materials increased

significantly.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

HEME

AEBPWHEERT(BREEME - EER
FEX - TERBHEEAREX)HEZE
2016 F 12 A31HLETZAAMARY
6711 H B T N54.1% £ 2017 F [E Hf
MARM1,0344BHET °

2017 FEEMRHAR BN N A8 2016 F[E
HERBELH  TEBEAXTH - B -
B BEM PRI EE L FREEE -

EFRENE

Twelve months ended 31 December
HZ12A31HL12/@A

2017 2016
2017 % 2016 F

Gross profit Gross profit

Gross profit margin  Gross profit margin

ZH EHE 7 EHE

RMB’000 % RMB’ 000 %

ARET R % ARMTR %

Hot pot soup flavoring products KBEBER 471,003 36.2% 328,037 37.6%

Third parties F= 227,928 53.0% 161,832 56.0%

Related parties kel 243,075 27.9% 166,205 28.5%

Hot pot dipping sauce products KBERER 38,072 40.4% 25,381 34.3%

Third parties E= 37,931 40.4% 25,338 34.3%

Related parties )yl 141 50.1% 43 41.4%
Chinese-style compound

condiment products PRE AR 79,157 42.5% 63,078 46.9%

Third parties E=Fh 66,649 46.7% 56,282 48.4%

Related parties )y 12,508 28.8% 6,796 37.4%

Self-serving small hotpot products B g KR E & 21,260 34.6% — —

Third parties g= 21,217 34.6% — —

Related parties )iyl 43 41.6% — —

Others HE 2,312 74.7% 446 6.4%

Total st 611,804 37.2% 416,942 38.3%
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The Group’s gross profit increased by 46.7% from RMB416.9 million
for the year of 2016 to RMB611.8 million for the year of 2017, while
the gross profit margin decreased slightly from 38.3% for the year of
2016 to 37.2% for the year of 2017. The slight decrease is due to: 1)
overall cost pressure; third-party catering business enlarged during
2017, whose gross margin is much lower than retail sales; and 3) some
distributors select to have sales rebate replenishment rather than have
expense subsidies from the Group.

Distribution Expenses

The Group’s distribution expenses increased by 28.7% from RMB127.9
million for the year of 2016 to RMB164.6 million for the year of 2017.
The Group’s distribution expenses as a percentage of the Group’s
revenue decreased from 11.8% for 2016 to 10.0% for the year of 2017.
The decrease in distribution expenses was mainly because some
distributors select to request stock replenishment with expense subsidy
in the channel.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 41.9% from
RMB53.8 million for the year of 2016 to RMB76.4 million for the year
of 2017. The Group’s administrative expenses as a percentage of the
Group’s revenue decreased from 4.9% for 2016 to 4.6% for the year of
2017, with relatively stable ratio of administrative expense.

Other Incomes and Gains

The Group’s other incomes and gains-net increased by 103.3% from
RMB21.5 million for the year of 2016 to RMB43.7 million for the year of
2017, mainly due to government grants received by the Group.

Finance loss - net

The Group’s finance income-net decreased by 234.7% from RMB33.7
million for the year of 2016 to a finance loss-net of RMB45.4 million for
the year of 2017, mainly due to exchange loss caused by depreciation
of Hong Kong dollar.
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Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing, the Group’s profit before tax increased by
44.7% from RMB255.1 million for the year of 2016 to RMB369.1 million
for the year of 2017.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense increased by 57.9% from RMB68.4
million for the year of 2016 to RMB108.0 million for the year of 2017.
The effective tax rate increased from 26.8% for the year of 2016 to
29.3% for the year of 2017, mainly due to non-tax deductible exchange
loss for the year.

Net profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, net profit of the Group increased by 39.9%
from RMB186.7 million for the year of 2016 to RMB260.7 million for
the year of 2017. Basic earnings per share increased from RMB0.234
for the year of 2016 to RMBO0.269 for the year of 2017 and net profit
margin decreased from 17.2% for the year of 2016 to 15.9% for the
year of 2017.

Capital Liquidity and Financial Resources

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s business
was mainly funded by the cash generated from its operation. The Group
intended to apply internal resources, income derived from organic and
sustainable development for the purpose of funding its expansion and
business operation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
primarily denominated in RMB and HK dollars and, to a less extent, in
US dollars. Its cash and cash equivalents amounted to approximately
RMB1,130.2 million (31 December 2016: RMB1,022.0 million).
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Asset-liability Ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s asset-liability ratio(4) was 16.7%
(31 December 2016: 11.1%). Such increase was mainly due to increase
in trade payables, advance from customers and other tax payable. The
Group did not have any bank borrowings.

Note:

(4) The asset-liability ratio is calculated by dividing total liabilities by total
assets at the end of each financial period.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories consist primarily of raw materials, work-in-
progress and finished goods. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
inventories of approximately RMB147.6 million (31 December 2016:
RMB130.5 million). The turnover days of inventories decreased from
63.4 days for the year ended 31 December 2016 to 49.1 days for the
twelve months ended 31 December 2017. The decrease in the turnover
days of inventories was mainly due to the fact that the Group increased
its control over the efficiency of inventories in 2017.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables represent amounts due from customers in respect of
sales of goods in the ordinary course of business. As at 31 December
2017, we had trade receivables of approximately RMB131.5 million
(31 December 2016: RMB67.1 million). The change was mainly due to
an increase in sales by the Group to related parties and certain third
parties (such as customized catering products) at the end of 2017. The
turnover days of trade receivables increased slightly from 21.8 days for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to 22.0 days for the twelve months
ended 31 December 2017.

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. As at
31 December 2017, we had trade payables of approximately RMB136.6
million (31 December 2016: RMB73.3 million), which was due to the
effects of low and peak seasons for production and sales and the
seasonal procurement cycle. The turnover days of trade payables
increased from 31.2 days for the year ended 31 December 2016 to 37.0
days for the twelve months ended 31 December 2017.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Company did not have any contingent
liabilities.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Company did not charge any fixed assets
as securities for borrowings.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, the Company did not have any bank
borrowings.

Debt-to-equity Ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s debt-to-equity(5) was zero.

Note (5):  Debt-to-equity ratio is calculated by dividing total debt by total

equity. Total debt is defined as including interest-bearing liabilities
which are not incurred during the routine process of business.

Foreign Exchange Risk and Hedging

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transaction
denominated and settled in RMB. However, the Group has certain cash
denominated in HKD and USD, which is exposed to foreign currency
exchange risks. The Group has not hedged its foreign currency
exchange risks, but will closely monitor the exposure and will take
measures when necessary to make sure the foreign exchange risks are
manageable.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 1,919 employees
(including temporary workers), comprising of 1,370 staffs for
production, 334 staffs for marketing and 215 staffs for administration
and management functions respectively.

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s incurred
total staff costs (including salaries, wages, allowance, benefits and
equity incentive plan costs) of RMB183.8 million.
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Material Acquisitions and Disposals

On 11 July 2017, Yihai (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd.* (& LR mAER D
7]) (“Yihai Shanghai”) and Xinpai (Shanghai) Catering Management Co.,
Ltd.* (3R BB REmMEEABRAT) (“Xinpai Shanghai”) entered into the
Investment Cooperation Agreement pursuant to which Yihai Shanghai
and Xinpai Shanghai will form the Joint Venture in the PRC to engage in
the manufacture and sales of self-serving small hotpot products. Upon
the formation of the Joint Venture, Yihai Shanghai and Xinpai Shanghai
will be interested in 60% and 40% of the registered capital of the Joint
Venture, respectively.

Xinpai Shanghai is controlled as to approximately 62.70% interest by
the controlling shareholders of the Company, Mr. Zhang Yong and
Ms. Shu Ping, and is therefore a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the formation of the Joint Venture constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules

FUTURE PROSPECT

Industry and Business Outlook

In 2017, the national economy maintained steady development
in general. The concept of consumption upgrade was constantly
strengthened and the catering industry remained stable. The overall
trend of the PRC condiment industry was positive. Through organic
growth and external development, the Group will continue to optimize
and deepen sales channels actively, enhance terminal sales capacity,
expand the product mix and develop new business models, so as
to constantly enhance the market share and industry position of the
Group.

In terms of product research and development, the Group will not only
continue to upgrade and improve existing products, constantly try and
put efforts in supplementing and broadening existing product types,
but also continue to develop diversified products of new tastes and
concepts, expand the existing business, supplement diversified dining
scenarios, stimulate and attract more consumption groups by following
changes in market trend.

In terms of the establishment of channels, through the tidying and
cherry-picking of channels in 2017, in 2018, the Group will further put
efforts in the establishment of channels, expand the penetration rate
of channels, introduce new retail ideas and at the same time expand
the construction of catering channels for third-party manufacturers
on the basis of ongoing expansion of retail channels of third-party
manufacturers.
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In terms of terminal sales, the Group will continue to further enhance
optimized shelf management, improve the display of basic shelves,
strengthen the flexibility and effectiveness of tasting events and
promotion, and intensively explore the means and methods of
improving terminal sales capacity and efficiency.

Material Investments and Prospect

In order to ease the increasing pressure from production capacity
utilization rate, the Group mainly adopted three measures in 2017.

Firstly, continuing the construction of the Bazhou Project in Hebei. The
total investment amount of the Group’s Bazhou Project is expected
to be RMB300 million. Phase | is expected to be completed and put
into operation at the end of 2018, while Phase Il is expected to be
completed and put into use in 2020. It is expected that Phase | will
provide a production capacity of 35,000 tons. The Bazhou Production
Base not only effectively increases the Group’s existing production
capacity, but also optimizes the Group’s product portfolio by effectively
expanding the production lines for new products, and it can maximise
the upgrade to the Group’s storage facilities. The project is located
in the middle of Northern China, which enables the Group to better
control and manage logistics costs. As of 31 December 2017, the
construction of the Bazhou Production Base was still steadily carried
out as scheduled.

Secondly, a new production line was installed in the existing factory in
Chengdu, Sichuan. The new production line in the factory in Chengdu
was put into production in the first half of 2017, and timely provided
additional production capacity of approximately 3,000 tons to the
Group, which effectively eased the existing production pressure.

Thirdly, the new conclusion for construction of the Ma An Shan project.
The Group entered into agreements with the local government of Ma
An Sha in Anhui. The Group can install new production lines in the
factory to be leased in order to release new production capacity, so as
to ease the pressure from sharp increase in the demand for production
capacity during peak seasons. As Ma An Shan is in Eastern China, it
also helps the Group better control and manage logistics costs. As of
31 December 2017, the Maanshan Production Base has started trial
production.

Future Plans for Material Investments

The Group will continue to extensively identify potential strategic
investment opportunities and continuously seek to acquire potential
high-quality target businesses that create synergies for the Group
in relation to aspects including product research and development,
product portfolio, channel expansion or cost control.
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Ms. Dang Chunxiang (¥ % &), aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director, the chief executive officer and general manager of the
Company on 7 March 2016. She has been a Director since December
2015 and is primarily responsible for the overall management of the
Company, implementation of the decisions of the Board. Ms. Dang has
been the general manager of Yihai Shanghai since December 2015.
Prior to this, Ms. Dang worked as a sales manager of Kebao Boloni
Home Furnishing Co. Ltd. (RIE#E/&EREHGRAA) from August 1998
to April 2002. From May 2002 to September 2008, she joined Beijing
Yuanzhou Decoration Co., Ltd. (b=t MEEBR A F]) as a manager
of the kitchen cabinet department and was later promoted to director of
the home furnishing management department. Ms. Dang was the vice
general manager of Huawei Leren (Beijing) Trading Co., Ltd. (FEE£4{=
() E 5 B R 2 7)), a company engaging in construction materials
trading from January 2009 to November 2010. Ms. Dang then joined
Sichuan Haidilao and served as the head of the operations department
from January 2011 to December 2014. Ms. Dang served as the head
of the operations department and a standing deputy general manager
of Yihai Shanghai from December 2014 to January 2015 and from
January 2015 to December 2015, respectively. Ms. Dang completed
her graduate study in business administration at Renmin University of
China (FEI AR XE) in May 2010, and completed EMBA professional
programme at Guanghua School of Management in July 2017 .

Mr. Sun Shengfeng (% 51£), aged 38, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief financial officer on 7 March 2016. He is primarily
responsible for overseeing matters relating to the financial, investment
and risk management of the Company, including budgeting, disclosure
and reporting. Mr. Sun has also served as the chief financial officer
of Yihai Shanghai since August 2015. Mr. Sun served as the head of
finance in Xi’an Yingiao Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (7 ZRiBE YR AR
‘A #)) from September 2003 to August 2007. He joined Sichuan Haidilao
in September 2007 and has held various positions successively: he
worked as assistant to the chief financial officer from September 2007
to November 2011, the chief accountant from November 2011 to
December 2012, deputy head of the finance management department
from December 2012 to August 2013, and deputy head of the asset
management department from August 2013 to August 2015. Mr. Sun
passed the self-taught higher education examination for undergraduate
study in business administration with Xi’an University of Technology
(FAZIE T KE) and obtained a graduation certificate in June 2009. He
completed his graduate study in business administration at Tsinghua
University in September 2010. He was accredited as an accountant by
the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China (FE AR
FET B4 BB ) in May 2005.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shi Yonghong (i 7k %), aged 48, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company on 7 March 2016 and was appointed
as the Chairman of the Company on 14 November 2017. Mr. Shi is one
of the founders of the Haidilao Group and has over 21 years of food
industry and management experience within the Haidilao Group. He
has been a Director since December 2015 and is primarily responsible
for participating in making major decisions for the Company. Mr. Shi
has held various positions at Sichuan Haidilao since April 1994. Mr. Shi
was the vice general manager at Sichuan Haidilao between April 1994
and March 2001, before assuming the role of supervisor at Sichuan
Haidilao between April 2001 and June 2009. Since July 2009, Mr.
Shi has been a director at Sichuan Haidilao. Mr. Shi also serves as
a director of associates of the Company’s Controlling Shareholders.
Mr. Shi completed his study in mechanics at Sichuan Kongfen Group
Technical School (F9)I1Z2 5 T2 ) in June 1988.

Mr. Zhang Yong (5R &), aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 7 March 2016. Mr. Zhang is one of the founders of the
Haidilao Group and has over 21 years of food industry and management
experience within the Haidilao Group. He has been a Director since
December 2015 and is primarily responsible for participating in making
major decisions for the Company. Mr. Zhang served as the general
manager of Sichuan Haidilao from April 1994 to March 2001. Between
April 2001 and June 2009, Mr. Zhang served as both the executive
director and the general manager of Sichuan Haidilao. Since July
2009, Mr. Zhang has served as the director and chairman of Sichuan
Haidilao. Mr. Zhang also serves as a director and member of senior
management of associates of the Company’s Controlling Shareholders.
Mr. Zhang completed the executive master of business administration
program and completed the finance master of business administration
program from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business (f;IE£x)
in October 2011 and August 2012, respectively.
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Mr. Gou Yiqun (%18:8f), aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 7 March 2016. Mr. Gou was a Chairman
of the Company during the period from 7 March 2016 to 14 November
2017. Mr. Gou has over 17 years of food industry and management
experience within the Haidilao Group. He has been a Director
since October 2013. He is primarily responsible for formulating the
Company’s corporate and business strategies and participating in the
decision making for the Company’s strategic marketing projects and
other major decisions. Mr. Gou has also served as the chairman of
Yihai (China) since December 2013. Prior to this, Mr. Gou worked as
a teacher at Xi’an University of Finance and Economics (7 & B & &
B) from July 1994 to January 2000. Mr. Gou joined Haidilao Group
in January 2000 and has held various positions successively after
joining Haidilao Group. Mr. Gou was the financial officer of Sichuan
Haidilao from December 2001 to June 2009, and has held the position
of director of Sichuan Haidilao since July 2009. Between July 2009 and
December 2014, Mr. Gou was also Sichuan Haidilao’s chief financial
officer and vice general manager. Mr. Gou also serves as a director
and member of senior management of associates of the Company’s
Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Gou completed his study in commodity
business at Shaanxi Commerce College (Pt 78 75 £ E & 2 ) in July
1993. He received an executive master of business administration
degree from Renmin University of China (FEBIARKXE) in June 2010.
Mr. Guo Yiqun has resigned from the post of non-executive Director
and a member of the remuneration committee with effect from 21
March 2018.

Mr. Pan Di (;&#), aged 36, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 7 March 2016. Mr. Pan has been a Director since December
2015 and is primarily responsible for participating in making major
decisions for the Company. Since January 2010, Mr. Pan has served
at Greenwoods Private Equity Funds (5 #& g # &% & E €),now as
Managing Director. He was an attorney with the securities department
of King & Wood Mallesons in Shanghai from January 2007 to
December 2009. Since September 2015, Mr. Pan has been a director
at Handu Yishe Electronics and Commerce Group Holdings Company
Limited (B X EEFEH K EBE R M B R A F) (stock code: 838711),
and since March 2016, he has been a director at Hangzhou Taofen8
Internet Technology Company Limited (F/NE30 B4 &R AMTARBD B R A
7]) (stock code: 834805), both being enterprises listed on the National
Equities Exchange And Quotations Co., Ltd. Mr. Pan also serves as a
director of an associate of the Company’s Controlling Shareholders.
Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from Fudan University
in July 2004. He passed the National Judicial Exam in the PRC in
February 2008.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yau Ka Chi (Ef 5 B5), aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 20 June 2016. Mr. Yau has
over 31 years of professional accounting experience including 20 years
in serving China enterprises. He had worked for Ernst & Young for over
20 years in its Hong Kong, Toronto and Beijing offices with primary
focus in providing professional services in accounting and audit, initial
public offering, and corporate restructuring before retiring in September
2015. During his professional career with Ernst & Young, Mr. Yau was
appointed as the Professional Practice Director of Greater China from
July 2007 to June 2009, the Assurance Leader for China North Region
from July 2010 to June 2014, the Oil & Gas Industry Leader of Greater
China from May 2012 to June 2015 and the Assurance Leader of the
Energy & Resources Markets Segment of Greater China from July
2013 to June 2015. Mr. Yau is an independent non-executive director
of China Mengniu Dairy Company Limited (F Bl S 4+ A ¥ B R 2 7)
(Stock code: 2319) since October 2016 and China Power International
Development Limited (P EIE H BB R B R 2 7)) (Stock code: 2380)
since December 2016, both companies listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Yau holds a professional
diploma in company secretaryship and administration from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the lllinois Certified Public Accountants Society and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yau also holds
a certified public accountant license issued by the lllinois Department
of Financial and Professional Regulation, the United States.

Mr. Qian Mingxing (££F £), aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 June 2016. He is primarily responsible for
participating in making major decisions for the Company and advising
on issues relating to corporate governance, nomination of Directors
and remuneration of Directors and senior management. Mr. Qian has
been a professor at Peking University Law School (1t AL pR)
since August 1999. He worked as a teaching assistant and a lecturer of
the law department at Peking University from August 1986 to August
1988 and August 1988 to August 1993, respectively. From August
1993 to August 1999, Mr. Qian was an associate professor at Peking
University Law School. Mr. Qian obtained a bachelor’s degree in law
and a master’s degree in law from Peking University in July 1983 and
July 1986, respectively. In June 2001, Mr. Qian obtained a doctoral
degree of laws from Peking University.
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Ms. Ye Shujun (% 5 &), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 June 2016. She is primarily responsible
for participating in making major decisions for the Company and
advising on issues relating to corporate governance, remuneration of
Directors and senior management, nomination of Directors and audit.
Ms. Ye has been an independent director of Beijing New Universal
Science and Technology Co., Ltd (A B B HFH TR FERBER A7)
(stock code: 300472) since June 2011, and an independent director of
Anhui Guozhen Environment Protection Technology Joint Stock Co.,
Limited (% % Bl 18 3R {R &7 6 B % IR 19 B PR 2 §]) (stock code: 300388)
since August 2016, both being companies listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (& ¥l 3 % 3 5 Ff). Ms. Ye has been serving as
independent director of Anhui Telit Science and Technology Co., Ltd.
(stock code:831918), a company listed on National Equities Exchange
and Quotation System, since July 2017, and as independent director
of Wuhu Fuchun Dye And Weave Co., Ltd. (stock code: 870898), a
company listed on the New Third Board, since November 2017. Ms. Ye
also served as lecturer, associate professor and professor successively
at the economic management college of Beijing Jiaotong University (it
W X B K 2) since December 1994. Ms. Ye completed a program in
international accounting and international tax at Xiamen University in
January 1990. Ms. Ye then obtained a master’s degree in economics
from Tsinghua University in July 1994. She obtained a doctoral degree
in management from Beijing Jiaotong University in July 2007.

Ms. Dang Chunxiang (&% &), an executive Director, the chief executive
officer and general manager of the Company. See “ —Board of
Directors—Executive Directors” in this section for her biographical
details.

Mr. Sun Shengfeng (&f%1£), an executive Director, the chief financial
officer and joint company secretary of the Company. See * —Board
of Directors—Executive Directors” in this section for his biographical
details.
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Mr. Du Zhuang (#t#t), aged 43, has served as the sales director of the
Company since 1 August 2017. He was appointed as the general manager of
the Company on 7 March 2016. He is mainly responsible for the development
of regional sales strategies and solutions, management of the sales team and
control of sales budget and expense. Mr. Du has over 15 years of sales
and marketing experience in the fast-moving consumer goods sector.
He has been a marketing director of Yihai Shanghai since January
2015. He worked as the head of the chain store department of Tianjin
Dingjin Food Co., Ltd. (X Z JE 2 R M B R 2 7) from June 2001 to
October 2008. Mr. Du joined Sichuan Haidilao in October 2008 and
held various positions successively including marketing manager from
October 2008 to August 2009, sales manager from August 2009 to
August 2010 and senior sales manager from September 2010 to June
2011. From June 2011 to November 2014, Mr. Du served as a deputy
head of the operation department of Shuhai (Beijing) Investment Co.,
Ltd.* (HE (LX) REHBRAF), a wholly owned subsidiary of Sichuan
Haidilao. Mr. Du completed his study for undergraduate program in
husbandry at Beijing College of Agriculture (1t ZEZPR) in July 1996.

Mr. Xu Hai (##i8), aged 44, was appointed as the key account director
in August 2017. He has been the sales director of the Company since
7 March 2016, mainly responsible for key account sales and product
management. Mr. Xu has over 9 years of sales and management
experience in the fast-moving consumer goods sector. He has been a
sales director of Yihai Shanghai since January 2015. Mr. Xu then served
as sales director of Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. (It HEH
el AR A7) from October 2007 to March 2009. Mr. Xu then served
as a national sales director of China of Tianjin Otsuka Beverage Co.,
Ltd. (RFBARFEEIERAF) from April 2011 to June 2013. From June
2013 to December 2014, Mr. Xu served as a sales director of Shuhai
(Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd.* (& 8 (it R)#& & & R 2 7l), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Sichuan Haidilao. Mr. Xu obtained a master’s
degree in business management from Northeastern University (3R1t X
E) in July 2009.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

INFORMATION OF NEWLY APPOINTED DIRECTOR

Ms. Shu Ping (&%), aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director on 21 March 2018. She has been the director of Sichuan
Haidilao Catering Corporation Ltd.* (P9I /BE B E&R B AR 2 7))
since November 2014. She has been the non-executive director of
Xinpai International Investment Limited* (3TRBIFREBR A F) (to be
renamed as Haidilao International Holdings Limited* (& J& 5 Bl B 2 A%
BPR/A7])) since July 2015. Ms. Shu has completed the EMBA (China)
programme and the FMBA programme run jointly by Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business, London Business School, Columbia
Business School, Graduate School of International Corporate Strategy
of Hitotsubashi University, European School of Management and
Technology, International Institute for Management Development
in Switzerland in November 2015, and completed the EMBA
programme run jointly by Shanghai Jiao Tong University and Nanyang
Technological University in Singapore in July 2016.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

The Board of the Company presents this corporate governance report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE COMPANY

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and also the corporate governance report as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The Corporate Governance Code sets out the principles of good
corporate governance and two levels of corporate governance
practices, as follows:

(@) code provisions, which listed issuers are expected to comply with
or to give considered reasons for deviation; and

(o) recommended best practices for guidance only, which listed
issuers are encouraged to comply with.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code.

The Company regularly reviews its compliance with corporate
governance codes and the Company was in compliance with the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code during the year ended
31 December 2017.
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Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and is responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board also reviews the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements. The Board has
established Board committees and has delegated to these
Board committees’ various responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference which are published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

All of the Directors have carried out their duties in good faith
and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and have acted in the best interests of the
Company and its Shareholders at all times.

Delegation of Management Function

The Board is responsible for making all major decisions of
the Company including: the approval and monitoring of all
major policies of the Group and overall strategies, internal
control and risk management systems, notifiable and
connected transactions, nomination of the Directors and
joint company secretaries, and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All of the Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the joint
company secretaries, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed. Each Director is entitled to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the senior management.
The delegated functions are periodically reviewed. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board before any significant
transaction is entered into.
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Board Composition

The Board of the Company comprised the following
Directors throughout 2017:

Executive Directors Ms. Dang Chunxiang
Mr. Sun Shengfeng

Non-executive Directors  Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Yong

Mr. Gou Yiqun
Mr. Pan Di
Independent Mr. Yau Ka Chi
non-executive Mr. Qian Mingxing
Directors Ms. Ye Shujun

The list of the Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company from
time to time pursuant to the Listing Rules. The independent
non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all
corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in this annual
report, to the best knowledge of the Company, there are
no financial, business, family, or other material/relevant
relationships among members of the Board.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December
2017, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board and at least one independent
non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his or her
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are laid down in the Articles
of Association. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include, but are not limited to, reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors
and making recommendations to the Board on matters
relating to the appointment of the Directors.

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company
pursuant to which each of them has agreed to act as an
executive Director or a non-executive Director (as the case
may be) for an initial term of three years from 7 March 2016
(subject to re-election as and when required under the
Articles of Association) until terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the service contract or by either
party giving to the other not less than one month’s prior
notice in writing. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company and has been appointed for a term of three years
from 20 June 2016. The appointment may be terminated by
either party giving to the other not less than one month’s
prior notice in writing.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and the Board has power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any new Director to fill a
causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director
so appointed shall hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting.
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Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his appointment, so as to ensure that he or she
understands the business and operations of the Company
and that he or she is fully aware of his or her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other relevant
regulatory requirements.

The Directors are continually provided with information
relating to the developments in the legal and regulatory
regime and the business and market environments to
facilitate the execution of their responsibilities. Continuing
briefings and professional development for the Directors were
arranged by the Company and its professional advisers.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, each Director
has attended training sessions arranged by the Company
regarding the continuing obligations of listed companies and
its directors, disclosure obligations of listed companies and
update on the Listing Rules.

According to records provided by the Directors, a summary
of training received by the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2017 is as follows:

Name of Director Training*

Ms. Dang Chunxiang
Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Mr. Shi Yonghong
Mr. Zhang Yong

Mr. Gou Yiqun

Mr. Pan Di

Mr. Yau Ka Chi

Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

* Each of the Directors has attended training sessions arranged
by the Company on “Duties of Directors and Roles and
Functions of the Board Committees”; “Risk Management
and Internal Control: Environmental, Social and Governance
Report”; “Corporate Governance: Role of Directors and
the Company Secretary”; and “Directors and Substantial
Shareholders Trading Securities and Related Matters”. On top
of the above-mentioned trainings, each of the Directors has
also read materials prepared by external professional advisers
on “Main Regulations in Hong Kong and Regulatory Update”.
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6. Attendance Record of Board Meetings

a.

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code prescribes that at least four regular Board
meetings should be held in each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of majority
of directors, either in person or through electronic
means of communication.

The Board met six times during the year ended 31
December 2017 for reviewing and approving the
audited annual results for the year ended 31 December
2016, unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2017, and forming a joint venture with
a connected person, amendment to the annual caps of
continuing connected transactions and others.
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The chairman of the Company held meeting with the
non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) once during the year ended
31 December 2017 without the executive Directors
present.

The Company held two general meetings on 31 May
2017 and 6 November 2017 respectively during
the year ended 31 December 2017. All proposed
Shareholders’ resolutions put to the above general
meetings were resolved by poll vote and were duly
passed. The vote tally of each such resolution was set
out in the Company’s announcements released on the
day of the general meetings.

The attendance records of each Director at the Board
meetings and general meeting of the Company during
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T
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Board Meetings General Meetings
H R e, HERE
Name of Director EEna EEEERRY BREXERE
Ms. Dang Chunxiang EREEutL 6/6 2/2
Mr. Sun Shengfeng Bl E S % 6/6 2/2
Mr. Shi Yonghong i) & 6/6 1/2
Mr. Zhang Yong REBEE 6/6 1/2
Mr. Gou Yiqun BEEE L 6/6 1/2
Mr. Pan Di ity 6/6 2/2
Mr. Yau Ka Chi ARG EE 6/6 2/2
Mr. Qian Mingxing RIAE %L 6/6 2/2
Ms. Ye Shujun E2HELL 6/6 2/2
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The Company has not held any other general meetings
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each
meeting are made available to the Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all
of the Directors at least 14 days before the meetings.
For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notices were generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information were sent to all of the Directors
at least three days before each Board meeting or
committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of
the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions.

Each Director also had separate and independent
access to the senior management of the Company
whenever necessary.
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The senior management of the Company attend all
regular Board meetings and where necessary, other
Board and committee meetings, to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting matters,
statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The joint company secretaries are responsible for
taking and keeping minutes of all Board meetings
and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to the Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

The Articles of Association contain provisions requiring
the Directors to abstain from voting and not to be
counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code
stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Shi Yonghong has been appointed as the chairman of
the Company since 14 November 2017 and is responsible for
formulating the Group’s corporate and business strategies
and participating in making decisions for the Group’s strategic
marketing projects and other major decisions. Prior to that, Mr.
Gou Yiqun was the chairman of the Company.

Ms. Dang Chunxiang is the chief executive officer of the Company
and is responsible for the overall management of the Group,
implementation of the decisions of the Board.
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To facilitate discussion of all key and appropriate issues by the
Board in a timely manner, the chairman of the Company co-
ordinates with the senior management of the Company to provide
adequate, complete and reliable information to all of the Directors
for consideration and review.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All of these three committees are established with defined
written terms of reference which are available at the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The majority of the members of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination Committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

1.  Audit Committee

We have established the Audit Committee with terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules as well as paragraphs C.3 and D.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code. The Audit Committee consists of three
Directors, namely, the independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yau Ka Chi and Ms. Ye Shujun, and the non-executive
Director Mr. Shi Yonghong. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Yau Ka Chi, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2)
and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are
not limited to, assisting the Board by (i) reviewing and
monitoring the relationship of the external auditor and
the Group, particularly the independence and objectivity
and effectiveness of the external auditor; (ii) providing
an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control, compliance and risk
management systems of the Group; (iii) overseeing the audit
process and performing other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by the Board; (iv) developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance,
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and requirements under the Listing Rules; (v) reviewing
the financial information of the Company and ensuring
compliance with accounting standards and reviewing
significant adjustments resulting from audit; and (vi)
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to the Company’s employees and Directors.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and its main work involved the
following:

o reviewing the audited annual results and financial
report for the year ended 31 December 2016;

° reviewing the unaudited interim results and financial
report for the six months ended 30 June 2017;

° reviewing the financial reporting and the compliance
procedures;

° reviewing the policies and practices on corporate
governance;

° reviewing the compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and the disclosure requirements
in the corporate governance report as contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;
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° reviewing the code of conduct and the compliance
manuals for employees and the Directors, the financial,
operational and compliance monitoring;

° reviewing the risk management and internal control
systems;

° reviewing the internal audit work of the risk management
and internal audit department; and

° reviewing the work of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee had met with the auditor of the
Company in the absence of management of the Company
once in relation to the provision of audit service to the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee Meetings
are set out below:
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Attendance/
Number of
Meeting(s)
HE R e
Name of Committee Member ZEENENA ERRY
Mr. Yau Ka Chi R REG £ 3/3
Mr. Shi Yonghong i) &g 3/3
Ms. Ye Shujun EHELL 3/3
The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 NN EEZE2017F12 8 31
December 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee HEFENFEXECHE

on 19 March 2018. The Audit Committee considers that the
annual financial results for the year ended 31 December
2017 are in compliance with the relevant accounting
standards, rules and regulations and appropriate disclosures
have been duly made.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1
of the Corporate Governance Code. The Remuneration
Committee consists of three Directors, namely, the
independent non-executive Directors Ms. Ye Shujun and
Mr. Qian Mingxing, and the non-executive Director Mr.
Gou Yiqun. Ms. Ye Shujun serves as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a
year. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
include, but are not limited to, the following: (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (ii)
reviewing and approving senior management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board corporate goals and
objectives; and (jiii) making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2017 to review the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company, and consider and
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company.

The attendance records of the Remuneration Committee
Meetings are set out below:
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Meeting(s)

RS,

Name of Committee Member ZEERENAE o N
Ms. Ye Shujun EHEuL 1
Mr. Gou Yiqun REE AL 1
Mr. Qian Mingxing A2 %A 1

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 35
to the Financial Statements. In addition, the remuneration
payable to the senior management of the Company
(who are not the Directors) by band for the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report-D. Remuneration of Senior
Management” of this annual report.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee
with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A.5 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Nomination
Committee consists of three Directors, namely, the non-
executive Director Mr. Shi Yonghong, and the independent
non-executive Directors Ms. Ye Shujun and Mr. Qian
Mingxing. Mr. Shi Yonghong serves as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. Mr. Gou Yiqun has stepped
down as chairman of the Nomination Committee and Mr.
Shi Yonghong has been appointed as chairman of the
Nomination Committee on 14 November 2017.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include,
but are not limited to, (i) reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, (ii) assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to the
appointment of Directors.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2017 to review the structure, size,
composition and diversity (including the skills, knowledge,
experience, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience and length
of service) of the Board to ensure that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Company, to review
the training and continuous professional development of
the Directors and senior management, and to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
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The attendance records of the Nomination Committee
Meetings are set out below:

REZESEENHFELER
T

Attendance/

Number of

Meeting(s)

HERE,

Name of Committee Member ZEEREHA BRI
Mr. Gou Yigqun BB EE 2/2
Ms. Ye Shujun EHELL 2/2
Mr. Qian Mingxing EEAELAE 2/2

Where vacancies on the Board arise, the Nomination
Committee will carry out the selection process by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations.
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Prior to the Listing Date, the composition and diversity of the Board
were considered by adopting the Board Diversity Policy including
the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Company and for
effective leadership. All the executive and non-executive Directors
possess extensive and diversified experience in management and
broad industrial experience. The three Independent Non-executive
Directors possess professional knowledge in management, finance,
accountancy and legal, respectively with broad and extensive
experience in business advisory and management, respectively. A
summary of the Board Diversity Policy is set out below:

Purpose: The Board Diversity Policy aims to
set out the approach to achieve
diversity of the Board and enable
the Board to comply with the

Corporate Governance Code.

Board Diversity
Policy statement:

The Company considers increasing
diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives
and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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Measurable Objectives:

Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

In reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board,
the Nomination Committee has taken into account the measurable
objectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee is of the view that the diversity level of the Board is
appropriate in terms of knowledge, experience and skills of the
directors. However, the Nomination Committee will continue to observe
the Board Diversity Policy and consider potential candidates against
the objective criteria set out in the Board Diversity Policy in order to
achieve increasing diversity at the Board level.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT D. S#HREIEERIFHFM
The remuneration payable to the senior management of the EREAATRSREEE(EBREIE
Company (who are not the Directors) is shown in the following B)NEFMZRERNTESR
table by band:
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 &
(members (members
of senior of senior
management management
of the Company) of the Company)
(RMB) (AnE &% (DB EHK
(AR¥E) BEEERE) EEERE)
1-1,000,000 2 2
MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS E. #EHEXFHFEETH
The Company has adopted the Model Code. Specific enquiries RAREERMZESH - ZATE
have been made to all the Directors and the Directors have CMfEESELHAREH  MES
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code during HERIMESREE20175F12
the year ended 31 December 2017. B31ALFER—BEETEEST
Al
The Company’s employees, who are likely to be in possession ARREERAQARRRHEENAAT
of inside information of the Company, have also been subject to BEETCETESFRZNWEES
the Model Code for securities transactions. No incident of non- Al # £2017F 128318 It F
compliance of the Model Code by the Company’s employees was B ARARAEIZINHRAQT
noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017. EBETEFEETANSMG -
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures
required by the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The senior management of the Company has provided such
explanation and information to the Board as necessary to enable
the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the financial
information and position of the Company in order to put forward
such information to the Board for approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR REMUNERATION

Pursuant to the resolution of the 2017 Shareholders’ general
meeting, PricewaterhouseCoopers was re-appointed by the
Company as the auditor of financial statements prepared under
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements is set out
under the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this
annual report.

The external auditor of the Company will be invited to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report and
auditor’s independence.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company for the provision
of audit services for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted
to RMB2.1 million.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the remuneration paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company in respect of non-
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted
to RMBO0.3 million. The nature of such non-audit services is to
provide advisory services.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the establishment
and maintenance of sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems that are in line with the strategic objective
of the Group. The Group established risk management and
internal control systems to protect the interests of the Group and
shareholders, ensure the Group is in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, effectively identify and manage significant
risks in achieving its strategic objectives, protect the safety
of the Group’s assets, and ensure the maintenance of proper
compliance accounting records and financial reports.

The Board of Directors is responsible for evaluating the nature
and extent of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving
strategic objectives and ensuring that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems as well as overseeing management of the
Group in the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Board periodically receives (at least once a year) reports from
the Group’s management regarding financial, operational and
compliance controls, as well as the establishment, review and
assessment of the internal control and risk management functions
of the Group. All significant risks are reported to the Board. The
Board will also evaluate the corresponding risks and the response
plan. The Group would review, among other things, adequacy of
resources, staff’s qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of our accounting, internal control and financial
reporting functions.
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The Group’s management is authorized by the Board to be in
charge with the organization and implementation of the risk
management and internal control of the Group and be responsible
for establishing the risk management and internal control systems,
standardizing the organization, authorization, responsibilities,
procedures and methods of the risk management and internal
control systems and also responsible for ongoing monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
and makes periodic reports to the Board regarding the status of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group.

The risk management and internal audit department of the Group
assists the Board and the Audit Committee in their analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems. The
risk management and internal audit department adopts an audit
approach based on risk and control. The annual work plan of the
risk management and internal audit department covers the major
activities and processes of the Group’s operations, businesses
and service units. Special reviews are also performed at the
management’s request. The results of these audit activities are
communicated to the Audit Committee. The risk management and
internal audit department provides independent assurance to the
Board, the Audit Committee and the management of the Company
as to whether the Group’s internal controls are adequate and
effective.

With respect to risk management, the Group has chosen and
adopted the risk management framework issued by COSO
in the United States of America (“COSQ”), established a risk
management system covering design, implementation, monitoring,
assessment and continuous improvement based on the ISO
31000:2009 “Risk Management — Principles and Guidelines”. The
Group’s management established the overall targets and policies
of the risk management system which are in line with the strategic
objectives, and identified, analysed and assessed the overall risk
of the Company, especially the risks in making major decisions,
important events and key business processes. The Group’s
management is also responsible for reviewing and approving
the response plans to major risks, as well as following-up and
periodically reviewing the implementation of such response
plans of risks identified, in order to make sure that sufficient
attention, monitor and responses will be paid to all key risks of
the Company. The risk management reports are submitted to the
Board periodically.
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With respect to internal control, the Group has chosen and
adopted the internal control framework issued by COSO,
established an internal control system and mechanism over
financial, operational and compliance controls and has conducted
continuing review and evaluation of the internal control system of
the Group to ensure the timeliness, accuracy and completeness
of all information reported.

The management has evaluated the design and operating
effectiveness of its internal control regarding the financial
report as of 31 December 2017, and did not identify any
material weakness as a result of the evaluation, and were
not aware of any areas of concern that would have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position or
results of operations, and considered the risk management
and internal control systems to be generally adequate
and effective, including with respect to the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions. On the basis of such evaluation,
the Board considers that as of 31 December 2017, internal
control of the Group in relation to financial reporting was
effective.

At the same time, the Group has established a mechanism
for remediating internal control deficiency under which
the person in charge of each unit is assigned with clear
responsibilities relating to remediating internal control
deficiency of the unit.

The Group has formulated an inside information policy and
regularly reminds its Directors and employees to comply
with all inside information policies.

The Group established an open channel to handle and
discuss internal and external whistle-blowing regarding
financial, internal control and fraud, to ensure that every
accusation receives sufficient attention. Significant internal
control deficiencies or accusations will be reported directly
to the Audit Committee.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For details of the nature and extent of the principal risks faced by
the Group, please refer to the section headed “e. Principal Risk
and Uncertainties” in the Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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[ ER=3

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information,
which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company are expected to provide
a forum for communication between the Board and the
Shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the
Nomination Committee and, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees and, where applicable, the chairman
of the independent Board committee, will be available to answer
questions at the general meetings. The chairman of a meeting will
provide the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer
any questions from the Shareholders on voting by poll.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.yihchina.com, where information and updates on
the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

AMENDMENTS OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

For the year ended 31 December 2017, no change had been
made to the articles of association of the Company.
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To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the re-election of individual Directors.
Meanwhile, the procedures for the Shareholders to (i) convene
an extraordinary general meeting; (ii) direct their enquiries to the
Board; and (iii) put forward proposals at general meetings are
available.

In accordance with Article 13.5 of the Articles of Association,
all resolutions put forward at a general meeting will be taken by
poll save that the chairman may, in good faith, allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter as
prescribed under the Listing Rules to be voted on by a show of
hands.

In addition, the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after the relevant general
meeting.

1. Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association, any
two or more Shareholders or any one Shareholder which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition (deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists) not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
and carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, on written
requisition, to require an extraordinary general meeting to
be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the Requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them
by the Company.

According to Article 12.4 of the Articles of Association, any
extraordinary general meeting shall be called by not less
than 14 days’ notice in writing. Subject to the requirement
under the Listing Rules, the notice shall be exclusive of the
day on which it is served or deemed to be served and of the
day for which it is given, and shall specify the time, place,
and agenda of the meeting, particulars of the resolutions
and the general nature of the business to be considered
at the meeting. The notice convening a meeting to pass a
special resolution shall specify the intention to propose the
resolution as a special resolution. Notice of every general
meeting shall be given to the auditors of the Company
and to all the Shareholders other than those who, under
the provisions hereof or the terms of issue of the shares
they hold, are not entitled to receive such notice from the
Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There is no single provision in the Articles of Association or
the Cayman Islands Companies Law for the Shareholders
to put forward proposals at general meetings. The
Shareholders who wish to propose a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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3. Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, the Shareholders may send written enquiries
to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries, concerns or requests
to the Company at 18/F, Tesbury Centre 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholders must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition, notice
or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. The information
of the Shareholders may be disclosed as required by law.

The net proceeds from the Global Offering amounted to
approximately HK$720.2 million.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company cumulatively used 10.56%
of the proceeds from the global offering for (1) constructing Phase
| of the Company’s Bazhou Production Base located in Bazhou,
Hebei Province; (2) potential strategic acquisition opportunities; (3)
promoting the Company’s products and brand; (4) enhancing our
research and development capabilities; and (5) working capital
and general corporate purposes.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wong Yat Tung (“Mr. Wong”) of SW Corporate Services
Group Limited, external service provider, and Mr. Sun Shengfeng
(“Mr. Sun”), the executive Director and chief financial officer
of the Company, have been engaged by the Company as joint
company secretaries effective on 12 March 2016. Mr. Sun
has been engaged by the Company as one of the authorized
representatives.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Wong and Mr. Sun
have undertaken over 15 hours of professional training to update
their skill and knowledge.

PRIMARY CORPORATE CONTACT PERSON

Mr. Sun Shengfeng, the executive Director and chief financial
officer, is the primary corporate contact person of the joint
company secretary, Mr. Wong.

GOING CONCERN

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to the Shareholders through the optimization of the debt
and equity balance.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s liability to
continue as a going concern.

5 5 B fF 2 B2 B PR 2 & Yihai International Holding Ltd.

g A FI LB

SRR B 15 K 5 Bl e R AR
SEERAANWEAREE(ESE
£ DRARBHITESRYBRE
BEBEETE(BREENCRZER
ARBBEIRAME  LEER
2016 F3 A 12 HEM - BREAELER
DNEAEERRERARZ—

NEBE2017F12831B L F E
A BERERBREECS M5/
L EREBEEEEY - RS HEE
s -

REEEBEA

BB TE (MITESRUBRE)
RBEARAMERLLENRTEE
BREA o

FHERERED

FEESHERNETER  UER
REEBET AREHFTELE - [
KEBECEBRERABNFER
AREHRSKRRLR -

BMEFBTASHRBERHERLR

PR Z A YRR BANFELE
BENBREREER -



The Board of the Company presents this directors’ report in the
Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017.

We are a leading and fast-growing compound condiment manufacturer
in China primarily focused on the hot pot condiment market. We are
the sole supplier of hot pot soup flavoring products for Haidilao Group
in China. We employ a distributor model to sell our products, and our
physical distribution network is supplemented by e-commerce channels
& third-party catering companies, which have recently experienced
significant development. The Group is also expanding its sales network
in overseas markets.

The principal activities of the Group are researching and developing,
manufacturing, distributing and selling high-quality hot pot soup
flavoring, hot pot dipping sauce and Chinese-style compound
condiment products. There were no significant changes in the nature
of the Group’s principal activities during the year ended 31 December
2017.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set
out in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income of this
annual report.

The Board resolved to propose to the Shareholders in the forthcoming
AGM on Friday, 27 April 2018 for the distribution of a final dividend of
RMB4.97985 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2017.
The final dividend is expected to be paid on or about Thursday, 17
May 2018 to the Shareholders whose names are listed in the register
of members of the Company on Monday, 7 May 2018, in an aggregate
amount of RMB52.134 million. Subject to the consideration and
approval of the Shareholders at the AGM, the final dividend will be paid
in Hong Kong dollars based on the average benchmark exchange rate
of Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars as announced by the People’s
Bank of China in the five working days prior to but excluding the date
of the Board Meeting, that is HK$6.17415 cents per Share.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the issued shares of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2017 are set out in note 17 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Changes In Equity of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has distributable reserves of
RMB1,992.4 million in total available for distribution.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Group’s financial summary for the last five financial years is set out
in the section headed “Five-Year Performance Review” of this annual
report.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has recorded no bank loans and
other borrowings.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 8
to the Financial Statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the
Latest Practicable Date.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and there is no restriction against such rights which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief available to the
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The net proceeds from the Global Offering amounted to approximately
HK$720.2 million. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report — Use of Proceeds from the Global
Offering” of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview and performance of the Year

Business review and financial review are provided in the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of this annual
report.

Environmental Policies and Performance

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental-friendly environment, we strive to
minimize our environmental impact by saving electricity and to
build our corporation in a sustainable way.

The Group has undergone a series of effective energy-saving
and pollutant-reducing measures such as conserving water and
electricity, reducing the creation and emission of pollutants during
the production process and optimizing production lines.

Additionally, we have adopted a set of emergency planning,
response and control procedures as countermeasures for
unexpected environmental pollution accidents to minimize
our impact on the environment and the adverse effect on our
business. We incurred RMB1.34 million (2016: RMB1.0 million)
in environmental compliance costs for the year ended 31
December 2017. Such environmental compliance costs relate to
expenditures in implementing environmental protection policies,
and for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not
incurred any fines as a result of environmental pollution.
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Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group has complied with the requirements under the
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules, the SFO and the
Corporate Governance Code for, among other things, the
disclosure of information and corporate governance. The Group
has also complied with other relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the operations of the Group. Please
refer to the section headed “Regulations” in the Prospectus for
details.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Relationship with Haidlilao Group and its Affiliates

One group of the primary customers of the Company is Haidilao
Group and its affiliates. We are the sole supplier of hot pot soup
flavoring products to Haidilao Group in China. The hot pot soup
flavoring products that we sell to Haidilao Group for use in its
hot pot restaurants are customized products meeting Haidilao
Group’s specific requirements. In addition, our retail products
are displayed and sold directly to consumers in Haidilao hot pot
restaurants. In general, Haidilao Group makes purchase orders
based on customer demands. We have the right to arrange
production ahead of time and stock the finished products in
anticipation of peak seasons. We also sell retail and customized
condiment products to Shuhai Supply Chain and Youdingyou, our
affiliated companies.
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Relationship with our distributors

The other group of the Company’s primary customers is the
distributors, who in turn resell our products to sub-distributors
and retailers, including hypermarkets, supermarkets, grocery
stores, neighborhood stores and butcher shops across China.
As at 31 December 2017, we had more than 814 distributors and
an extensive distribution network covering 31 provincial regions
of China and the Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions and 23
overseas countries and markets.

1. Management of Our Distributors

Our distributors are typically regional distributors primarily
involved in the distribution of food and condiment products
with well-established local distribution networks. We select
our distributors in each region based on factors including
their business qualifications and distribution capabilities.
The distribution capabilities we consider include breadth
and quality of sales network, reputation, creditworthiness
and financial conditions, and capabilities in personnel,
warehousing, logistics and transportation.

We have a seller-buyer relationship with our distributors. The
ownership of the products, as well as all risks and rewards
associated therewith are transferred to them upon delivery
and acceptance. In general, our sales to our distributors
are made on a payment-before-delivery basis according
to our distribution agreements with our distributors with
certain exceptions during our peak seasons. We formulate
a monthly production plan based on historical sales and
market demand. Upon receipt of purchase orders, we will
first deliver the products previously prepared based on the
relatively conservative monthly plan and further produce and
deliver the shortfall, if any. Due to our effective production
and inventory management, our warehouse time of finished
products is approximately 7 days for retail products and 30
days for customized products sold to related parties. Once
the products are delivered to the distributors, they cannot be
returned except for defective products.
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Distributors Performance and Inventory Management

We closely monitor the performance of our distributors. For
example, our sales personnel conduct inspections of our
distributors from time to time to monitor their sales, sales
prices, marketing activities, storage conditions, logistics
facilities, staff quality, quality control and inventory levels.
Generally, we require our distributors to report to us their
inventory records every two weeks to cross-check with our
internal data base. Our staff also conduct monthly inventory
checks at randomly selected distributors. When we notice
that our distributors have excessive inventories or their
sales volumes drop significantly, we may make inquiries and
adopt necessary measures such as suspending the supply
of relevant products. We prohibit our distributors from selling
any expired products. Through visiting the retailers and sub-
distributors and verifying the two-dimensional code that we
implanted on our products, we also monitor whether our
distributors distribute our products within their designated
geographic regions and whether they sell any counterfeit
products. Through these activities, we ensure that our sales
to distributors reflect genuine market demand and our
distributors are complying with the terms and conditions of
their distribution agreements. If we discover non-compliance
issues, we inform the relevant distributor and request the
distributor to cease the non-compliant activities within a
specified period of time. Our distributors are also liable for
breaches of their distribution agreements, and we can claim
compensation from them for relevant breaches. We can
terminate the distribution agreements if they breach material
provisions stipulated therein.
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We provide sales rebate as an incentive to our third-party
distributors when they achieve or exceed the sales targets
set out in their distribution agreements, which are negotiated
and determined based on various factors such as past
performance and market conditions. If a distributor achieves
or exceeds its sales target, we will grant the rebate by
providing certain discount for such distributor’s purchases
in the next year. Such sales rebates are deducted from our
revenue for each of the relevant periods. We do not impose
minimum annual purchase requirement in the distribution
agreements. If a distributor fails to achieve its sales target,
then it will not be entitled to the sales rebate as described
above.

Relationship with Third-party Catering Service Providers

Leveraging our experience in providing customized services to
Haidilao Group, we provide customized compound condiment
products to third-party catering service providers, primarily hot
pot restaurants, spicy stir-fry pot restaurants and barbecue
restaurants.

We use a standardized agreement for these services. Our
customers will discuss their requirements with us before placing
orders. Following our agreement on the detailed requirements
of the customized condiment products, packaging requirements
and purchase prices, our customers will pay an advance
payment equal to 50% of the total purchase price for our
manufacturing and pay the remainder before delivery. Almost
all of our customers are not allowed to return any products after
completion of inspection and acceptance. Our customers are
required to use the customized condiment products only for their
provision of catering services and may not resell the condiment
products to other parties. Typically if the third-party catering
service providers consume the Company’s retail products,
then they are the Company’s own product formula. But if it is
customized condiment, then it will be the same arrangements as
the connected sales to Haidilao Group, i.e., the Company will not
own the intellectual property right of the product formula.

As an increasing number of service providers intend to take
advantage of the high quality and consistent products offered by
large and reputable manufacturers, we believe there is significant
growth potential for us in providing customized services to third-
party catering service providers.
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Relationship with Our Suppliers

Our raw materials are generally available from various suppliers.
To maintain high standards of product quality and food safety,
we place strong emphasis on sourcing high-quality raw materials
from large suppliers with good reputations. We minimize our
reliance on any single source of supply by maintaining at least
two suppliers for each type of raw material. We also implement
various measures to monitor the performance of our suppliers,
including sample examination and on-site inspections.

We usually enter into supply agreements with our suppliers on an
annual basis. Our suppliers are required to provide raw materials
adhering to the quality requirement under the supply agreements
and are responsible for any liabilities caused by product defects.
Our supply agreements do not have an automatic renewal clause.

Relationship with Our Employees

We embrace our employees as the most valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Group’s human resources
management is to reward and recognize outstanding
employees by providing competitive remuneration packages
and implementing a sound performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and
progression within the Group by providing adequate training and
opportunities.

Relationship with Shareholders

We recognize the importance of protecting the interests of the
Shareholders and of having effective communication with them.
We believe communication with the Shareholders is a two-way
process and have thrived to ensure the quality and effectiveness
of information disclosure, maintain regular dialogue with the
Shareholders and listen carefully to the views and feedback from
the Shareholders. This has been done through general meetings,
corporate communications, interim and annual reports and results
announcements.

EEEWE

BREB R

BANEME —RAES BHED
KRB BERSRENERES
BEmZE HMBAEROEES
ENAREHEBRRBEEANEM
#e HMBERORBEFNE—H
HERE  RSEEMBESED
MEHES - RATETZERR
ERHEENRR - BEBERE
REHRE -

KBRS FREHAERR LEER
& RPN HEEARMEDIMHE
HREEERNEME > THER
BEEHNEMNEEEE - &M
HY 1 P thh e 30 4 5 B A EAAR K -

BES I EF

EPRAEERFTKEREENE
B ARBAHEREENBER
= UEBRFINHFMEBEER
BEALEENER  URERAR
FEERBNTEEANERHE
W EERERHNEIRES
BAEBARBATNEXNRE
R o

BRRAVEEF

HMRBERERRES M
TEMBBNEEN - RMEEHE
BRRBERZ - EZEOMNBRE  1LI§
HEFREERBENEERBNE -
RIFERRNEHHARAERE
RERRNEZRERE - ECBEB
BRAE - REBHA - PHREE
FHREFENHER

2017 Annual Report



78

Directors’ Report

ESERE

Principal Risk and Uncertainties
Risk of Connected Transactions

As connected transactions with Haidilao take up a relatively high
proportion of the Company’s revenue, there will be an adverse
impact on the sales and profit of the Group if the Haidilao brand is
harmed or its sales is reduced significantly.

Response measures: The Group will increase the market sales of
its products through internal mechanism changes, channel sinking
and product upgrades. At the same time, it actively looks for M&A
opportunities to expand the market size.

Risk of Raw Materials Supply

As the environmental requirements in China becomes more and
more stringent, the supply of some raw materials may not be
timely, and this may in turn increase procurement costs or affect
the timely supply for production.

Response measures: The Group’s production and supply
department will establish a safety stock plan, and when there is
a supply risk for raw materials, the Group reserves the goods in
advance according to the production plan.

Risk of Competition within the Industry

Competition in the condiment market has intensified and has
experienced rapid changes. Without in-depth analysis of the
competitive environment, there may not be corresponding product
strategies and responses promptly, causing a fall in the market
share of the Group’s products.

Response measures: The Group will further improve its market
competition analysis mechanism, focus on market dynamics
and collect market information, and at the same time continue to
promote product structure optimization and product upgrades in
the context of market environment.
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Risk of Product Quality and Safety

The quality and safety of the Group’s products are critical to the
success of the Group. Maintaining product quality and safety
depends on the effectiveness of the quality control systems, which
includes the design of quality control systems and our ability to
ensure that our employees adhere to and implement those quality
control policies and guidelines. If the quality control system is not
effective or not sufficiently executed, it may lead to quality or food
safety issues, and in turn have a material adverse effect on our
reputation, results of operations and financial conditions.

Response measures: The Group will further improve the “Food
Safety Risk Assessment Criteria” and conduct comprehensive
risk assessments from three aspects: regulatory risk assessment,
product risk assessment, and operational risk assessment. The
Group identifies risk points through risk assessment and tracks
the effectiveness of risk rectification to ensure that the Group’s
operational risks are controllable.

Risk of Market for New Products

Some products of the new product types are under emerging
industries. These industries lack regulated standards across the
industry and the manufacturers are of vastly different qualities,
which may damage the product type environment. The lack
of consumer confidence in the new products may limit the
development of the entire industry. This may in turn hinder the
Company from achieving the sales targets for new products.

Response measures: The Group will actively participate in the
standard setting process of emerging industries, participate
in the activities of relevant industry associations, and provide
suggestions for the revision and formulation of industry standards.
Secondly, according to the processing and assembly management
requirements at the production site, strict management at each
factory ensures the quality of its own products.
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Discussion and Analysis section of this annual report. e
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF 31 DECEMBER 2017

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring disclosure
that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2017 and up to the
date of this report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Dang Chunxiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sun Shengfeng
Ms. Shu Ping

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shi Yonghong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Yong
Mr. Pan Di

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Ka Chi
Mr. Qian Mingxing
Ms. Ye Shujun

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors will retire by rotation at every annual general meeting
(provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years) and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election. Mr. Zhang Yong, Mr. Yau Ka Chi and Ms. Ye Shujun will
retire from the Board by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Shu
Ping, who was appointed to fill up causal vacancy on the Board shall
retire from office as Director, and being eligible, offer herself for re-
election at the AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

CHANGES IN THE INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shi Yonghong was appointed as the chairman of the Company and
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company in place of Mr.
Gou Yiqun with effect from 14 November 2017 as he wants to devote
more time for business affairs which do not compete with the business
of the Company.

Ms. Ye Shujun has been an independent director of Anhui Telit Science
and Technology Co., Limited (R M X Z ZRE RO ER 2 7)) (a
company listed on National Equities Exchange And Quotations Co., Ltd
with stock code 831918) since July 2017, and an independent director
of Wuhu Fuchun Dye and Weave Co., Limited (%= &2&R M ER
‘AF]) (@ company listed on National Equities Exchange and Quotations
Co., Ltd with stock code 870898) since November 2017. She is no
longer being an independent director of Beijing Sanfo Outdoors
Products Co., Ltd (AFR=XFI/NARBRMHBERLT) (@ company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 002780) since May
2017.

Mr. Pan Di is currently the Managing Director of Greenwoods Private
Equity Funds. He resigned as a director of Ernest Borel Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code
1856).

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2017,
there has been no change in the information of the Directors as
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors have each entered
into a service contract with the Company pursuant to which they agree
to act as an executive Director or a non-executive Director (as the
case may be) for an initial term of three years from 7 March 2016 or
from 21 March 2018 for Ms. Shu Ping (subject to re-election as and
when required under the Articles of Association) until terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the service contract or by
either party giving to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in
writing.

The independent non-executive Directors have each signed a letter of
appointment with the Company and have been appointed for a term of
three years from 20 June 2016. The appointment may be terminated by
either party giving to the other not less than one month’s prior notice in
writing.

None of the Directors have an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

We have received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yau Ka Chi, Mr. Qian Mingxing and Ms. Ye
Shujun, the confirmation of their respective independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has duly reviewed the
confirmation of independence of each of these Directors. We consider
that the independent non-executive Directors have been independent
from the date of their appointments to 31 December 2017 and remain
so as of the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of our associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,

were as follows:
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Approximate

percentage of
shareholding in

Number of  the total issued
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Ordinary Shares  share capital (%)
RE#1T
BRAGEHY
EEps 5/ BHEE LERHE HAOBRESR
Mr. Shi Yonghong® Founder of a discretionary trust, interest 177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
of controlled corporation and interest of spouse
Tt &% AU 2REANALA - FEFZEESEREBOER
Mr. Zhang Yong? Founder of a discretionary trust and interest 372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
of controlled corporation
RELLEW 2RETANALARZEHLEER
Mr. Gou Yiqun® Interest of controlled corporation 25,974,000 (L) 2.48% (L)
HEHELLO SEHEEER
Ms. Dang Chunxiang® Beneficiary of a trust 1,010,000 (L) 0.10% (L)
ERBELLY ERANZEA
Mr. Sun Shengfeng® Beneficiary of a trust 500,000 (L) 0.05% (L)
BBEELo ERENZHEA

(L)  denotes a long position

(L)t &KL E
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Notes:

(1)

@

3

4

©)

Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms. Li Haiyan, as the settlors and protectors,
established for their own benefit the SL Trust, which indirectly holds the
entire share capital of SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd, which in turn
holds a total of 177,243,492 Shares. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Shi
Yonghong and Ms. Li Haiyan are deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd are interested.

Mr. Shi Yonghong is the spouse of Ms. Li Haiyan and is deemed to be
interested in the same number of the Shares in which Ms. Li Haiyan is
interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Li Haiyan is the spouse of Mr.
Shi Yonghong and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the
Shares in which Mr. Shi Yonghong is interested for the purpose of the
SFO.

Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping, as the settlors and protectors,
established for their own benefit the ZYSP Trust, which holds the entire
share capital of ZYSP YIHAI Ltd, which in turn holds 372,547,021
Shares. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping
are deemed to be interested in the Shares in which ZYSP YIHAI Ltd is
interested.

Mr. Zhang Yong is the spouse of Ms. Shu Ping and is deemed to be
interested in the same number of the Shares in which Ms. Shu Ping is
interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Shu Ping is the spouse of Mr.
Zhang Yong and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the
Shares in which Mr. Zhang Yong is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

Mr. Gou Yiqun directly holds 100% interest in GYQ YIHAI Ltd and is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by GYQ YIHAI Ltd for the
purpose of the SFO.

1,010,000 RSUs were granted to Ms. Dang Chunxiang pursuant to the
RSU Scheme on 28 December 2016.

500,000 RSUs were granted to Mr. Sun Shengfeng pursuant to the RSU
Scheme on 28 December 2016.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company has or is deemed to have
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which will be required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO); or which will be required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which will be
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the followings are the persons, other than
the Directors or chief executives of the Company, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares which would
be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Approximate
Percentage of
Total number Shareholding
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest of shares (%)
RERE St/ BHMEE RiPEE BAERED (%)
Shu Ping ® Founder of a discretionary trust and 372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
interest of controlled corporation
Fipeal PRETAVARZEF ZEER
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
ZEACGEEREZEA)
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd® Beneficial owner 372,547,021 (L) 35.59% (L)
ERBBA
Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited® Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
ZFEAGEEREZTEAN)
Li Haiyan® Founder of a discretionary trust, 177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
interest of controlled corporation and
interest of spouse
ZERkate FRGEAYA  ZRHFEREREBNESR
Twice Happiness Limited® Interest of controlled corporation 177,243,492 (L) 16.93% (L)
ZEHEERER
LHY YIHAI Ltd® Beneficial owner 88,621,746 (L) 8.47% (L)
ERBBA
SYH YIHAI Ltd® Beneficial owner 88,621,746 (L) 8.47% (L)
BERERA
JLUH YIHAI Ltd® Beneficial owner and nominee 77,220,000 (L) 7.38% (L)
for another person
EBEARE—BATHREA
Vistra Fiduciary (HK) Limited® Trustee (other than a bare trustee) 77,220,000 (L) 7.38% (L)
CEINE 203N
FIL Limited® Investment manager 52,232,000 4.99% (L)
REKE 52,232,000 4.99% (L)
FIL Asia Holdings Pte Limited® Investment manager 52,232,000 4.99% (L)
REKE 52,232,000 4.99% (L)
FIL Investment Management Investment manager 52,232,000 4.99% (L)
(Hong Kong) Limited®
ZEES(FB)BRAF RELE 52,232,000 4.99% (L)
(L)  denotes a long position LRETFE
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ZYSP Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Zhang Yong and Ms.
Shu Ping as the settlors and protectors on 1 June 2016 for their own
benefit. The entire share capital of ZYSP YIHAI Ltd is wholly owned
by UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited as the trustee of the ZYSP Trust. Mr.
Zhang Yong and Ms. Shu Ping (as founders of the ZYSP Trust) and UBS
Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited are taken to be interested in the Shares held by
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd for the purpose of the SFO.

SL Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms.
Li Haiyan as the settlors and protectors on 2 June 2016 for their own
benefit. The entire share capital of SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd
is wholly owned by Twice Happiness Limited and ultimately owned by
Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited as the trustee of the SL Trust.
Mr. Shi Yonghong and Ms. Li Haiyan (as founders of the SL Trust), Twice
Happiness Limited and Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited are taken
to be interested in the Shares held by SYH YIHAI Ltd and LHY YIHAI Ltd
for the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Shi Yonghong is the spouse of Ms. Li
Haiyan and is deemed to be interested in the same number of the Shares
in which Ms. Li Haiyan is interested for the purpose of the SFO. Ms. Li
Haiyan is the spouse of Mr. Shi Yonghong and is deemed to be interested
in the same number of the Shares in which Mr. Shi Yonghong is interested
for the purpose of the SFO.

Vistra Fiduciary (HK) Limited is the trustee and JLJH YIHAI Ltd is the
nominee to administer the RSU Scheme. JLJH YIHAI Ltd holds the Shares
underlying the RSU granted by us for the benefit of eligible participants
pursuant to the RSU Scheme.

FIL Limited owns 100% of FIL Asia Holdings Pte Limited, which owns
100% of FIL Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited. Each of FIL
Limited and FIL Asia Holdings Pte Limited is therefore deemed to be
interested in 52,232,000 Shares (long position) held by FIL Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors and
the chief executives of the Company are not aware of any other person
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would be required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO; or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” above, at no time during the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this annual report was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement that would enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of the shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the Directors or any of their spouses or children under the age of 18
were granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of
the Company or any other body corporate or had exercised any such
right.

DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Our History, Reorganization
and Corporate Structure — Reorganization” in the Prospectus and save
for their respective interests in the Group, none of the Directors and the
Controlling Shareholders was interested in any business which competes
or is likely to compete with the businesses of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

We have received annual written confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders, consisting of Mr. Zhang Yong, Ms. Shu Ping and
ZYSP YIHAI Ltd, of the compliance with the provisions of the Non-
competition Undertaking by such Controlling Shareholders and their
close associates.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking during the year
ended 31 December 2017 based on the information and confirmation
provided by or obtained from the Controlling Shareholders, and were
satisfied that our Controlling Shareholders have duly complied with the
Non-competition Undertaking.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has not issued any
convertible bonds.

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS RELATING TO
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has not entered
into any loan agreement which contain covenants requiring specific
performance of the Controlling Shareholders.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Among the related party transactions disclosed in note 33 to the
Financial Statements, the following transactions constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Rule 14A.31 of the
Listing Rules and are required to be disclosed in this annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that the related party transactions do not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
and complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please see below the information
required to be disclosed in compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

1. Chengdu Lease Agreement

On 1 December 2015 and 5 January 2016, Sichuan Haidilao
and Chengdu Yueyihai, our wholly owned subsidiary, entered
into the Chengdu Lease Agreement, including the supplemental
agreement, pursuant to which Chengdu Yueyihai agreed to lease
from Sichuan Haidilao a parcel of land together with properties
and fixtures thereon to be used for production and warehousing.
Sichuan Haidilao is our connected person and therefore the
transactions under the Chengdu Lease Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Chengdu Lease Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for a further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with the
Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer to
the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus for
details.
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The annual caps for the rental payable under the Chengdu Lease
Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 are RMB4,000,000, RMB4,300,000 and RMB4,500,000,
respectively. Please also refer to note 33 to the Financial
Statements for details. The aggregate transaction amount incurred
in accordance with the Chengdu Lease Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was RMB2,869,000.

Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Sichuan Haidilao and Yihai Shanghai, our wholly
owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
entered into the Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement,
pursuant to which Sichuan Haidilao Group agreed to provide
warehousing facilities and related services, including warehouse
storage, sorting process management, stock-taking, and other
logistics services, to the Group in connection with storage of our
products. Sichuan Haidilao is our connected person and therefore
the transactions under the Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Haidilao Warehouse Storage Service Agreement has an
initial term of three years commencing from 1 January 2016 and
is renewable for further term of three years from time to time,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws
and regulations. Please refer to the section headed “Connected
Transaction” in the Prospectus for details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Haidilao
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the years ended
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 are RMB2,200,000,
RMB2,800,000 and RMB3,600,000, respectively. Please also refer
to note 33 to the Financial Statements for details. The aggregate
transaction amount incurred in accordance with the Haidilao
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2017 was RMB764,000.
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Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Shuhai Supply Chain and Yihai Shanghai,
our wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, entered into the Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service
Agreement, pursuant to which Shuhai Supply Chain Group agreed
to provide warehousing facilities and related services, including
warehouse storage, sorting process management, stock-taking,
and other logistics services, to the Group in connection with
storage of our products. Shuhai Supply Chain is our connected
person and therefore the transactions under the Shuhai
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement has an
initial term of three years commencing from 1 January 2016 and
is renewable for further term of three years from time to time,
subject to compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws
and regulations. Please refer to the section headed “Connected
Transaction” in the Prospectus for details.

The annual caps for the rental payable under the Shuhai
Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the years ended
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 have been revised to
RMB3,000,000, RMB6,000,000 and RMB9,000,000, respectively.
Please also refer to note 33 to the Financial Statements and the
Company’s announcement dated 18 September 2017 for details.
The aggregate transaction amount incurred in accordance with
the Shuhai Warehouse Storage Service Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was RMB3,544,000.

Master Sales Agreement and Supplemental Master Sales
Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Sichuan Haidilao, Singapore Haidilao and
Yihai Shanghai, our wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries, entered into the Master Sales
Agreement, pursuant to which we agreed to supply to Haidilao
Group both Haidilao Customized Products and Haidilao Retail
Products. Sichuan Haidilao and Singapore Haidilao are our
connected persons and therefore the transactions under the
Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Master Sales Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer
to the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus
and the circular of the Company dated 18 October 2017 for
details.

On 18 September 2017, Sichuan Haidilao, Singapore Haidilao and
Yihai Shanghai, each for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
entered into the Supplemental Master Sales Agreement, pursuant
to which we agreed to sell Small Hotpot Products to the Haidilao
Group. The transactions under the Supplemental Master Sales
Agreement therefore constitute connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Supplemental Master Sales Agreement commenced from 6
November 2017 and will expire on 31 December 2018. Please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 18 October 2017 for
details.

The annual caps receivable under the Master Sales Agreement
(as supplemented by the Supplemental Master Sales Agreement)
for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 have
been revised to RMB598,000,000, RMB994,800,000 and
RMB1,569,700,000, respectively. Please also refer to note 33
to the Financial Statements and the Company’s circular dated
18 October 2017 for details. The aggregate transaction amount
incurred in accordance with the Master Sales Agreement and
Supplemental Master Sales Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2017 was RMB905,333,000.
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Shuhai Sales Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Shuhai Supply Chain and Yihai Shanghai,
our wholly owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries, entered into the Shuhai Sales Agreement,
pursuant to which we agreed to sell hot pot soup flavoring
products, hot pot dipping sauce products and other compound
condiment products to Shuhai Supply Chain Group for sales and
distribution to its customers who are catering service providers.
Shuhai Supply Chain is our connected person and therefore
the transactions under the Shuhai Sales Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Shuhai Sales Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer
to the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus
for details.

The annual caps for the transactions under the Shuhai Sales
Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 are RMB7,210,000, RMB9,630,000 and RMB12,680,000,
respectively. Please also refer to note 33 to the Financial
Statements for details. The aggregate transaction amount
incurred in accordance with the Shuhai Sales Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was RMB8,775,000.

Youdingyou Sales Agreement

On 24 June 2016, Youdingyou and Yihai Shanghai, our wholly
owned subsidiary, each for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
entered into the Youdingyou Sales Agreement, pursuant to
which we agreed to sell hot pot soup flavoring products, hot
pot dipping sauce products and other compound condiment
products to Youdingyou for use at spicy mixed stew restaurants it
operates. Youdingyou is our connected person and therefore the
transactions under the Youdingyou Sales Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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The Youdingyou Sales Agreement has an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2016 and is renewable for further
term of three years from time to time, subject to compliance with
the Listing Rules and applicable laws and regulations. Please refer
to the section headed “Connected Transaction” in the Prospectus
for detalils.

The annual caps for the transactions under the Youdingyou Sales
Agreement for the years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and
2018 are RMB8,900,000, RMB16,300,000 and RMB26,400,000,
respectively. Please also refer to note 33 to the Financial
Statements for details. The aggregate transaction amount incurred
in accordance with the Youdingyou Sales Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was RMB1,803,000.

Investment Cooperation Agreement

On 11 July 2017, Xinpai Shanghai and Yihai Shanghai, our wholly
owned subsidiary, entered into the Investment Cooperation
Agreement, pursuant to which Xinpai Shanghai and Yihai Shanghai
formed the Joint Venture in the PRC to engage in the manufacture
and sales of self-serving small hotpot products. Pursuant to the
terms of the Investment Cooperation Agreement, the registered
capital of the Joint Venture proposed to be established shall be
RMBS50 million, of which (i) Yihai Shanghai shall contribute RMB30
million by way of cash representing 60% of the registered capital;
and (i) Xinpai Shanghai shall contribute RMB20 million by way of
cash, representing 40% of the registered capital. Xinpai Shanghai
is our connected person and therefore the transaction under the
Investment Cooperation Agreement constitutes a connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 11 July 2017 for details.
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8. Framework Sales and Purchase Agreements

On 18 September 2017, the Joint Venture and Yihai Shanghai,
our wholly owned subsidiary and for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries, entered into the Framework Sales and Purchase
Agreements, pursuant to which (i) we agreed to sell hotpot soup
flavouring products to the Joint Venture as raw materials for the
manufacture of Small Hotpot Products; and (ii) the Joint Venture
agreed to sell Small Hotpot Products to us. The Joint Venture is
our connected subsidiary and therefore transactions under the
Framework Sales and Purchase Agreements constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Framework Sales and Purchase Agreements have an initial
term of three years from 6 November 2017 to 31 August 2020
and is renewable for further term of three years from time to
time, subject to compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable
laws and regulations. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 18 September 2017 and 6 November 2017 for
details.

The annual caps for the transactions under the Framework Sales
and Purchase Agreements for the years ended 31 December
2017, 2018 and 2019 and the eight months ended 31 August
2020 are RMB50,700,000, RMB141,300,000, RMB205,500,000
and RMB178,333,000, respectively. Please also refer to note 33
to the Financial Statements for details. The aggregate transaction
amount incurred in accordance with the Framework Sales and
Purchase Agreements for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
RMB2,560,000.

The above continuing connected transactions has followed the
policies and guidelines when determining the price and terms of the
transactions conducted for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The auditor of the Group has reviewed the continuing connected
transactions referred to above and confirmed to the Board that the
continuing connected transactions: (i) have received the approval of the
Board; (ii) were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group; (i)
were entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
the transaction; and (iv) have not exceeded the caps.

EEEWE

8. EmIMHERGHR

MN201759818R A& A A
BN EZENBLRESLEE(A
EAGRARKXKEMBLAR I LE
mEMERBE B ()KMAE
BEOEELTHERBENER
BEEEEDNKBERNEME &
(I EELAFARZELRMEE N AH
ER - 8ELATAAKMNEENES
"E s AEREETRUETTA

EmMBERERBEETHRS
%ﬁzﬁ, BERS -

ERMEMERBEASEH=F

E2017F11 868 # £20204%8
B31HI AIRKZIMEH=F -

HAMNE LR REREEER
VER - BEFIEBEZSHEALTAH
B A2017F9 A 18 H k2017 F 11
B6BHMAE -

B E2017F - 2018F K 2019F
128318 It F E UK & £2020
F8HA3IHILENE A REE
REHEEFZENRINEE
FBR % Bl & A K #50,700,000
T+ A R %#141,300,000T * A
B #£205,500,000T & A B #
178,333,000t - BRAF BN ES
MBS MRMFE33 - HE2017F
12A31HLEEE REEREMH
ERBGREELENERSSEAAR
#% 2 560,000 JT °

S ERER ZNEEBE 2017 F 12
A31 B FEETHR S B R
SETHERRIES -

AEBEZEMEER LM —n;%ﬁl_st
% UWOEEERR  ZEFEBRER
S ()CEESSHE, (\(FTELEE
WEBBEE ; (i) RIBREXZ WEEH
A R (v) BB H LR -

2017 Annual Report



96

Directors’ Report

ESERE

The independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
above continuing connected transactions were entered into by the
Group: (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business; (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreement (including the pricing principle and guidelines set out
therein) governing them and on terms that were fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company has designated a team of senior management from
business operation, legal, risk control and finance departments
and Board office to monitor the continuing connected transactions
and ensure that the continuing connected transactions with the
abovementioned connected persons are on arm’s length basis and that
the annual caps are not exceeded. Such team of senior management
continuously traces and regularly monitors the progress of the
continuing connected transactions and reports to management of the
Company. They review the continuing connected transactions with the
finance department to ensure that annual caps are not exceeded. They
will also communicate with the Audit Committee, management and
the Board of Directors, monthly or as needed, to report the progress
of the continuing connected transactions, and request for approval
of new changes of existing transaction terms. The heads of different
departments of the Company will be informed on a periodic basis in
relation to the terms and pricing policies of the continuing connected
transactions as well. The Audit Committee has also assigned the
independent internal audit team the task to ensure that the Company’s
internal control measures in respect of the continuing connected
transactions remain effective and complete. With these measures, the
independent non-executive Directors could therefore assess and give
the confirmations in the preceding paragraph.

Save for disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2017,
we have not entered into any connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Rules
14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, there were no transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or its connected
entity (within the meaning of Section 486 of the Companies Ordinance)
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, and subsisting
during the year ended 31 December 2017 or as of 31 December 2017.
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected and Continuing
Connected Transactions” above, no contract of significance was
entered into between the Company, or one of its subsidiary companies,
and any of its Controlling Shareholders or subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2017 and
up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Article 33 of the Articles of Association and subject to
Cayman Islands Companies Law, each Director shall be indemnified,
out of the assets of the Company, against all losses or liabilities
incurred or sustained by him as a Director in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his/
her favor, or in which he/she is acquitted.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2017.

REMUNERATION POLICY, DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
PENSION SCHEME

As at 31 December 2017, we had 1,919 employees. The remuneration
of our employees includes salaries and allowances. We provide training
to our staff to enhance technical and product knowledge. The Group’s
remuneration policies are formulated based on the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to the Directors.
Other emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to the
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of
the Group. Details of the Directors’ remuneration during the year ended
31 December 2017 are set out in note 35 to the Financial Statements.

In accordance with the laws and regulations in the PRC, the Group
has arranged for its PRC employees to join defined contribution
plans, including pension, medical, housing and other welfare benefits,
organised by the PRC government. No forfeited contribution under this
scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
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The Group also provides social insurance, including pension insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related injury insurance and medical
insurance for the employees of the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company did not have
any share option scheme which was required to be disclosed.

THE RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME

The Company has approved and adopted a RSU Scheme by a
resolution of the Shareholders on 24 February 2016 and a resolution of
the Board on 24 February 2016. The RSU Scheme is not subject to the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules as the RSU Scheme does
not involve the grant of options by the Company to subscribe for new
Shares.

The RSUs do not carry any right to vote at general meetings of the
Company. No RSU grantee shall enjoy any of the rights of a Shareholder
by virtue of the grant of an award of RSUs (the “Award”) pursuant to
the RSU Scheme, unless and until such Shares underlying the Award
are actually transferred to the RSU grantee upon vesting of the RSU.
Unless otherwise specified by the Board in its entire discretion, the
RSU grantees do not have any rights to any cash or non-cash income,
dividends or distributions and/or the sale proceeds of non-cash and non-
scrip distributions from any Shares underlying an Award. Please refer to
the section headed “Appendix IV — Statutory and General Information”
of the Prospectus for details.

The Company approved and granted 9,140,000 RSUs among which
1,510,000 were granted to two Directors pursuant to the RSU Scheme
on 28 December 2016. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 28 December 2016 for details.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no RSU had been
granted or agreed to be granted by the Company pursuant to the RSU
Scheme.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no equity-linked
agreement entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the respective percentage
of purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and five
largest suppliers in aggregate was 7.5% and 26.8%; and the respective
percentage of the total sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers in aggregate was 33.5% and
54.6%.

Our largest customer was Xinpai Shanghai, second largest customer
was Sichuan Xinpai Catering Management Co., Ltd.* (9| FTRE&RE
EAPRAF), which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Singapore Haidilao,
third largest customer was Sichuan Haidilao and fifth largest customer
was Singapore Haidilao.

Except as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had a material interest in our five largest suppliers or customers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2017.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code. Specific enquiries have
been made to all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the Model Code since the Listing Date and up
to the date of this annual report.

The Company’s employees, who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company, have also been subject to the Model Code
for securities transactions. No incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by the Company’s employees was noted by the Company since
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.
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ESERE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company had applied the principles and code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and has complied with the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code for the year ended 31
December 2017.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
certified public accountants.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of
the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS AND RECORD DATE

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Sunday,
22 April 2018 to Friday, 27 April 2018, both days inclusive, in order
to determine the eligibility of the Shareholders to attend and vote at
the AGM. The Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Friday, 20 April
2018 will be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 20 April 2018.
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The register of members of the Company will also be closed from
Friday, 4 May 2018 to Monday, 7 May 2018, both days inclusive, in
order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to the final
dividend. The Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Monday, 7 May
2018 will be entitled to the final dividend. In order to be eligible to entitle
to the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates and transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, 3 May 2018.

By order of the Board
Shi Yonghong
Chairman of the Board

Hong Kong, 4 April 2018
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Yihai International Holding Ltd. (hereinafter “Yihai”, “the Group” or
“We”) is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) report for the year ended 31 December 2017. This is the
second ESG report we have disclosed to the public regarding our ESG
management philosophy and performance of our practices. We hope
that this report will disclose the concepts and practices on sustainable
development of the Group in a transparent manner and enhance the
mutual understanding and communication of the various stakeholders
of the Group.

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This report covers the period from 1 January to 31 December 2017,
the same as the annual report, with some parts dated back to previous
years. All data are from the Group’s internal documents or statistical
reports.

PREPARATION BASIS OF THIS REPORT

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”), Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Exchange Listing Rules”) by Hong
Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”). We follow the principles
of importance, quantification, balance and consistency, and strive to
fully represent our current management status and performance results
in terms of environment, society and governance. For details of the
Group’s performance results, please refer to the Annual Report of Yihai
International Holding Ltd. For the Year Ended 31 December 2017.
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The Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Concept
and System

The Group believes that sustainable and sound ESG performance
is essential to the sustainable development of our business
and the community we operate in. The dynamic combination
of commercial and social needs is bound to embrace more
influential social effects. Yihai is not only committed to achieving
sound financial performance, but also realising greater overall
benefits through actively identifying stakeholders’ expectations,
discovering areas where our business development coheres
with environmental and social demands, exercising prudent
management over our environmental and social risks, and fully
integrating our existing and potential resources to provide more
value-added products and services for the society.

1.1 ESG Accountability Structure

In order to integrate the idea of ESG accountability into the
Group’s strategic decisions in a more effective way and to
further guide the implementation of related work, we have
established an ESG working group led by the Group’s
senior management, with all group members consisting of
persons in charge of the respective functional departments.
In addition, we have also formed an ESG management
organisational structure which includes the participation
of the senior management, horizontal coordination of
all functional departments, and vertical coverage of all
subsidiary companies, to ensure our ESG management
system is fundamentally in line with the Group’s own
business development mode, thus laying solid foundation for
improving our ESG performance.

The Board
e ey

ESG Working Group
ESG L/
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1.2 Stakeholder Engagement

1.2 Fla 66588

We are deeply aware that the sustainable development
of an enterprise is closely related to the participation and
support of the stakeholders. Therefore, we have maintained
effective communication with the stakeholders through
various channels since our establishment, in an attempt to
duly understand and actively respond to their comments and
demands, thus making our business and operations better
satisfy their needs and expectations through continuous
enhancement of internal optimisation and management.

Major Stakeholders Top Concerns

Communication Channels

ﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁ%%?ﬁ%%?ﬁ
FEEBEANSEREIFER
HEEE - DBNILES > &ﬁ
BRZHREHESNZAEBS
ETRWER  RETHIE
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Our Responses

T ZEMEE 7 TERTHE AR A Bl E
Governmental Implementation of e Policy orientation e |mplementing
regulatory energy conservation regulatory policies
authorities and emission reduction
B ERPS SEEETRERHE HEE[ EEBEEHRESBE
Improvement of e Legislative and non- e Accepting relevant
corporate governance legislative documents examinations
TENARE SERFESAME S B HEEER
Lawful operation e On-site and off-site e Executing green
inspections operations
BEERKE BN IFE TR EiTHReKE
e Optimising corporate
governance system
BN ERERAR
Investors The Group’s business e Disclosure of relevant e Publishing our
strategies reports performance results
on a regular basis
REHE NEREE HEREKE EHRRAREE
Return on investment e Shareholders’ e Strengthening
Meeting management of risk
and internal control
RE LK REXE IR REEE

Securing the interests
of investors

REEREE DS

Accuracy and
transparency of
information disclosure

FEREFELERZEN
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Major Stakeholders

Top Concerns

R  HERERHRE

Communication Channels Our Responses

FIZEERA TEMEHE BERE A [El
Employees e Remuneration and e Staff activities e Providing diversified
welfare benefits staff activities
1= HENER ETEE LR LETEE
e Occupational health e |Internal e Developing platforms
and safety communication for learning and
development
BERREZE A TREZFRRYE
e Career development e Fully protecting
and trainings employees’ rights
BT BRI EHREE TR
Consumers e Product quality and e The Group’s official e Optimising product
safety media platform quality assurance
system
HEE EmEEHEZR REBELEETE BlLEREERA
® Precautionary e Customer complaint e Improving service
measures for hotline quality
information leakage
PrEi &R R BEFRFER RARBES
e Sound customer * Product marketing e Protecting
service channels consumers’ rights
and interests
2% FR% EmHERE REEHEE X RER
Suppliers e Fair cooperation e Regular e Developing a fair and
communication impartial procurement
system
HERE DNEEE EHEBERE NP RAENERBHE

e Honesty and promise
keeping
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e Coordinated
development

EIE R

Routine return visits

EEAEE

Business meetings

4

5

[GES-

Cooperation
agreements
SEWHE

|

Attaching importance
to environmental and
social risks
ERBREL SRS

Realising sustainable
partnerships

BRUHESFRE

2017 Annual Report



The Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

Major Stakeholders Top Concerns Communication Channels Our Responses

FIZHERA FTEMEHE BERE A Bl e
Community and e Charity and public e Charitable activities e Carrying out
the public welfare charitable and
voluntary activities
HEEAR NEREZE NHBETH FRAZREREER
o)
e Community sustainable e Voluntary activities e Caring for returns
development on community
investment
HEAEHFERR EREEEE TEMERREDE
e  Community relations e  Community
investment
HEBEE HERE

1.3 ESG#EEEMFFL
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1.3 Materiality Assessment of ESG Topics

Based on the stakeholder engagement study conducted in
the previous year, we communicated with representatives
of stakeholders this year through various ways like on-line
questionnaire, group discussion and telephone interview
to understand their specific requests and real assessment
on the materiality of 11 ESG topics such as environment,
employment, employee health and development, labour
standards, supply chain management, product liability, anti-
corruption and community investment, so as to detect areas
that can be improved and further enhance the quality of
ESG-related practices.

Based on the feedback from the stakeholders and taking
into account the trend of the Group’s business development,
we have accomplished materiality analysis and assessment
of ESG topics for this reporting year. The assessment results
showed that topics in relation to emissions, resources
utilisation, environmental and social resources, labour
standards, product responsibility and anti-corruption were
of higher importance from a comprehensive perspective. We
have provided more targeted responses to these topics of
higher importance, without prejudice to the strict compliance
with disclosure requirements in the ESG Reporting Guide.
The following matrix shows the results of our materiality
assessment:
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Highly Important
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Environmental Management

The Group practices sustainable development concepts of low-
carbon, environmental protection, energy saving and emission
reduction, while simultaneously updating the base of applicable
laws and regulations in real time through paying close attention
to official websites of the national and local authorities governing
safety and environmental protection affairs. At the same time, we
make continuous improvements to our systems in accordance
with updated requirements to ensure the Group’s operational
activities are legitimate and in line with regulations. In 2017, we
actively identified and complied with environment-concerned
laws and regulations newly issued at national and local levels,
including the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Administrative Measures for the Licensing
of Radioisotopes and Radiation Devices, the Catalogue for
Classification Management of Stationary Source Emission Permit
(2017), the Regulations on the Administration of Construction
Project Environmental Protection and the Administrative
Measures for Environmental Protection Acceptance of Completed
Construction Projects (Decree No. 13 of the Ministry of
Environmental Protection). While enhancing our environmental
management system, the Group has been exploring feasible
energy-saving and emission reduction technologies and
procedures during the course of business. Besides, The Group
has also attempted to strengthen the effective supervision and
management at all levels, to shape and enhance the staff’s
awareness of environmental protection, with an attempt to
minimise the impact of our production and operation activities on
the surrounding environment. No violation of laws and regulations
or legal action concerning environmental protection was reported
in 2017.
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Improving Environmental Management System

In view of further improving our environmental management,
we integrated characteristics of our own operations
to update and prepare 12 class A production safety
management systems in 2017, including the Management
System of Inspection on Safety and Environmental
Protection, the Management System of Trainings on
Safety and Environmental Protection and the Safety and
Environmental Hazards Management System, which helped
to sort out our business processes in a systematic way.
These systems specified the environmental management
accountability at different levels and implemented localised
management to effectively perform energy-saving and waste
control measures, making our environmental management
more standardised and normalised. The Group’s Risk
Management and Audit Department conducts special audits
on a monthly basis to monitor factories’ implementation of
these systems in an effective way. Moreover, we organise
factory employees at the group leader level or above on a
regular basis to polish and revise the relevant systems for
further improvement on the implementation feasibility. The
Supply Management Department conducts compliance
audits for the operation of safety and environmental
protection systems in factories to ensure their businesses
are completely compliant with laws and regulations.

Controlling Pollutant

The group has continued to push ahead various regulatory
measures in term of controlling pollutant, covering three
primary aspects such as emission control, wastewater
treatment and solid waste management.

Emission Control

Regarding the aspect of emission control, factories of the
Group cleaned out old and obsolete equipment, introduced
new energy-saving steam boilers that primarily use natural
gas as fuel, and replaced some gas-fired woks with steam-
heated woks in the stir-frying workshops, resulting in greatly
reducing exhaust gas emissions. At the same time, all
factories have been equipped with extraction hoods and oil
smoke purifiers. When stir-frying ingredients, the oily fames
are first absorbed by gas-collecting hoods and then purified
by the oil smoke purifier until it meets the standards required
for discharge.
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Wastewater Treatment

Due to our business nature, sewage mainly comes from the
wok washing water discharged by stir-frying workshops.
In this regard, all factories have installed a set of vacuum
centralised suction and discharge system and oil-water
separation system for the wok washing water to avoid
direct discharge of sewage containing waste oil. In addition,
all the factories of the Group have sewage treatment
stations. Waste water produced from factory canteen is first
pretreated by an oil filter and purification tank, and is then,
together with domestic sewage from the factory area, sent
to the sewage treatment station in the factory area for further
treatment. Finally, the treated wastewater is discharged into
the municipal sewage treatment plant in the industrial park.

Solid Waste Management

The Group has developed a sound solid waste treatment
mechanism, and performs compliance audit monthly.
Meanwhile, waste storage warehouses and classified
storage bins are equipped, and the wastes collected are
classified into general solid waste and hazardous waste.
Wastes produced by all the factories have been sent to
qualified professional waste treatment companies for
processing. These include solid waste residues from primary
and auxiliary materials, oil residue, waste oil collected by oil
smoke purifiers and waste package materials. Household
wastes have been handled in a centralised manner on a
daily basis. We have employed qualified third parties for
the treatment of all hazardous wastes, including waste
chemical reagents, waste toner cartridges and ink cartridges
and hazardous waste batteries with special symbols. All
hazardous wastes produced by factories of the Group
have been treated in line with laws and regulations. In
addition, the Group uses energy-saving lamps instead of
fluorescent lamps, to further achieve energy conservation
and environmental protection and reduce the production of
hazardous waste.
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2.3 Promoting Energy Efficiency

We have continued to explore and implement practical
energy-saving technologies and measures in our daily
production and operation, and have updated and developed
a series of management methods and operating procedures
for improving utilisation efficiency of energy, water resources
and raw materials for production.

In February 2017, a brainstorm session was launched
company-wide to analyse and evaluate the existing process,
to detect unstable risk factors and waste points existed
in process flows, and standardise the staff operation and
processing parameters of production equipment. The
optimisation and adjustment of the production process not
only ensured the stability of product quality, but also further
improved the efficiency of resource utilization. Case-based
results achieved in the optimisation and adjustment of the

BRIR -8Rk
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Group’s production process in 2017 include: FIR T - 2017 FE AR EBEE
TERBILRFRMEBRRE

N
Improvement in the Originally, the chicken essence in condiment products had to be processed
repeated processing again after ingredients proportioning. After the modification, we returned

of chicken essence to the original chicken essence formula, no longer involving processing
procedures like drying and granulation, which in turn reduced energy
consumption and processing cost. The implementation of this project has
shortened the processing chain, and also provided quality assurance, with
an annual saving in processing cost of RMB 350,000.

FEEMERPHEBKSBRAEZERRMNT - s’ RMERLEEBHNE
HES  THETER BNSNIIE  LUBRLEEERMIAE - ZEEH
Bit@ETNIE  RETERmE  SFUERBINTIEAIBBEIAR

EEERMNINEEE

o
Improvements of net By introducing SPC (Statistics, Process, Control) tools, we analysed the
weight control accuracy and process capability of each equipment, with a focus on over-

packaged or short-packaged products. This project has not only guaranteed
the stability of the product tastes, but also improved the yield rate, realising
a cost saving of approximately RMB 600,000 per year.

FEEREEE BBEASTIAREES (SPC) TR » KMo MBERBENBERFIRERED ¥
ZEVEDDETEE - ZIEANETHRRETEMAKRNIEE  ES 7 HK
= GFEUERBIRAIN0ETARE -
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Improvements of We made statistics on losses and waste in production process batches,
defective products and analysed categories and causes of defective products. Meanwhile,
Green Belt DMAIC tools were also engaged to improve defective products.
The implementation of this project has shortened the batching process and

mitigated the risk of defective goods flowing into the market.

RmEEE BYLEBREMANBRRERIESR  2MARELRELRRE @ BEF A
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DMAIC#ZF® TAREXMER - ZBEMEERD TEEMR  BET XM

MATISH R

In the fourth quarter of 2017, we employed in our
headquarters and Zhengzhou factory lean engineers
specialised in planning, organisation and promotion of lean
production, in an attempt to achieve a higher level of energy-
saving, emission reduction and energy efficiency. With
the engagement of lean engineers, we have achieved the
following improvements:

e Application of automation to the bottleneck process
to better the working environment, reduce staff fatigue
and improve production and manufacturing efficiency;

e Implementation of 5S on-site lean management tools
to eliminate on-site material sluggish, improve site
utilization and reduce waste of resources;

e Introduction of the OEE (Overall Equipment
Effectiveness) indicator and development of the TPM

2017FEMEE - HMELK
ELQ BB EPREE N TRBELERE
w26 EFEEREEE
FRE - ABEEETE UE
WE K FHEIBERBEIL L -
BifEfdm TRME  RMEE
BERTUTEBEMNIGE :

e ETHMEIFBEEHX
o UREFERXRE
BEETIREE RS
EEBRGENER

e HITSSHERmER
TE BERRSWER
o RSEMERR
BOERRE ;

e S ACEE(REHREN
R)ER AFEETPM

(Total Productive Maintenance) project to reduce (ZEEEHEE)ER -
equipment downtime and improve equipment operating RERBEER BH
efficiency; REETRE;

e Promotion of process improvements to control overflow
amounts, shorten stir-frying time, reduce material input,
improve the lean level of process parameters and
reduce energy consumption.
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In terms of the use of water resources, factories of the
Group have introduced evaporative condensers to improve
the recycling rate of indirect cooling water, conducted daily
inspection on water dripping and leakage at each water
consuming point and cancelled unnecessary ones. Our
spraying water circulation system was also newly installed
for deodorisers in the workshop to reduce the waste of
water resources. In addition, the Group also organised
relevant departments to formulate water-saving and energy-
saving measures, and strengthened efforts on enhancing
water-saving, energy-saving and gas-saving awareness
through posting slogans and posters. Through the promotion
of various energy-saving measures, comprehensive
energy consumption per unit product of each factory has
declined, and employees’ awareness on energy-saving and
environmental protection has been enhanced.

Minimising our Impact on Nature

Because of the business characteristics of the Group, our
impact on the environment and natural resources is limited,
nevertheless we are still committed to taking effective
management measures in day-to-day operations to further
reduce any significant impact of our business activities on
the nature. When selecting and procuring raw materials
for production, factories of the Group, particularly our
Maanshan Production Base was newly established in 2017,
sourced raw materials as close as possible to the factory
location or its vicinity to shorten the delivery distance with
maximum reduction in vehicle fuel consumption and exhaust
gas emissions, thus reducing the carbon footprint in the
environment by transportation.

24
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2.5 Enhancing Environmental Performance

Unless otherwise stated, the information listed below
represents the data and performance of Yihai International
Chengdu Yueyihai Trading Co., Ltd. and Zhengzhou Shuhai
Industrial Co., Ltd. for the period from 1 January to 31
December 2017. The Production Bases in Bazhou city Hebei
Province is still under construction and the Production Base
in Maanshan city Anhui Province will commence operation
formally in 2018, therefore they are not included in the scope
of disclosure this year.

Emissions B
Chengdu Zhengzhou
Total Yueyihai Shuhai
Indicators ER Ei R ED 1 BE BB B
Annual production (tonnes) Z&4EEE(HE) 50,681.38 16,436.62 34,244.76
Emissions (tonnes) FERBER AR 2 (W8) 28.12 1.63 26.49
Stationary sources (] E R BE SR BE A (M) * 28.12 1.63 26.49
emission (tonnes)’
No2 (tonnes) —&feam(ng) 0.67 0.23 0.44
So2 (tonnes) k= A7) 0.27 0.09 0.18
Fume (tonnes) S (ME) 26.52 0.33 25.43
Smoke and dust (tonnes) JZEEE (WE) 0.66 0.22 0.44
Annual emissions per unit of 2 FEEENESRERHE
production (tonnes/tonnes) 2 HAEE (HE, W) 2 0.00055 0.00009 0.00077
Total waste water pollutants /K54 HER 9.07 1.31 7.76
discharged (tonnes)® s (g
COD emission (tonnes) {LEFESFE (COD) 3.75 0.48 3.27
Herg= (W)
BOD5 emission (tonnes) 5 BH4E{LFEE = (BOD5) 0.93 0.09 0.84
Perg = (Wg)
Suspended solids (tonnes) SF Y (W) 3.29 0.61 2.68
Ammonia and nitrogen (tonnes) & (W) 0.73 0.12 0.61

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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Chengdu Zhengzhou
Total Yueyihai Shuhai
Indicators E1Z EAR R EB 1 B BN &8
Animal and vegetable oils EptE YoM (W)
(tonnes) 0.37 0.01 0.36
Annual waste water pollutants 2 EEENEEREIK
discharged per unit of SR
production (tonnes/tonnes) AR E (WE,TE) 0.00018 0.000080 0.00023
Total hazardous FEREEYRE ()
waste (tonnes) 0* 0 0
Waste chemical reagent (tonnes)/E&{t 22 5 2 (W ) 0 0 0
Waste engine oil (tonnes) JEE A4 e (g ) 0 0 0
Waste mineral oil (tonnes) REHE ) (W) 0 0 0
Waste lead-acid accumulators EEEHE St (W)
(tonnes) 0 0 0
Waste fluorescent JBE 58 S % (W)
lamps (tonnes) 0 0 0
Others (tonnes) Ho A (W) 0 0 0
Annual hazardous waste per unit2 FSENEEFE
of production (tonnes/tonnes)  EEEY) 48 & (W, WF) 0 0 0
Total non-hazardous mEREYRE ()
waste (tonnes)® 5,831.35 1,939.25 3,892.10
Household waste (tonnes) 4 SE DR (W) 198.25 18.25 180.00
Sludge at sewage treatment
stations (tonnes) 75K IE35 e (W) 1,200.00 120.00 1,080.00
Production waste (tonnes) 4 EREY) (W) 4,433.10 1,801.00 2,632.10
Annual non-hazardous waste
per unit of production PERENEERERE
(tonnes/tonnes) By (NE, W) 0.12 0.12 0.11
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Note:

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.

Waste gases emitted from stationary sources are consisted
of nitrogen oxides, sulphur dioxide, fume and particulates
contained in exhausted gases emitted by factories, which
mainly come from the burning of natural gas. Among others,
the nitrogen dioxide emission is calculated based on the
Coefficients on Pollutants Generated from the Combustion of
Coal and Natural Gas, sulphur dioxide emission is calculated
based on the Practical Data Handbook for Environmental
Protection, fume emission is calculated based on the data
in monitoring reports prepared by third parties, and smoke
and dust emission is calculated based on the Coefficients
on Pollutants Generated from the Combustion of Coal and
Natural Gas.

Our self-owned vehicles did not consume much petrol and
diesel, and according to the principle of materiality, the data
of mobile source emissions is not disclosed.

The data of COD (Chemical Oxygen Demand) emission, BOD5
(5th Biochemical Oxygen Demand) emission, suspended
solids, ammonia nitrogen indicator in waste water discharged
from stationary sources is calculated based on total waste
water discharged at the outlet of sewage treatment stations
multiplied respectively by the average concentration of BODS5,
total phosphorus, ammonia and nitrogen at the outlet.

Hazardous waste is handed over to qualified third parties for
treatment, and is calculated based on the data recorded on
the hazardous waste transfer manifests or receipts of waste
recyclers during the reporting period. It is 0 we recorded as
no transfer or sales were made during the reporting period.
Therefore the data of the current report period is 0.

Non-hazardous waste includes household waste, sludge
at sewage treatment stations and production waste, and is
calculated based on the data provided by factories, waste
pick-up units, or third-party waste recyclers.

'EH:

IE] 72 IR % SR T IR A A S
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Energy and water resources consumption

R  HERERHRE

BER R K ERBFR
Chengdu Zhengzhou

Total Yueyihai Shuhai
Indicator L EE4R R EB IR R B FE
Total energy consumption BERHERE

(MWh)? (JKELBS)® 38,167.97 12,701.38 25,466.59
Direct energy consumption

(MWh) HERREFZECRRE) 30,130.63 10,251.58 19,879.05
Natural gas consumption (MWh) X ASKER JkEE)  29,057.82 10,158.83 19,798.99
Petrol consumption (MWh) FUBEREE (JKFLR) 30.52 0 30.52
Diesel consumption (MWh) SomERE KRR 142.29 92.75 49.54
Indirect energy consumption  BEEREFSEAE (JRFLEF)

(MWh) 8,037.34 2.449.80 5,587.54
Electricity consumption (MWh) &858 (JEFREF) 8,037.34 2,449.80 5,587.54
Annual energy consumption per £ F S B EERFH

unit of production FECKRE M)

(MWh/tones) 0.75 0.77 0.74
Municipal water consumption T Bl B 37k $% A £ (i)

(tonnes) 165,529.00 52,532.00 112,997.00
Annual municipal water *EFENEETRAE

consumption per unit of RoKFEFE (WE, W)

production (tonnes/tonnes) 3.27 3.20 3.30

Note:

6.

Energy consumption data, including electricity consumption,
natural gas consumption and fuel consumption of company-
financed vehicles, is calculated based on the consumption of
electricity and fuel, and the conversion factors provided in the
General Principles for Calculation of Total Production Energy
Consumption (GB/T 2589-2008) by the General Administration
of Quality Supervision, Inspection and Quarantine of
the People’s Republic of China and the Standardization
Administration of the People’s Republic of China.

ﬁ_l}:

6. RERHEZHRIERRIEEH
RRHEEERTEAR
HAANBEREEEBRER
BRHBEBEREELEEE
EETBRNEREERETE
B A (GB/T 2589-2008 )iz
HOEBEERE TFETS
& > BEEN - RARHNA
B o
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[ ER=3

Greenhouse Gas Emissions BERBHHE
Total

Indicator B E4a
Total greenhouse emissions mEREHMAE

(Scope 1 and Scope 2) (Tonnes) (HE—REE_) (KE)’ 11,133.02
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (tonnes) HiEHER (g —) (Hg) 5,902.72

Natural gas RAR 5,857.84

Petrol and diesel b)Y 44.88
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) (tonnes) Rk p (ke —) (M§) 5,230.30

Outsourced power INBE 5,230.30
Annual greenhouse gas emissions per 2EBENEEREREIM (M, W)

unit of production (tonnes/tonnes) 0.22
Note: i
7. Greenhouse gas include carbon dioxide, methane and nitrous 7. EERBEEAE S

oxide, mainly resulted from outsourcing electricity, natural
gas consumption, diesel consumption of diesel-powered
generators and company-financed vehicles. Greenhouse
gas emissions are measured in carbon dioxide equivalents
and calculated based on the Baseline Emission Factors for
Regional Power Grids in China (2015) issued by National
Development and Reform Commission and the 2006 IPCC
Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories of

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change.

[ #2 f2 A BR 2 7 Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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Packaging Materials Consumption BEMMERE
Chengdu Zhengzhou
Total Yueyihai Shuhai
Indicator it EA S EB 15 B i BN &
Total packaging materials
consumption (tonnes) B RHME RS () 4,569.19 1,046.70 3,522.49
Tabs consumption (tonnes) BEFERE ) 32.37 13.63 18.74
Inner packing bags consumption
(tonnes) R LREAE (1) 360.64 174.76 185.88
Condiment product packaging
boxes consumption (tonnes) &I 581 F 2 (W) 2,510.83 615.64 1,895.19
White boxes consumption
(tonnes) BfEEA=(H) 155.31 6.45 148.86
Sauce product packaging boxes
consumption (tonnes) ERlaEATAE () 147.33 84.64 62.69
Trays consumption (tonnes) RS () 532.21 74.92 457.29
Small white barrels (including ~ &B&#/NH &
cover, barrel body and handle) (% - &5 - 18F)
consumption (tonnes) fFRAE (M) 126.21 8.73 117.48
Condiment product rolling film
consumption (tonnes) KRS EEAE (1) 704.29 67.93 636.36
Annual packing materials
consumption per unit of 2EBENEERE
production (tonnes/tonnes) A RHE A = (WE, W) 0.09 0.06 0.10
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Employment 3. BABR
Employees are not only our most valuable asset, but also EIREMEEENEE  LEA
the key for the planning and long-term development of the ARIRBERNER - THEER
Group. When establishing and developing the Group’s human SEAESEERZ GEASER
resources management system, we have been tracking and HIENBRES  KMFEERLZ
referring to national laws and regulations governing employment ZHER EIBEEEBENERE
and employees, such as the Labour Law of People’s Republic BER (P EARAFNES
of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic L) (PEARENELEEBSE
of China, the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the E) (P EARAEFMBIARKF AR
Protection on Minors, the Law of the People’s Republic of EE) (PEARXNBEFEZRE
China on the Protection of Rights and Interests of Women, as ERREL)E  LWBFEESGH
well as administrative rules at operating sites. The Group pays et BN EIEESE - RIFIEE
great attention to having measures in place to ensure equal BEFETENERER  THE
employment opportunities. We strictly abide by the legal laws and T%5] - @5 Rib - BREBS
regulations in the process of signing, renewing, terminating and BEBRREF  RMBREETEER
cancelling labour contracts with employees, in order to guarantee F BB REHRBAFAM
all relevant procedures are implemented in terms of fair, open DIE - E(EEETHREEEFE)
and justice. Any discrimination such as nationality, age, race, EITTHRNAE  TATHRE
geographical location and family status in the recruitment process - Fik - BE - iE - REMRR
are also forbidden pursuant to the Yihai Employee Recruitment ZREMEFNERITA  HBHE
Management Policy. In addition, employment of child labour EBEAEMIRIEENRR -
is strictly prohibited, and fool-proof modules have been newly KMt ARATELIEREET - B
integrated into our human resource information system to ensure BIBMASBEERGSHIP RER -
that the information of candidates under 16 years old cannot be RBEARB 16 AmAKREE S EEE
input successfully. Further, the system of flexible working hours BARTRRS - E(ZHEBRH
was introduced in the Attendance and Welfare System to prohibit VAP IZANEE M TR - 2510 HIRR
any forced labour. The Group confirms that it did not engage in BEHRR - NEEBERNR 2017 F
any illegal employment in 2017. ERIEIEEREAEAMET -
Total Headcount by Age Group BT FE7 gL

Total
Description 1HB B4
Under 30 years old 30m T (A) 889
30-40 (exclusive) years old 30BmMEA0B(FE)(A) 652
40-50 (exclusive) years old ARES05(FE)(N) 343
Over 50 years old 508% (&) A E(A) 35
Employment Overview ETEEREL

Total
Description 1HEB B4
Total Headcount SR 1,919
Male SMESRE(A) 1,116
Female LHEERH(A) 803
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Total Headcount by Region® BT ihERmERS
Total
Description HH Ea
Employees in East China ERMEST AZ(A) 368
Employees in Central and South China FREthEE T AZ(A) 983
Employees in North China ZWEETAB(A) 292
Employees in Northwest China Al EE T AR(A) 28
Employees in Southwest China AEtEE T AB(A) 226
Employees in Northeast China RibtEE T AB(A) 22
Note: 7
8.  East China covers Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Anhui, Fujian, 8. EEWE: LiF - STE T
Jiangxi and Shandong. T BE IR LR
Central and South China covers Henan, Hubei, Hunan, Guangdong, hEgME AR - AL - HEE
Guangxi and Hainan. BR - BER - 8/
North China covers Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shanxi and Inner FEiWE b - K2 A4
Mongolia. L - REH
Northwest China covers Ningxia, Xinjiang, Qinghai, Shaanxi and AtwE: 285 - HE - 5§
Gansu. pRA - HEE
Southwest China covers Chongqging, Sichuan, Guizhou, Yunnan AEtER:EEF @) &M -
and Tibet. Er AR
Northeast China covers Liaoning, Jilin and Heilongjiang. FRibhE - EE - HM - BET
Type of Employment BT EFEEE
Total
Description IHH Ea
Full-time staff ERETAH(A) 1,314
Contract staff RSN TAS(A) 605
Employee Turnover BT x4ER
Total
Description IHH Ea
Employees resigned BERBE T AZ(A) 349
Male employees resigned SMBBE T AZ(AN) 238
Female employees resigned ZHBEBE T AZ(A) 111
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Employee Turnover by Age Group BILRXIRFES M

Total
Description 1HH AR
Under 30 years old 0B AT (A) 175
30-40 (exclusive) years old 30BmEA0B(FE)(A) 124
40-50 (exclusive) years old ARES05(FE)(N) 46
Over 50 years old 508% (&) A E(A) 4
Employee Turnover by Region BT RN ES

Total
Description = R
Employees in East China ERMEST AZ(A) 62
Employees in Central and South China FREtEES T AZ(A) 195
Employees in North China ZWEETAB(A) 54
Employees in Northwest China AlhEE T AR(A) 5
Employees in Southwest China AEtEE T AB(A) 29
Employees in Northeast China RibtEE T AB(A) 4
Note: &

East China covers Shanghai, Jiangsu, Zhejiang, Anhui, Fujian, Jiangxi and
Shandong.

Central and South China covers Henan, Hubei, Hunan, Guangdong,
Guangxi and Hainan.

North China covers Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei, Shanxi and Inner Mongolia.
Northwest China covers Ningxia, Xinjiang, Qinghai, Shaanxi and Gansu.
Southwest China covers Chongqging, Sichuan, Guizhou, Yunnan and

Tibet.

Northeast China covers Liaoning, Jilin and Heilongjiang.
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3.1 Remuneration and Welfare Benefits

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group abides by the
national laws and regulations regarding minimum wage and
the basic welfare. Employees are entitled to various social
benefits and public holidays according to relevant laws. This
year, in order to strengthen the capacity of our talent team,
the Group has further improved the fair and transparent
remuneration review and promotion mechanism, providing
competitive remuneration based on different businesses
and job requirements, as well as employees’ personal
skills and performances. At the same time, the Group
provides comprehensive welfare benefits, including housing
subsidies, child care allowance, parental care allowance,
child education allowance, congratulatory gifts for birthday/
marriage/giving birth, injury allowance, and welfare for
grandparents etc., to enhance employee satisfaction and
their sense of belonging.

For the sales personnel, we offered vehicle subsidies this
year, based on job title, for employees who drive to work
with a driver’s license, in an attempt to keep them motivated
and to increase the frequency of visiting distributors,
dealers and points of sales at the same time, thus improving
customer satisfaction accordingly.

We regard the staff of third-party labour service companies
as an important part of our human resources framework. In
order to ensure their rights and interests, the Group recorded
their fingerprints for attendance checking by the Human
Resources Department, while the Production Department
was responsible for attendance recording in paper sheet. At
the end of each month, remuneration specialists review the
total working hours reported by all departments.

Due to different demands at different seasons for the
working force, we have started recruiting contract staff for
non-critical positions since around 2014 to satisfy increasing
demand for production personnel in the second half of each
year. For qualified contract staff, we provided piece rate pay
and commercial accident medical insurance, the same as
our employees. For those at high-risk positions, they were
additionally covered by the employer’s liability insurance.
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3.2 Health and Safety of Employees

The Group has been tracking and strictly complying with
national laws and regulations related to health and safety
that has a significant impact on production management and
day-to-day operations, including Labor Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases,
Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China,
and Interim Provisions on Supervision and Administration
of Work Safety at Food Production Enterprises etc. On this
basis, and combined with features of its operations, the
Group established a series of safety management policies,
including the Safety Inspection Management Policy, Hidden
Safety Risks Identification and Elimination Policy, Yihai
Work-related Injury Management Policy in order to firmly
implement production safety management, effectively
implement the identification of sources of dangers and risk
management, standardize production safety procedures,
reduce occupation hazardous risks to our employees,
standardize the work-related accident reporting process,
hold the management accountable, and thereby gradually
perfect the safety management system of the Group. As of
the end of 2017, there had been no deaths of the Group’s
employee arising from production safety accidents.

In 2017, the Group improved the occupational health
and safety management system continuously through
establishing and updating 12 A-class safety systems such
as The Safety Training System, Environmental Protection,
The Fire Protection, Occupational Health, Safety Production
Responsibility System, and The Safety Incident Management
System. In addition, more than 20 training materials for
safety production and occupational health were developed
and integrated into the Group’s training system, resulted in
the number of trainees reached 8,204 in 2017. In order to
strengthen the cultural of safety production internally, the
Group organized 12 safety cultural events such as “Safety
Promotion Month”, “Safety Knowledge Contest”, and
“Safety High-voltage Line” to promote the importance of
safety production. Meanwhile, in order to raise employees’
awareness of safety production, a total of 18 fire and
emergency drills were conducted in the past year, with a
total of 968 participants.
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Every year, the Group regularly organizes medical
examinations for all employees and new recruits. Relying
on the city-level Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
Center, the new recruits and employees with expired healthy
certification are subject to medical examinations. The Group
also cooperates with third-party physical examination
companies to arranges for an additional physical
examination every year for female employees, employees
with a high frequency business trip record, employees at
the management level or above and employees over 50
years, so as to help them recognize their health status
comprehensively and reduce occupational health risks. In
2017, the Group organized 387 medical examinations.
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Occupational Health and Safety® BEZEER®
Total

Description 1HH AR
Work-related deaths (persons) EIEREEHETIRT AZ(A) 0
Percentage of work-related deaths (%) EATITT AELLE(%) 0
Work-related injuries (persons) EAIZEAZ(AN) 2
Loss of work time due to work-related

injuries (person/day) AISEEIIERBE(AX) 171
Note: g

9. Data of health and safety is based on the information on
attendance sheets and statistics of manual recording.
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3.3 Training and Development of Employees

We are committed to forging an ideal career development
platform for our employees and cultivating talents in line with
our goals and development strategies through establishing
branded and professional talent development system. At the
same time, we constantly update our internal concepts on
talent cultivation based on the characteristics of condiment
industry, in combination with increasing requirements on the
comprehensive quality of employees and the tendency of
younger, better educated and more professional business
teams.

In 2017, we carried out large-scale campus recruitment in
agricultural colleges and universities for positions related
to product development, production, quality insurance and
others at new Production Bases located in Maanshan and
Bazhou. The goal was to improve the functional departments
of R&D, finance, marketing and customer service, and
reduce employment costs through effective construction of
talent echelon at the same time. Besides, we also strive to
attract university graduates to return to their hometown for
employment, to improve the stability of new recruits.
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In September 2017, the Group launched a new “Eyas
Programme” for management trainees, and targeted
graduates that majored in food science and engineering at
universities in Anhui, Henan, Hebei, Shaanxi and Sichuan
provinces. We recruited 30 new management trainees
through the Eyas Programme this year, injecting fresh blood
into various departments such as sales, customer service,
R&D, finance, foreign trade, supply, marketing and quality
assurance, as well as offices and factories. The Group
expects these trainees of “Eyas Programme” to become the
backbone of first-line management and technical positions
after 2-3 years of training, and to make a positive influence
on improving the staff structure and first-line management.
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“Eyas Programme”

Objectives

HEB®

Training Plan
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Our management trainee programme aims to enhance trainees’ sense of
organisational discipline and improve their comprehensive quality and ability
by “changing their attitude, teaching them knowledge and coaching them
skills” through systematic trainings, and at the same time, expose them to
Yihai’s corporate culture during the period of training to make them better
integrated into the Group and become qualified Yihaiers.

EEIEINEEI EEBBASCHIFIN - BB EFHREE Attitude) - BERHA
H 40 (Knowledge) ~ B 4AEH R (SKil) I=Z A EMESFIZT » BIFEE
FEMEBCEY  RARGESRERED - BF - SIIHRBBLERERSRZHE
BHEEXL  FHERGBAES - KA —SESHNEEA -

The Group provides centralised training for management trainees,
including on-board training, the training on company rules and regulations,
career development planning and internship. The management trainees
rotate between factory-based and skill-based positions, with a focus on
the selected position. After the internship, trainings are customized for
the position determined based on a trainee’s position selection and in
combination with the results of professional knowledge and occupational
personality tests.
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Development Route Position determination: Understand and track trainees’ adaptation,
integration and communication with their tutors at new positions through
seminars and summary meetings, in order to provide them with timely
guidance and assistance.

Position determination analysis semi-annually: Evaluate whether trainees
meet actual requirements of each position and whether any adjustment
is necessary. If yes, adjustment can be made based on considerations
integrated requirements of others positions and personal willingness.

THE BREAR ABER  BRRUBBWNS  A&TETRY THRATENITHERECNE
FE - BABR  EMEUREMESNEBRTIES  WERKHENERE
BAE -

FEER  FEERERACRMUERER  EOARBNLE - NFE -
ARBHEMEVNEREEAASBGRESEE

Trainees by Gender BRI B ZHER
Total
Description 1HH MR
Male (persons) BEMHETZINAE(N) 136
Female (persons) ZHEIZINAB(AN) 99
Male (%) EMEIZIEDL (%) 12
Female (%) ZHEIZIE DL (%) 12
Trainees by Position BETEEAZYIER
Total
Description 1HH MR
Total senior management (persons) SREEBAEEZ(AN) 17
Trainees from senior management (persons) SREERBAEZINEZ(A) 2
Percentage of trainees in SREEEZIIE D (%) 12
senior management (%)
Total middle management (persons) FREEBABHAH(AN) 60
Trainees from middle management PREREEASZIERE(A) 11
(persons)
Percentage of trainees in PREEEZIIBE DL (%) 18
middle management (%)
Total employees other than senior or HthtE T ASHEE(A) 1,842
middle management (persons)
Trainees from employees other than HihETZINAZE(AN) 220
senior or middle management (persons)
Percentage of trainees in employees other HMETZINE D (%) 12

than senior or middle management (%)
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Training Completion by Gender

R  HERERHRE

BB §EETRAEY
BR

Total
Description 1HH Ea
Total hours of training BT ZIIE /L 4,360
Male EMETIZINEE 2,688
Female ZMHETZINEE 1,672

Training Completion by Position

RETEANASEATRA
SR

Total

Description 1HH R

Training hours of senior management BREEREZIEE 576

Training hours of middle management PREEEZERE 264
Training hours of employees other HMWETZINEE

than senior or middle management 3,520

Product Responsibility

We always attach great importance to product quality
management, and devote ourselves to ensuring product safety
and quality and the legitimate rights and interests of consumers
through the continuous improvement of quality management. The
Group strictly abides by laws and regulations relating to products
and services, advertising, labelling and privacy issues within the
scope of business, and continues to follow up and identify the
latest updates to relevant laws and regulations.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
violation of laws and regulations governing product responsibility
regarding product quality, advertising, labelling, consumer privacy
and protection of their rights and interests, as well as any lawsuit
with significant impact on the Group.
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4.1 Product Quality and Safety

As a responsible food production enterprise, we strictly
manage and control each and every part of the production
procedure. In 2017, the Group continued to strictly observe
food-related laws and regulations and regulatory standards,
and committed ourselves to providing consumers with
qualified, safe and assured products and comprehensively
enhancing consumer confidence and satisfaction in our
products. We also carried out a project aiming to ensure all
products supplied in a stable quality, and further optimised
the appearance of raw materials, the production process and
quality standards of finished products through risk analysis
of the whole supply chain. At the same time, the Group has
set up a sensory testing system, under which a product was
tasted for feedback on its flavour in simulated consumption
scenarios during product release process, in an attempt to
provide a direction for improvement on consumers’ sensory
experience and reduce poor consumer experience due to
unstable taste of our products.

In addition, we have updated the product verification and
product recall process to further ensure product quality. We
implemented all-round quality verification process from raw
materials to finished products in a more rigorous way. For
example, we continued to strengthen the examination on
supplier access qualification and introduce only the qualified
suppliers by sample testing. Each batch of raw materials
were verified upon their delivery in accordance with relevant
standards. During production process, parameters were
determined and controlled based on the work flow. Each
batch of finished products were verified before delivery
from the factory to ensure every single product was in good
quality. We cooperated with IBM in 2017 to research and
develop the strategy and approach for a project focusing
on product traceability by two-dimensional code, in which
implementation and popularisation would make the product
quality verification more accurate and convenient.
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In terms of product recall, we revised our Food Recall
Management Policy in line with the enacted Measures for
the Administration of Food Recall. Through such revision, we
elaborated and improved relevant categories and emergency
measures for product recall, and added contact information
of local regulators, information of factory leaders and other
information, making product recall process more compliant,
clear and convenient. If a problem of quality or safety
was detected in the products in-stock, the Planning and
Warehousing Department would be informed immediately as
required to isolate the defective products in a timely manner
to stop delivery. If the delivered products were defective,
the Logistics Department would be informed to learn the
shipping destinations and communicate with relevant
distributors, logistics stations or stores in a timely manner
to stop selling, and isolate such products for inspection.
Follow-up measures would be taken later in accordance
with the Process for Handling Nonconforming Products to
prevent defective products flowing into the market. If the
sold products were reported to have safety problems, the
Group would make internal records according to consumers’
feedback in a timely manner, and relevant departments
would analyse the causes and put forward schemes for
improvement; at the same time, the Quality Assurance
Department and Customer Service Centre would coordinate
and cooperate to solve the problems of consumers in an
effective way.

The Group carried out product recall simulation drills
respectively in Chengdu and Zhengzhou factories in 2017
in accordance with the revised Food Recall Management
Policy, and simulated the whole process in a two-way
manner, providing references for handling quality-related
emergencies in a timely and proper way.
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4.2

In 2017, there was no product recall due to product safety
and health problems, and food safety and the legitimate
rights and interests of consumers were effectively protected.

Consumer Supervision and Feedback

With an attempt to actively respond to consumers’ feedback,
complaints, opinions and suggestions and provide them
reassurance in a timely manner, the Group has established
a sophisticated customer service system and customer
complaint response mechanism to make consumer
supervision and feedback channels.

Customer complaint staff are designated to record the
details of all types of complaints. In accordance with
Yihai Customer Complaint Management Measures, such
information will then be relayed to relevant departments of
the Group, such as the Quality Assurance Department, to
allocate responsibilities and to handle the case directly with
the complainant. Meanwhile, we will initiate processes for
product verification and recall, in order to solve the problem
from its root.
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In 2017, we further optimised the product packing process
and adjusted the priorities of production site control,
resulting in almost no complaints process regarding no
production date on the outer box and far less complaints
on short-packaged products. Besides, complaints on
airtightness of hand-made beef fat condiment products were
reduced by 93% through the improvement of packaging
materials and methods, and complaints on dilution of
sauce products were effectively settled by updating the
production process and adjusting product formulations.
At the same time, we continued to sort out and enrich
the Standard Terms for Product Feature Description and
extensively carry out activities to popularise the knowledge
of our raw materials among consumers to enhance their
cognitive ability and discernment in an effective way. In
response to consumers’ complaints on newly launched
self-service hotpot products, we duly adjusted relevant
categories in Yihai Customer Complaint Management
Measures and added new control measures. The Group
designated, according to the situation, special personnel
to suppliers of the main materials and product assembly
plants to perform on-site monitoring and management, and
while simultaneously updating the corresponding supplier
incentives and penalties. Through such on-site measures,
quality problems of self-service hotpot products and related
customer complaints have been effectively controlled in a
short time, which further enhanced consumer confidence
in our new products. Customer complaints related to
product oil leakage and foreign matters still accounted for
the highest proportion this year. In response to oil leakages
resulting from the worn filling heads and transportation, we
have established new standards for filling heads, and fulfilled
the carrier’s responsibility for product protection in logistic
contract. Meanwhile, we further strengthened the selection
and quality control of agricultural and sideline raw materials,
in an attempt to effectively reduce customer complaints
regarding foreign matters in products.
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4.3

Performance Indicator Related to Customer Complaints™®

FRRFAEANIERRIE

Description ER 2017 EIE 2016 FHE 2015 F&HE
Customer Complaints (times) & FE&RFS4(OX) 1.862 2.358 2.20
Note: i
10. Customer complaints (times) for the year = Total complaints 10. EEEFPRSRFEHOR)=%2
that year/annual production (in millions of packages) ERFHREY 2ELEESE
(LBEE8)
Customer Information Privacy 4.3 (REEFEFEER

The Group has two sales channels, namely, distributor
sales and on-line sales. As we do not sell goods to
consumers directly in the case of distribution, consumer
privacy protection is not involved in such production and
sales processes. In relation to on-line sales, we have
established the Customer Information Confidentiality Policy
for Internet Marketing Department, which specifies data
security measures and supervision methods, as well as
corresponding punitive measures in case of any violation,
to protect the information of relevant departments and
customers, standardise on-line store accounts and maintain
the Group's rights and interests.

In 2017, we further optimised on-line orders accounting.
Originally, orders were exported manually and then imported
into SAP for accounting after data processing. After our
modification, the ERP data was directly transferred to SAP
for accounting replacing manual processing, and minimising
the risk of order information leakage and while protecting
consumer personal information and privacy in a strict and
effective way, thus making orders and the purchase more
assured.
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4.4 Advertising and Labelling

4.5

In 2017, the Group continued to adhere to applicable laws
and regulations governing advertising and labelling, such as
the Advertising Law of the People's Republic of China, and
has developed the Yihai Marketing Management Procedures
to ensure the compliance of all promotion materials of major
marketing activities in an effective way. In order to minimise
possible risks of our Internet Marketing Department from
committing intriguing publishing pictures, texts, videos and
other information in new internet channels, and safeguarding
the rights and interests of the Group, we also formulated
the Management Procedures for Infringement Avoidance of
Internet Marketing Department, which specifies measures
and supervision methods to prevent infringement, as well as
corresponding punitive measures in case of any violation.
The well-established advertising and labelling management
mechanism has strongly safeguarded the integrity of
our marketing and avoided sending false information to
consumers.

Patents and Intellectual Property

The Company highly values protection and acquisition of
intellectual property. To this end, we have systematically
sorted and summarized our existing application procedures
regarding the different intellectual property the Company
owns, and formulated a new version of Administrative
Measures for Intellectual Property, which covers detailed
and highly operable provisions for establishment and
updating of the intellectual property database as well as its
supplement, striving to achieve standardised management
of all intellectual property related matters within the Group.
When applying for a trademark and patent, departments
within the Group would complete and submit an Application
for Trademark and Technical Disclosure Statement, etc., in
which such information as the background and necessity of
the application would be specified. Prior to proceeding with
the application flow as planned, the above documents would
be approved and signed, and specific personnel responsible
for taking over the issue would be assigned by heads of the
relevant departments.
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5.  Supply Chain Management

An important component of the development strategy of the
Group is to “emphasise safe and quality food and prevent risks in
the supply of raw materials”. The Group has established a series
of supply chain management systems to develop a responsible
supply chain and to promote the improvement and development
of the entire supply chain system.

5.1 Selection Criteria

The Group prefers national brands or top 3 renowned local
brands when it comes to suppliers of food. The Group
requires suppliers to submit qualification certificates and
licenses. Those who fail to provide satisfactory certificates
will not be selected. During the review and assessment
process, suppliers will fill in the Supplier Assessment Form
as required by the Group, and only those approved by the
Group will get potential cooperation. After establishing
partnership, suppliers must sign valid contracts and
the Letter of Commitment Relating to Supplier Integrity
and agree to abide by Supplier Award System, Supplier
Punishment System, Supplier Delivery Rules and the
Letter Relating to Spot Check on Supplier Factories prior
to setting off on formal business, so as to ensure that the
suppliers accept supervision and review from the Group.
Requirements for supplier assessment from the ESG
perspective was incorporated in the Supplier Assessment
Form by the Group in response to relevant national policies
this year, which emphasised on assessing environment
compliance of suppliers’ factories to lower risks arising from
environmental issues of suppliers that may affect regular

supply.
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5.2.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Over the year, the Group established partnerships with
113 new suppliers, with 47 in East China, 30 in Mid-
South China, 21 in North China, 3 in Northwest China, 11
in Southwest China and 1 in Northeast China, and has
effectively expanded the coverage of suppliers, provided
a better guaranteed of the supply of raw materials and
auxiliary materials and effectively reduced the overall cost of
procurement.

Daily Management for Suppliers

In the supplier management system, relevant departments of
the Group have strictly executed the Suppliers Management
Rules. There are more than one supplier of raw materials
for all categories of products in prevention of short supply
arising from risky events such as bad weather, unfavourable
road conditions, internal management oversight of the
suppliers and other unpredictable factors.
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Meanwhile, the departments also proactively revisit the
suppliers to pay close attention to market information
regarding raw materials and auxiliary materials, processing
and manufacturing conditions, risk resistance capabilities
and state of operation of the suppliers, so as to make better
decisions as to whether the suppliers can meet subsequent
procurement strategies of the Group. Purchasing staff
responsible for contacting major production material
suppliers are required to revisit these suppliers every half a
year to ensure material safety and stabilised product prices.
After the revisits, the purchasing staff is required to fill in the
Suppliers Revisit and Assessment Form and submit to the
supplier administrator for documentation. The Group has
established a performance evaluation system to regularly
assess suppliers according to the Suppliers Performance
Assessment and Evaluation Form, where ranking is divided
into four grades of A, B, C, and D. For suppliers with
excellent evaluation results, the Group would provide them
with preferential policies, such as financial support, technical
coaching, and guidance to its management personnel and
on-site directions from the Group's quality control team.
Suppliers rated as D twice in a row will be added to the
list of eliminated suppliers. If there is a need to engage
such a supplier again, the supplier shall go through the
application procedures in the Contract Management System
in accordance with the procedures for engaging a new
supplier. Suppliers who violate relevant regulations of the
Group will be added into the Group’s supplier blacklist, and
in principle, such suppliers will never be engaged again.
If they are needed under special conditions, they must
undergo strict assessment, and there must be at least a
gap year after the supplier is blacklisted. In addition, such
suppliers shall provide a warranty statement, and if similar
problems occur again, there will be no chance for future
cooperation.
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5.3

During the field visits, the Group also focused on market
information regarding product-related raw materials and
future development in the industry. For the industries
which lacks standardised management but offers products
with characteristics, we provide guidance on operating
management and food processing for suppliers. In doing
so, characteristics of the products are retained, risks of food
safety are lowered, and consequently, enhancing the overall
level of the industry.

Communication with Suppliers

The Group has established various communication channels
such as e-mail, hotline and Wechat platform to deal with the
complaints. Once a complaint is received, the Group will
handle the case in accordance with the Suppliers Complaint
Response Procedures and reply with a Response Letter to
Supplier’s Opinion. For true and verified supplier complaints,
the Group will reward the supplier in accordance with the
Suppliers Award Regulations. The Group conducts opinion
surveys for suppliers every half a year, gives timely feedback
to relevant departments and personnel and replies to the
suppliers regarding solutions and their outcomes.

5.3
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Information about Suppliers

Description

Total suppliers !
Overseas suppliers
Suppliers in East China

Suppliers in Central and South China

Suppliers in North China

Suppliers in Northwest China
Suppliers in Southwest China
Suppliers in Northeast China

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

=

HEmARE (E)

BIMEREE (E)

ErimEHERRE ()
gt E R R B (fE)
FEimEHEREE (E)
At R R R E (fE)
At R R E (fE)
RicuEHEEHE (E)

Suppliers having completed risk
assessment on environment and society? 27

Note:

11. The location of a supplier is determined by its place of
registration.

12.  Suppliers having completed risk assessment on environment
and society refer to those which went through the risk
assessment initiated by relevant departments of the Group on
environment and safety (including environmental protection,
human resource management, occupational health and
safety, etc.).

The most common complaint we received in 2017 from
suppliers was about the lengthy waits at the delivery site.
This problem was rectified from two aspects: the factories
and the suppliers. The Group optimised the production
scheduling of the factories in coordination with the Planning
and Warehousing Department so as to prevent concurrent
delivery. While for suppliers, the Group required them to
strictly control quality in avoidance of additional acceptance
arising from unqualified deliverables, such that procedures
and duration of acceptance could be simplified and
shortened. Duration of acceptance has been by far greatly
cut down after joint efforts made by relevant departments.
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Corporate Governance

In strict compliance with applicable national laws and regulations
related to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, we have
formulated the Yihai International Anti-fraud and Anti-corruption
Management System to regulate occupational behaviours of the
directors, senior and middle management and the general staff,
so that they would strictly comply with relevant laws, industry
standards and norms, occupational ethics, and the Group’s
regulations. The system also aims to establish a culture of
integrity, diligence and dedication to one’s job, and to prevent
infringement of the interests of the Group and its shareholders.
The followings are specified in the system:

° Promoting and creating a corporate culture of honesty,
integrity, anti-fraud and anti-corruption;

° Assessing the risk of fraud and corruption, and establishing
the procedures and mechanisms of control, to lower the
possibility of fraud and corruption;

° Establishing a standing body for anti-fraud and anti-
corruption, which is supervised by the Board of Directors
and responsible for receiving, investigating, and reporting of
corruption revealed, as well as for offering suggestions on
solutions.

Meanwhile, we have set up a dedicated hotline through which
all staff and partners can report on misconduct, fraud and non-
compliances related to the issues of the Group at any time, such
that we could detect and rectify them in a timely manner, and
maintain our corporate value.
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The Group has systematically established an internal system for
anti-corruption. Code of Discipline for Directors and Employees,
for instance, is applicable to all our staff including full-time,
part-time and temporary employees. According to the code,
employees are required to strictly observe the applicable rules
and regulations on anti-corruption and anti-fraud while performing
business on behalf of the Group. Direct/indirect requests, receipts
and offers of any benefits are equally prohibited. Besides, prior to
accepting other work outside the Group, employees shall apply
for a written approval from appropriate approvers, who shall make
the decision by considering whether the work is in conflict with
the applicant’s position in the Group and the Group’s interests.
In addition, we have been continually implementing the Yihai
Misconduct Management Measures which specified six types
of non-compliances and misconduct by employees, including
corruption, fraud and deception. In terms of high-risk positions,
such as procurement, marketing and promotion, we require
employees to sign a Letter of Commitment relating to Integrity
in Procurement, or Letter of Commitment Relating to Sales and
Promotion, to enable them to get a better understanding of
misconduct which is explicitly prohibited in performance of their
business, efficiently restraining and regulating their behaviours,
and enhancing the awareness of ethical conduct and integrity.
At the same time, the Group has established a guarantee system
for key positions, which expressly states that the management
assumes the responsibility for supervising and guiding
subordinates to perform their duties with integrity.

We have also attached great importance to integrity and
honesty in the external business cooperation. The key partners,
including suppliers and distributors, are required to sign Letters
of Commitment Relating to Supplier Integrity or Letters of
Commitment Relating to Distributor Integrity, prior to officially
signing contracts with us. These letters of commitment explicitly
express our integrity requirement for suppliers and distributors
and informs them of complaint and reporting channels that
aim to prevent possible corruption and fraud to the greatest
extent during cooperation. The Group is entitled to terminated
partnership with suppliers, distributors or other partners under
the contracts, if they violate any clause under their commitment
to cooperate with integrity, and to hold them liable to any breach
of contract pursuant to the liability clause in the contract. If any
partner discloses that an employee of the Group was found
breaching any regulation or committing fraud, once the claim is
verified, such partner would be rewarded.
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The Group’s Risk Control and Audit Department, the major
responsible department for anti-corruption and anti-fraud, works
out annual plans for special audit and audit on internal control,
and conducts anti-fraud audits on procedures of main business
and critical focus areas of the Group based on such plans
and relevant reporting. In addition, the Risk Control and Audit
Department also conducts audits on assignment or resignation
of personnel in key positions. Management issues were timely
found and addressed in more than 10 times of special audits
and internal control audits that were proactively conducted by
the Group in 2017, which protected the interests of the Group.
Over the year, the Risk Control and Audit Department launched
campaigns to advocate integrity. In the campaigns, we publicised
our policies on integrity among staff and key partners and
provided relevant training and guidance to enable them to get a
better understanding of our policies on integrity and anti-fraud.

The Group was not involved in any litigation caused either
by itself or its employee’s misconduct relating to corruption,
fraud, extortion and money-laundering with material impact on
the Group, nor were there any material weaknesses in internal
control over the reporting year. Combating corruption and
building a clean governance is increasingly vital to the sustainable
development of the Group as our business improves. We will
always adhere to and perfect our system for integrity and honesty
to further enhance internal control and governance.
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Community Investment

The Group has constantly carried forward the idea for undertaking
social responsibility that provides safety and quality food for
the market and customers. Efforts are made in giving back to
the society by fulfilling its social responsibility and getting more
involved in public welfare undertakings. The Group takes the
initiative to understand the needs and expectation of local and
neighbouring communities where we operate and encourages
the staff to participate in community public welfare activities. The
Group also takes concrete actions to ensure that it has taken the
interests of local communities into consideration when conducting
its business activities and to pass on its positive social value to
the public.

In 2017, more emphasis was given to community investment.
The office of the Board of Directors took the lead in organising
diversified social welfare activities with an investment amount of
nearly RMB 114000 under control of the financial director, which
involved the labour union, the office of the general manager, the
procurement department, the marketing department and the
regional sales department.

7.1 Caring for College Students

As the backbone in the future development of our society,
college students are one of the groups that we are most
concerned about. In 2017, the Group sponsored various
on-campus activities to assist college students in career
planning with a better understanding of the society,
promote green and healthy campus atmosphere and enrich
extracurricular life of college students.

Cooking Competition

We sponsored the cooking competition held in Nanguang
College of Communication University of China in November
2017. In this competition, condiments produced by the
Group were adopted. The top three contestants were
selected by judges consisting of students, and were awarded
prizes provided by the Group. Students that were involved
in the forwarding of the activities on the competition were
also provided with gifts. Because of the competition, college
students acquired more knowledge relating to healthy diet
and fully experience the fun of working as a team.
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7.2

Competition for Advertisement Creativity

In December 2017, the Group sponsored the 12th
Competition for Advertisement Creativity hosted by the
Maxcell Association of Sun Yat-sen University, which
involved colleges in Guangzhou and Zhuhai, including Sun
Yat-sen University, Ji'nan University, South China University
of Technology, South China Normal University, Southern
Medical University, Guangdong University of Finance and
Economics, Guangzhou University, and Zhuhai College
of Jilin University through online push based on official
accounts of students associations and offline promotion
activities. Over 70 teams consisting of college students
participated in the competition with more than 15,000
students directly taking part in the event. The competition
further stimulated a dynamic and innovative campus
atmosphere among colleges in Guangzhou and Zhuhai,
which was beneficial to improving of the overall quality of
college students.

Caring for Workers in Local Community

The Group’s departments in East China and Shanghai gave
away food and drinks including watermelons and sweet
mung bean soup to workers from more than 5000 markets
of agricultural products around local communities for free
to relieve summer heat from May to August 2017 when the
high temperature sustained. A total of about RMB 95,000
was spent in 31,800 activities on this front. We use our best
efforts to optimize the working conditions of the workers that
have to work in the heat.

7.3 Assisting in Alleviating the Pressure of Employment

The continuous development of the Group’s business has
helped create more jobs, which could effectively relieve the
pressure of employment in the society, specifically in local
communities where we operate. Our Production Base in
Maanshan, which commenced its operation in November
2017, has created jobs for 300 job seekers, over 60 of
whom were from the local community. We are committed
in making due contributions to address the problem of
social employment to achieve mutual advancement and
harmonious development between the Group and the
society.
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To the Shareholders of Yihai International Holding Ltd.
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Yihai International Holding
Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 154 to 244, which comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

o Impairment provision for inventory

Key Audit Matter
Impairment provision for inventory

Refer to Note 2 (Summary of significant accounting policies) and Note
12 of the consolidated financial statements.

Inventory is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value, being
selling price less estimated selling costs, where applicable, impairment
provision is made to write down the inventory to its net realisable value.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s balance of gross inventory was
RMB147,617,000.

The estimation of impairment provision for each type of inventories
involves significant management judgment based on consideration
of key factors such as aging profile, prior experiences and estimated
future selling price and production costs subsequent to year end.

The impairment assessment is an area of focus for us given the
inherent uncertainties and the significant amount of the gross inventory
balance.

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.

RMESZTTPRANBERETSEM M
T

. GEREERE

BERETER
HFEREERE

F2HREMBRERME2(EXRETR
RIEEE) REE12

FEDEERARTERFE(DBHE
B L = TE A O B AR B BB
B MO R E R
R -

R2017512A31H - BEEENFER
¥A%/ 147,617,000 TARH -

BEEAFENREERMGTIRER
BEXHE ZEHEEZEERS
B BREER  BERREEUARFS
AERNEERASEREE -

ERNFEEBRENTHREN  BEFERE
SHEA  RMILBBEIRERE -



How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures relating to impairment provision for inventory
included:

Obtained and understood the Group’s inventory provisioning
policy.

Understood and evaluated the relevant controls over the
generation of inventory aging schedule and the process of the
estimation of inventory impairment provision.

In respect of finished goods, on sample basis, we evaluated
the assumptions in estimating future sales prices and selling
expenses by reference to historical records and sales
transactions after year end.

In respect of raw materials and work in progress, on sample
basis, we evaluated the assumptions in estimating future
production costs by reference to historical records and
production records after year end.

On sample basis, we tested the aging profile of the year end raw
materials and finished goods.

Observed physical condition of inventories during stocktake to
identify if any inventory was slow-moving, damaged, or obsolete.

We found the assumptions adopted and judgment applied by
management were supported by the evidence we gathered and
consistent with our understanding.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBE R E

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Corporate Governance Report and Management Discussion and
Analysis, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, and the Directors’ Report and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, which are expected to be made available to us
after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that
we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Director’s Report and the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
the Audit Committee and take appropriate action considering our legal
rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBE R E

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’ s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’ s report is Brian Ming Yan Choi.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERBR
As at 31 December
n12H31H
Note 2017 2016
M=t 2017 £ 2016 £
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBFT AR¥FT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Land use rights Tib e FARE 6 35,152 31,738
Property, plant and equipment ME - BMERZE 8 180,088 116,141
Intangible assets B EE 7 5,182 2,803
Deferred tax assets EIEFIEEE 11 10,554 6,584
Prepayments for property, ME - BERZE
plant and equipment FEFIE 14 57,095 8,608
Total non-current assets ERHEELE 288,071 165,874
Current assets mBEE
Inventories 78 12 147,617 130,496
Trade receivables BB EWFIE 13,33 131,457 67,080
Prepayments and other receivables FEANREREMERFIE 14,33 76,670 38,217
Cash and cash equivalents RENRRESEEY 15 1,130,205 1,021,999
Financial assets at fair value through RATETT BRI
profit or loss SREE 16 32,671 —
Total current assets REEELE 1,518,620 1,257,792
Total assets EEHE 1,806,691 1,423,666
Equity g
Share capital &N 17 68 68
Shares held for employee share scheme HEERMETE
BFEHRG 18 (5) (5)
Reserves & 19 1,501,326 1,266,142
Capital and reserves attributable to EBRARRATEE AN
owners of the Company BEARK G 1,501,389 1,266,205
Non-controlling interests RS 4,420 —
Total equity B 1,505,809 1,266,205
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mEBEERER

As at 31 December

®12H31H
Note 2017 2016
sk 2017 & 2016 5
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBFT ARBFT

Current liabilities mEAaE

Trade payables B S EAFIE

Other payables and accruals HittpEsIa R ETEA
Current tax liabilities BIEARIIEE &

Total current liabilities mEABEREE

Total liabilities BEER

Total equity and liabilities BERaEER

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction
with the accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 154 to 158 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 21 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf.

21,33 136,582 73,277
22,33 115,033 54,747
49,267 29,437

300,882 157,461

300,882 157,461

1,806,691 1,423,666

Ltk e BER EX BN AT —5F
FiiE -

$£154H ZFE 158 E M BT R KRN 2018
F3R1REESEHE THTIE
ERBHEE -

DANG CHUNXIANG SUN SHENGFENG
BEEE® B
Director Director
EE -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEZHElEE
As at 31 December
W12H31H
Note 2017 2016
By £ 2017 4 2016 £
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBEFT ARETT
Revenue PN 5 1,646,221 1,088,014
Cost of sales of goods BERIEENA 23 (1,034,415) (671,072)
Gross profit EF 611,806 416,942
Distribution expenses RKEHRAX 23 (164,615) (127,921)
Administrative expenses THFAX 23 (76,415) (53,841)
Other incomes and gains - net HAap AR W& HEE 25 43,748 21,481
Fair value loss of redeemable AIEEE AR E LR
convertible preferred shares A EEE = (35,264)
Finance income BLE WA 26 6,651 33,692
Finance costs =2 %N 26 (52,095) —
Finance (costs)/income - net RE (FAR), WA — 558 26 (45,444) 33,692
Profit before income tax PR RSBt AT 369,080 255,089
Income tax expense FrSHipx 27 (107,990) (68,369)
Profit for the year BRI 261,090 186,720
Profit attributable to: UTALEMLZEF :
Owners of the Company RABHEEA 260,670 186,720
Non-controlling interests R AER 420 —
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 mEUIN
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss AJFEEH#IEZ 5z H)EH
Cash flow hedges BE&REH P 19 — (514)
Other comprehensive income for FREMETIIRN
the year, net of tax (INFR#IE) — (514)
Total comprehensive income 2HERINGEEE 261,090 186,206
Total comprehensive income UTALTESLZE
attributable to: LI
- Owners of the Company —RATEBA 260,670 186,206
- Non-controlling interests —JEEERAER 420 —
Earnings per share attributable to AL ERZHEA
ordinary equity holders of the Company i =Rl
(expressed in RMB cents per share) (UBBRARKESHITR)
— Basic —EK 28 26.9 23.4
— Diluted —#E 28 26.7 23.4

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEERBER
Attributable to owners of the Company
FOARENER
Shares
held for
employee
Share share Non-
capital scheme Reserves controlling Total
(Note 17) (Note 18) (Note19) Total interests equity
HEs
Rty atEl
BE  HEHRG &
(MzE17) (HzE18) (M&E19) @t kERER B4R

Note RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
M AR®Tn  AR®Tn AR%®Tn AR%Tn AR%Tn AR%T:n

Balance at 1 January 2016 201651 1 A& 31 — 141,893 141,924 — 141,924
Comprehensive income EXTTON
Profit for the year FERRF — — 186,720 186,720 — 186,720
Other comprehensive income St 2EYA — — (514) (514) — (514)
Total comprehensive income  £ERA\ 45 — — 186,206 186,206 — 186,206
Transactions with owners ~ EEFAR S
Issuance of new ordinary shares E{THZER 17(c) 17 — 759,284 759,301 — 759,301
Capitalisation issue BB 17(b) 16 — (16) — — —
Conversion of redeemable ERTERERELR

convertible preferred shares 17(a) 4 — 221,927 221,931 — 221,931
Share issuance costs RABITRAR 17(c) — — (39,093) (39,093) — (39,093)
Share-based payment expense  ARBAERNAFEY 20 — — 102 102 — 102
Shares repurchased BERA 19 — () (4,161) (4,166) — (4,166)
Total transactions with owners S5 A\ %2 5 8% 37 ) 938,043 938,075 — 938,075
Balance at 31 December 2016 #2016 % 12 A 31 A &#& 68 6 1266142 1266205 — 1266205
Balance at 1 January 2017  #*20174 1R 1B &8 68 (5) 1,266,142 1,266,205 — 1,266,205
Comprehensive income EXTTON
Profit for the year ERRF = = 260,670 260,670 420 261,090
Total comprehensive income £ HEHA\&H = = 260,670 260,670 420 261,090
Transactions with ownersin  EHEEANEEA 51

their capacity as owners: ETHRS
Non-controlling interests on ~ W(EBHIB 2 AR

acquisition of subsidiary FERER = = = = 4,000 4,000
Share-based payment expense  UBRBAERNAHEE 20 = = 8,510 8,510 = 8,510
Dividends provided for or paid 2t RHDRAKRE = = (33,996) (33,996) = (33,996)
Total transactions with owners £HH A% 5 85 = = (25,486) (25,486) 4,000 (21,486)
Balance at 31 December 2017 #2017 %12 B 31 B4&#& 68 B 1,501,326 1,501,389 4420 1,505,809

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read — _ i 45 & 1 25 22 B 7 JE B4 BB B Bt 57 — 15F
in conjunction with the accompanying notes. & -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁié‘%

Note 2017 2016
Bt EE 2017 £ 2016 %
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EFT ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities REFENERERE
Cash generated from operations REABEE 31(a) 438,681 283,242
Interest received 2RI 6,651 933
Income tax paid ETFTEHR (92,130) (60,182)
Net cash generated from REFBNEREFHE
operating activities 353,202 223,993
Cash flows from investing activities BRERHMERERE
Purchases of land use right BB AR 6 (4,187) (24,911)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEY¥ - BMENRE (127,989) (22,649)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEEEE (3,260) (2,352)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE  MERZE
property, plant and equipment and AR SR E B PS8 718
intangible assets 31(b) 460 5,534
Purchase of financial assets BESMEE (32,934) —
Interest income from financial assets ERMEENREWA 5,241 —
Net cash used in investing activities BREFRBMARESEE (162,669) (44,378)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEEBRERERE
Capital injections from IR ERTE
non-controlling interests 4,000 —
Decrease in other payables due to H{th FE (S BB 5 7R I8
related parties 5J§Ji’1‘ = (141,633)
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary BOTEBRAMEHEEE
shares, net 17(c) — 720,208
Repurchase of shares RN ) 18,19 — (4,166)
Dividends paid to the Company’s EARQ T REIRATRE
shareholders 19 (33,996) —
Net cash generated from financing MEEERSRETFHE
activities (29,996) 574,409
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R RREEEEY
by IpEE 160,537 754,024
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#RER
the financial year HEEEY 15 1,021,999 235,216
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and Iﬁ%&ﬁ%%fﬁ%
cash equivalents ERESFHNE (52,331) 32,759
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FXBEERELZEY 15 1,130,205 1,021,999
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LR AR % B K E L E R B i —
conjunction with the accompanying notes. BE -
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Yihai International Holding Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the production and sale of hot pot soup flavoring products,
hot pot dipping sauce products and Chinese style compound
condiment products in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
collectively referred to as the “Listed Business”.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 18
October 2013 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman lIslands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is P.O. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way,
802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands.

The Company’s global offering of its shares (“the Global Offering”)
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “HKSE”) was completed on 13 July 2016.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 March
2018.

e M BRRME

— B

EEREEERERARD(TARF ]
REKEB AR (GEAEE ] EH
EARAMB(HEDEZRSX
HER - BB KR HHESFAK
HBNEERBEGERBAI LHE
®1 -

AATR2013F 10818 A EHE
HEREMEHE 1961 FHEIE
Bl 22 F N A E(R &R E RIEET)
MR BERRERAT - AR
FANEMPEE MU EP.O. Box
31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus
Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman
Islands °

KATBBRBEEBHERZFIAER
AE(EBBRA ) TR ERE
E(2HRBEE)EN20165F7 B 13
HIEMK °

BRIESEIRP  BRIXRGETHR
RUARETAREDRY - Z%
B IR R S HR2018E3 21 A &
EESHETI -

2017 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXEFBRME
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies A FRENRENLERE MR
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial RIFRMNERSTTHRFE - B
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to SETHEIN BEBERRFBESIR
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial FEREHER - XEEMKRE
statements are for the Group consistency of the Company and its BEARARREKEAT K
subsidiaries.
2.1 Basis of preparation 21 REEE
() Compliance with IFRS and HKCO () EFEBHEIREEAR
REELGFA
The consolidated financial statements of the Group AEBEBMNZEMBERRE
has been prepared in accordance with all applicable O iR REI PR B T 3R 5 %
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) AI(ER BR BF 75 3R & 2%
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Al D REE A TMGERHI(E
Companies Ordinance (“HKCO”) Cap. 622. 622FE ) I &R E
% o
(i) Historical cost convention (i) ELRAE
The financial statements have been prepared on a BRRKRDIRE LKA
historical cost basis, as modified by revaluation of EERH  WEBHEM
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which BRAFETFTABRNS
are carried at fair value. REEFELBT UARE
NEEDE -
(i) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (iii) ZK B B9 F 5T R 45
CHES
The following amendments to standards have been N E B R2017F1 81
adopted by the Group for the first time for the financial H=kz &M B BE
year beginning on or after 1 January 2017: EBXEMTFERH
BRI
e Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised o AREBHEIEER
Losses — Amendments to IAS 12, and EAEHIEELE — B

RE T ERE 12
5/,%*57//5,:/'4? ' R

e Disclosure initiative — amendments to IAS 7. e WEDZE-BERE
FFERIZE 7R E
AT o

The adoption of these amendments did not have any Rz S BT AR T HERER

impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods. SHEITEEMTE - K¥H1E :JZI-‘

Most of the amendments will also not affect the current TS EBERRARIE -

or future periods.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXE:iHEHMEE)
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d) 21 REEEE)

(iv)  [ef K ER AN HIH7 5T 2E R R

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following new standards and amendments to
standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2018 and have not
been applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements:

° Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions — Amendments to IFRS 2

e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-
2016 Cycle, and

° Transfers of Investment Property — Amendments
to IAS 40

None of these above new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations is expected to have
a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except the following set out
below:

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

Nature of change

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ addresses the
classification, measurement and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets.

2
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BRI AR BN 20185
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Cont’d)
Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities and is expecting the following impact from the
adoption of the new standard on 1 January 2018:

The financial assets held by the Group include
investments currently measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) which will continue
to be measured on the same basis under IFRS 9.
Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new
guidance to affect the classification and measurement
of these financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only
affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss and
the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
and have not been changed.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These
are expected to change the nature and extent of the
Group’s disclosures about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of the adoption of the new
standard.
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e M BRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXE:iHEHMEE)
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d) 21 REEEE)

(iv)  [ef K ER AN HIH7 5T 2E R R

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Cont’d)
Date of adoption by Group

Must be applied for financial years commencing on
or after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply the new
rules retrospectively from 1 January 2018, with the
practical expedients permitted under the standard and
corporative for 2017 will not be restated.

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’

Nature of change

The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition
of revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers
contracts for goods and services and IAS 11 which
covers construction contracts and the related literature.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Cont’d)

The new standard establishes a comprehensive
framework for determining when to recognise revenue
and how much revenue to recognise through a 5-step
approach: (1) Identify the contract(s) with customer;
(2) Identify separate performance obligations in a
contract (3) Determine the transaction price (4) Allocate
transaction price to performance obligations and (5)
Recognise revenue when performance obligation is
satisfied. The core principle is that a company should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to the customer in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. It moves away from a revenue recognition
model based on an ‘earnings processes to an ‘asset-
liability’ approach based on transfer of control.

The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact

Management has assessed the effects of applying the
new standard on the Group’s financial statements and
has identified the following areas that may be affected:

e rights of return IFRS 15 requires separate
presentation on the balance sheet of the right
to recover the goods from the customer and the
refund obligation.
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e M BRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXE:iHEHMEE)
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d) 21 REEEE)

(iv)  [ef K ER AN HIH7 5T 2E R R

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Cont’d)

The new standard provides specific guidance
on capitalisation of contract cost and licence
arrangements. It also includes a cohesive set of
disclosure requirements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from the entity’s contracts with customers.

Management expected that the new standard of IFRS
15 will not have significant effect on the financial
statement of the Group.

Date of adoption by Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2018. The Group intends to adopt the standard
using the modified retrospective approach which
means that the cumulative impact of the adoption will
be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Cont’d)
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

Nature of change

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the balance
sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new standard, an asset
(the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability
to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases. The Group has not yet
determined to what extent these commitments will
result in the recognition of an asset and a liability for
future payments and how this will affect the Group’s
profit and classification of cash flows.

Mandatory application date/Date of adoption by Group

Mandatory for financial years commencing on or after 1
January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend
to adopt the standard before its effective date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(iv) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(Cont’d)

There are no other standards that are not yet effective
and that would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(0

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and balance
sheet respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

o fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

° equity interests issued by the Group

° fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

° fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
U consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.3

24

Business combinations (Cont’d)

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.5 Segment reporting

2.6

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-makers (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the chief
executive officer, vice presidents and directors of the
Company.

Foreign currency translation

(0

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (RMB),
which is the Group’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised
in profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they
relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Transactions and balances (Cont’d)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income within ‘finance cost - net’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income
within ‘Other incomes and gains - net’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary assets and liabilities such as equities held at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

° assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(iii)  Group companies (Cont’d)

° income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions), and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes
expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the case
of leasehold improvements and certain leased plant and
equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Machinery 5-10 years
Equipment 3-5 years
Vehicles and furniture 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit
or loss.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent upfront prepayments made for
the land use rights and are expensed in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income of on a straight-
line basis over the periods of the leases or when there is
impairment, the impairment is expensed in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

29

2.10

Intangible assets

Intangible assets mainly represent computer software.
Acquired computer software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. There cots are amortised over their estimated
useful lives of 5 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

(0

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets into the
following categories: loans and receivables, held
to maturity investment, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial
assets. The classification depends on the purposes for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition. As at year end, the Group has
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
loans and receivables.

a. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group classifies financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss if they are acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term, i.e. are held for trading. They are
presented as current assets if they are expected
to be sold within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period; otherwise they are presented
as non-current assets. The group has elected
to designate some financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

b. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for those
with maturities greater than 12 months after
the balance sheet date, which are classified
as non-current assets. Loans and receivables
are included within trade receivables, other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents in the
balance sheets (Notes 2.15 and 2.16).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised
at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value are presented
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income within ‘Other incomes and gains-net’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)

(i) Measurement (Cont’d)

Interest income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is included in the ‘Other incomes
and gains - net’. Loans and receivables calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss as part of revenue from
continuing operations.

Details on how the fair value of financial instruments is
determined are disclosed in Note 3.3.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.
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e M BRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXE:iHEHMEE)
(Cont’d)

213 TREERE

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

FEERSREPRFERE
FHEREEERETEREEY
—MEMEERRRE - Efd
RERER - REEREE—
RASRBHEHHBERE
((BESHDNFERE - m
ZR(AZF)BEREHFHER
EENZESHEENMGETR
KRB ERECHERAET SEMLET
& AZEREESZMA
TREEHBERERELRE
BiE - HREBREATHEE
MRAIRE  EHNAFERE
ENFEBREERERA - B
BREEERENTR

BEEA A SR EE

HMENRETREEENTIE
B EBAL-HEBALER
REARMBRRE - EHHHERX
MEREAENAK - WEKEH
RERRESETHMI B EA
LR EBRBEMEBETR 4
SPARRBESREHRATTEN
B a0 KRR ELE A9 HE RS
HYRETIRR IR B o

RERKREYIRERINS
IR EUEENREERE R
SEARRBEERE(TEEE KR
EENRREEFR)NRE
ZENEZRITREMEESY
MEMRANRITETE - BEMN
IREEREIR - MEBREER
FEEEWERER -

i R ERPERER RS R
2 BB EERREREE
MEHBINEBAEEFR
HE)FEEE - AREBE
BRWREBSENGS ZHE K
mRPER -

2017 Annual Report



180

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

2.13

2.14

2.15

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment testing of trade receivables is described in Note
13.

Inventories

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal
operating capacity. Cost includes the reclassification from
equity of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
relating to purchases of raw material but excludes borrowing
costs. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory
on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased
inventory are determined after deducting rebates and
discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement
within 30 days and therefore are all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. See Note
2.11 for further information about the Group’s accounting
for trade receivables and Note 2.13 for a description of the
Group’s impairment policies.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less.

2.17 Share capital and shares held for employee share
scheme

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

Where the company’s shares are repurchased from YIHAI
JLJH LTD., one of the shareholders of the Company, held
by the RSU Trustee (as mentioned in Note 19) under the
employee share scheme, the total consideration of shares is
presented as shares held for employee share scheme and
deducted from total equity. Upon vesting, the related costs
of the vested shares for employee share scheme purchased
from the market are credited to shares held for employee
share scheme, with a corresponding decrease in employee
share-based compensation reserve for employee share
scheme.
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2. EXEFBRBEE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.18 Trade payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid
within 30 days of recognition. Trade payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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e M BRRME

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXE:iHEHMEE)
(Cont’d)

2.19 BV RIESEFR1SHL(E)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.19

2.20

Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Employee benefits

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group has arranged for its PRC employees to join defined
contribution plans, including pension, medical, housing and
other welfare benefits, recognised by the PRC government.
According to the relevant regulations, the monthly
contributions that should be borne by the PRC subsidiaries
of the Company are calculated based on percentages of
the total salary of employees, subject to a certain ceiling.
The assets of these plans are held separately from those
of the Group in independent funds managed by the PRC
government.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the above contributions have been paid. The Group’s
contributions to these plans are charged in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.21

2.22

Share-based payments

The Group adopted a restricted share unit scheme in 2016
to reward directors and employees. The fair value of the
services received in exchange for the grant of the restricted
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
restricted shares granted as at date of grant, including any
market performance conditions, excluding the impacts of
any service and non-market performance vesting conditions
as well as including any non-vesting conditions, when
applicable. The total amount expensed is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimates of the number of restricted shares that
are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivables, and represents amounts receivables
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts and value added
taxes. The Group recognise revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.22 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Sale of goods

The Group manufactures and sells a range of hot pot
condiment products and Chinese-style compound
condiment products to customers including hot pot
restaurants and wholesalers. Sales of goods are recognised
when a group entity has delivered products to the customers
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products. Revenue is adjusted
for the value of sales discount and rebates. Delivery does
not occur until the products have been delivered to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have
been transferred to the customers, and either the customers
have accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contracts, or the Group has objective evidence that all
criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Provision of services

The Group provides consultancy services to other
companies and revenue is recognised as other incomes
and gains-net in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the accounting period in which the services are
rendered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are not transferred to the Group as lessee are
classified as operating leases (Note 32). Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

This note explains the Group’s exposure to financial risks and how
these risks could affect the Group’s future financial performance.
Current year profit and loss information has been included where
relevant to add further context.

Risk
BB

Market risk —

foreign exchange

Ti5 R — JNE

Credit risk

ERRE

Liquidity risk
RBE TR

Exposure arising from
EREEER

Recognised financial assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency different

from its functional currency.

UARIRHINEEE R /NS HERN C /R

TREERERE -

Cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and other receivables.

ReRRLZEY  BEZEBRER
HAbEUFRIER -

Other liabilities
HibaE

3.1 Financial risk factors

(a) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
foreign currency transactions, primarily with
respect to the US$ and HK$. Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities denominated
in a currency that is not the functional currency
of the relevant group entity. The risk is measured
through a forecast of highly probable US$ and
HK$ expenditures. The objective of the hedges
is to minimise the volatility of the Hong Kong
dollar cost of highly probable forecast inventory
purchases.
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3.

e M BRRME

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. HMHEREERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 BXEBREEE)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

Exposure

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period, expressed in RMB
was as follows:

31 December 2017
2017512A31H
Us$ HK$
£ BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR¥TRT

(a) TE5ERE (1)

(i)  HMERPBsE(E)

e

AEBERREHR
A RESIREI N
EREBOT :
31 December 2016
2016%F 12 A31H
us$ HK$
ETT BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETT AR®TR

Bank deposits IRITIER 43,364 665,383
Financial assets at R 2AFERTA
fair value through  EBHEHNESREE

profit or loss 32,671 —
Trade and other BE5KHM

receivables FEWFRIE = 154
Trade and other B REM

payables FESFIE (457) (306)

80,786 745,946

(451) (163)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

3.

A% BB B 3R ()
MR EE (A

@ HEEE (E)

(i)  HMERBsE(E)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other RiEERHEMEE
comprehensive income WA TR HFIE
During the year, the following foreign-exchange RERELE HA
related amounts were recognised in the TEIBARERT
consolidated statement of other comprehensive HISMEAEBEFIE ¢
income:
2017 2016
2017 % 2016 F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®FT ARET T
Amounts recognised REEEMEEBAE
in the consolidated AR IE
statement of other
comprehensive income
Net foreign exchange REMUYBA R K&
loss included FEERRN
in other income INERESIEIFRE
and gains - net (263) —
Net foreign exchange REEWR A FEEER
(losses)/gains included SN (B518),
in finance income - net eyl (52,095) 32,759
Total net foreign REARBRETS B ADE R
exchange TSR SNE (B518),
(losses)/gains U 4B R
recognised in profit
before income tax
for the period (52,358) 32,759

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.



3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(@) Market risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)
Sensitivity

As shown in the table above, the Group is
primarily exposed to changes in HK$/RMB
exchange rates. The sensitivity of profit or loss
to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly
from the deposits denominated in HK$ in the PRC
subsidiaries, the functional currency of which is
RMB, and the deposits of the Company which are
denominated in RMB.

3.

e M BRRME

A% BB B 3R ()

3.1 HBEBEEE)

@ HEEE (E)

(i)

SNE LB ()
R

0 ERFT A
TRt
ARWBERNS
BEK - BRYE
=1 T CYES
=5 & o0 E I 2
SlCEAT) PN
MHEEEBAR
) B TERRA
ATANRBEH -

Impact on post tax profit

HRERFIRZE

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#®ET T ARBT T
HK$/RMB exchange BT ARBESR
rate — increase 10% - EH10% (41,715) (50,044)
HK$/RMB exchange BLTHLARBER
rate — decrease 10% —TB&10% 41,715 50,044
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and
deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well
as credit exposures to wholesale and retail customers,
including outstanding receivables.

()  Risk management

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its cash and deposits, trade and other receivables.

The carrying amounts of each class of the above
financial assets represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. To manage this risk arising from cash
and deposits, the Group only transacts with
state-owned financial institutions and reputable
commercial banks which are all high-credit-
quality financial institutions in the PRC and Hong
Kong. There has been no recent history of default
in relation to these financial institutions.
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3.

B R &8 ()
3.1 B¥RBREZRE
(b) 1EHEE
EHREREEERER

ReSEY R1ITRkS
BB TR AR ER
TEFFERAR &
A1 RN A FEURRIE

(i)

R EE

AEBEHERS
kEH--BEERHE
b FEWRIR B B /Y
ERERE -

LR EERMERE
HERE(ER SN EE
FFESRESmME
ERBRNRKRER
Bk REEHR
T REFRFTSIER
b AEEER
HAETRERERE
BRIFOBEERT
(BEFTERER
NEEREESH
BEIXRS- nH
I B2 % & R
BEBRNWENR
42 o



3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’qd)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b)  Credit risk (Cont’d)

(i)

Risk management (Cont’d)

Trade receivables at the end of each reporting
period were mainly due from HAI DI LAO
HOLDINGS PTE. LTD. and its subsidiaries,
Sichuan Haidilao and the distributors in
cooperation with the Group. Both HAI DI LAO
HOLDINGS PTE. LTD and Sichuan Haidilao are
related parties of the Group (Note 33). As at 31
December 2017, the amounts due from HAI DI
LAO HOLDINGS PTE. LTD. and its subsidiaries
represented 98%, while the amounts due from
Sichuan Haidilao represented 1% of total trade
receivables of the Group, respectively. The
management of the Group believes the credit
risk on amounts due from related parties is
limited because they continuously monitor the
credit quality and financial conditions of the
related parties. Ageing analysis of the Group’s
trade receivables is disclosed in Note 13. The
directors of the Company believe that the credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding trade
receivables balances due from the distributors is
low.

3.

e M BRRME

BRI (48)
3.1 B¥RREZRE)

(b) 1EAmEEE

(i)

P E TR (.

ZWREHRNES
EBWHEBEBEXES
% X HAI DI LAO
HOLDINGS PTE.
LTD.EE & K B
AT mEE
BREAEES
fE /Y 42 85 7 9 X
1E - HAI DI LAO
HOLDINGS PTE.
LTD. X% M JIl /& &
B BREENE
B 5 (M 5£33) °
M2017%F12 A 31
H: K UHAI DI
LAO HOLDINGS
PTE. LTD. & & Kt
BRAANFIERE
WIS R K
HAMEAEEE
5 EWFRIEMEEEN
98% R 1% R &
EEEERA &
W EEE S FIBW S
ARBER  BA
WL IEE R
FREREERE
AR - HAREE
g 5 EWFIEWER
B 2 A R M EE13
PR AQFE
ERBAREBEK
FE-HEHEBENA
WELE 5 FEWFRIE
EHREENERAR
BB o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

()

()  Risk management (Cont’d)

For other receivables, management makes
periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
other receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The directors of the
Company believe that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance
of other receivables.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying business, the Group’s finance department
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining adequate
cash and cash equivalents.

Cash flow forecasting is performed by the finance
department of the Group. The Group’s finance
department monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs as well as the liabilities to other
parties.
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3.

BRI (48)
3.1 B¥RREZRE)

(b) 1=AEEE(E)

(@)

() REREEGE)

FHE bR WK IR T
E’EEEHFL

mETERBE
%ﬁﬂﬁ@@%m
TR A9 A] Uy [ 1 E AR
#E1TREE ) (8 B FF
flf e RARESR
RAKEEMEY
FRIE R R AR ER AL
BEEABEREAR
B o

REETEE

REBHORERAEH
ReRREEEY - H
REBAXFBEBEM
B RNEEHRHE P
KEZENBREREAS
EEMUMEREST
EMEEMYE -

Ben8RANHASE
E S ESEL - AKH

MEBEEHAEER
HESHFRIRB TR
LREFEAZTREESW

REEBETRREHEME
MEE -



3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’qd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

()

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

e M BRRME

AT B B IR ()
3.1 HBEBREEGE

) HEBELEEE

TREIAEEN SR
AERRAEERER
BMESKQEH B MR
T HARE 7 A AH B8 B 2
MBIETHDN - R
BTSRRI REY
RRESRE -

Less than 1 year

DR1E
RMB’ 000
AR®FT

As at 31 December 2017 #2017 12H31H
Trade payables (Note 21) B S RMAFE (M 21) 136,582
Other payables and accruals HittERRBERETER 56,720
Total et 193,302

As at 31 December 2016 201612531 H

Trade payables (Note 21) B A REMAFA (M 21) 73,277
Other payables and accruals HttENFERESER 37,068
Total st 110,345
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management

(@

Risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to enhance
shareholders’ value in the long term.

The Group monitors capital (including share capital,
reserves and preferred shares on an as-if converted
basis) by regularly reviewing the capital structure. As
a part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with the issued share capital. The Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or repurchase
the Company’s shares. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the Group’s capital risk is low.

3.3 Fair value estimation

(0

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at fair
value in the financial statements.

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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B e
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AEENEREERR
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BUERIAEAKRR
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rEEEBERENE
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NAEFEEERITR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

(0

Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

The Group analyses the financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different level have
been defined as follow:

The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and trading and available-for-
sale securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. The
quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 1:

e M BRRME

3. MBERKREEE)

3.3 DVEME(E)

(0

RFEER (E)

AEBREAFEMGE
FREREBAFETE
MEMEEETT 2
#r o TREARR K E Z a0
T

$—B: HRETS
EFRGER
WemIAa
(2 B8 E
ERNSTET
BHEHEEE
EABERTA
HEENE
%) H A
¥ E TR B
REREBKR
mZHEM
TEe KK
EEAENS
B & E T A
MEHERESH
BN HA /B 3R
B ZE I
Bt A$E—
@30
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

(0

Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

Level 2:

Level 3:

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the
case for unlisted equity securities.

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. HMHEREERE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d) 3.3 AREME(E)

(i) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable (i) REHEXT TEHEEHA
inputs (Level 3) HHE=ZE)WLFE

FrE

The following table presents the changes in level 3 TREJINEBZE2017F12

items for the periods ended 31 December 2017 and 31 A31H k2016512 A

December 2016: B1THLHEE=EER
WEH :

Financial

assets

designated

Redeemable at fair value

convertible through

preferred profit or
shares loss Total

HEER

NTEEFN

A B [E] 7] =Kty
BB R TREE #Et
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR+ AR+ AR®Fx

Opening balance #2016 %1 A1 8K

1 January 2016 FEEs 186,667 — 186,667
Change in fair value NEEEH 35,264 35,264
Converted into

ordinary shares Em A TER (221,931) — (221,931)
Closing balance #2016 512H31H

31 December 2016 B R A8 — — —
Addition nNE — 32,934 32,934
Change in fair value (a) N EEE (a) — (263) (263)
Closing balance MR2017E12831H

31 December 2017 B R A8 — 32,671 32,671
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

3.

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’qd)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

(i) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3) (Cont’d)

(@ At 31 December 2017, the Group held the
financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss. Due to one or more of
the significant impacts used in the valuation
of the unlisted equity securities was not on
observable market data the instrument was
included in level 3.

CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ERRORS

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

3.

A% BB B 3R ()
3.3 DVEME(E)

(i) EHEXT JBEHA
EH(FE=E)H 2 -FE
T2 ()

(@) M2017%F12 831
B AEBEEFEE
EERAFEFTAE
BNEREE - B
REARETBRAES
fHERERAN—I8
EE2EE-PN PN
B AERETS
5 ZITATTA
B=E

EXfE - FIBT R KRR

A BHRRFBCAG AR
BEEE  ZEMAFEIHNEER
ER -EEETATERAREES
SRR AR H i -

hEtRAEE T USENG - AR
REL&RREEMEER - BFEHER
REMHNTAY > MZESHTREY
ERERMBTYEBBEERES
MTBEHE -



4. CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ERRORS
(Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables. This estimate
is based on the credit history of its customers and current
market conditions. Management reassesses the provision
at each balance sheet date. Management reassesses the
adequacy of impairment provision on a regular basis by
reviewing the individual account based on past credit history
and any prior knowledge of debtor insolvency or other
credit risk which might not be public information or easily
accessible public information and market volatility that might
bear a significant impact but might not be easily ascertained.

e M BRRME

4. EXfEF - FIETRKARE)

(a)

(b)

FENTRRFE

FENA2EFERAERE
BREPETTEERMET K
AR SHERISETE - ZE (G
SHIERER IR AR RIER
HESHAMEERNBELR
1Bl - EEENBEERER
AHEZE M -

B 5 R EMEWKRERE

FEEEEEEEEEES R
Hitp BUWRRRERE - DE
REZEFHNEECHERRITH
RAEH A - EEERNESEE
EEERMEMGERE EEE
RIBBEEERER TR AR
BERARNEERHEMEER
P A AN (AT BEE E DNBRE R
AR 5 BUS Y AR BUR) KL
kmsREt(RAEREE
KEZBENEALE) BB
EHEEEARF ELRER
BTN -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

4. CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ERRORS

(Cont’d)

(c) Income taxes and deferred tax

There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
be reflected in the income tax expense and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made. In addition, the realisation of future income tax assets
is dependent on the Group’s ability to generate sufficient
taxable income in future years to utilise income tax benefits
and tax loss carry-forwards. Deviations of future profitability
from estimates or in the income tax rate would result in
adjustments to the value of future income tax assets and
liabilities that could have a significant effect on the income
tax expenses.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management determines the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision makers
(“CODM?”) that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group’s
revenue, expenses, assets, liabilities and capital expenditure are
primarily attributable to the manufacture and sales of hot pot soup
flavoring products, hot pot dipping sauce products, Chinese-style
compound condiment products, and self-serving small hotpot
products to external customers, which are considered as one
segment. The Group’s principal market is the PRC and its sales
to overseas customers contributed to less than 10% of the total
revenues. Accordingly, no geographical information is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Breakdown of revenue by product category is as follows:

e M BRRME

WANRSEER (F)
BERRIEDHBWABHANT

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARETT
Revenue ' ON
Hot pot soup flavoring products AHBERE m
— Related parties —BB% A 871,282 583,778
— Third parties —-%= 429,921 288,745
Subtotal Nt 1,301,203 872,523
Hot pot dipping sauce products AIBEERE m
- Related Parties - A 281 104
— Third Parties —%= 93,924 73,856
Subtotal Nt 94,205 73,960
Chinese style compound PRESFARR
condiment products
- Related parties —BAEE S 43,413 18,194
- Third parties —$= 142,860 116,351
Subtotal NET 186,273 134,545
Self-serving small hotpot products BinE K REmR
— Related parties -8 A 104 —
— Third parties —-%= 61,341 —
Subtotal INEF 61,445 —
Others HAth
— Related parties — B 831 3,652
— Third parties —%= 2,264 3,334
Subtotal INEF 3,095 6,986
Total et 1,646,221 1,088,014

Revenue from sales attributable to related parties accounted for
55.6% and 55.7% of the total revenue for the years ended 31

December 2017 and 2016 respectively.

AR L E WAL EZ 2017 &
K20165FE 12 A31 HILEEAW A
2 A% 55.6% & 55.7%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBHRRMETE
LAND USE RIGHTS 6. ITHH{ERE
2017 2016
2017 % 2016
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®FT ARBTT
Opening net book amount w1 A1 BNEVREFE
as at 1 January 31,738 7,330
Additions NE 4,187 24,911
Amortisation charge HHE A (773) (503)
Closing net book amount R12 A31 HHERKREFE
as at 31 December 35,152 31,738
At 31 December Ww12A31H
Cost B 37,429 33,242
Accumulated amortisation =gt £ (2,277) (1,504)
Net book amount BREEE 35,152 31,738

Land use rights represent the net book amount of prepaid
operating lease payment. All the land use rights of the Group are
located in the PRC and are held on leases from 46-50 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e HmRMETE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 7. BEEE
Software
0"
RMB’000
AR®TT
At 31 December 2016 #2016 £12H31H
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 823
Additions nNE 2,352
Amortisation charge e (372)
Closing net book amount FRIREEE 2,803
At December 31, 2016 R2016 12 A31 H
Cost AR 3,237
Accumulated amortisation ZETH#eH (434)
Net book amount BREFE 2,803
Year ended December 31, 2017 BZE2017F12A31 HILEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 2,803
Additions NE 3,260
Disposals HE (30)
Amortisation charge BIEER (851)
Closing net book amount FRIREFEE 5,182
At 31 December 2017 MR2017F12H31H
Cost AR 6,467
Accumulated amortisation HET#s (1,285)
Net book amount BREFE 5,182
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMKHRRMT
8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 8. WX HWBERR
Equipment Vehicles and Construction
Buildings ~ Machinery and other furniture  in process Total
BF BE  RBEREt EHRRE IR @t
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#EFT  ARETR ARETR AREFTRT ARETRT AR#FR
As at 1 January 2016 R2016%1F1H
Cost AR 68,634 76,993 19,381 2,166 — 167,174
Accumulated depreciation Bty (15,573) (19,462) (10,790) (858) — (46,683)
Net book amount REFE 53,061 57,531 8,591 1,308 — 120,491
Year ended 31 December 2016 & £20165£12A31 8
LEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 53,061 57,531 8,591 1,308 — 120,491
Additions NE 2,047 9,580 2,263 127 1,772 15,789
Disposals e - (5,850) (215) (249) - (6,314)
Depregiation charge HEER (2,877) (6,978) (3,575) (395) — (13,825)
Closing net book amount FRREAFE 52,231 54,283 7,064 791 1,772 116,141
As at 31 December 2016 720161231 H
Cost AR 70,681 80,723 21,429 2,044 1,172 176,649
Accumulated depreciation EEg (18,450) (26,440) (14,365) (1,259) - (60,508)
Net book amount REFE 52,231 54,283 7,064 791 1,772 116,141
Year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017%£12831H
LEE
Opening net book amount EAREEE 52,231 54,083 7,064 791 1,772 116,141
Additions 8 5,153 12,251 11,576 1,345 48,807 79,132
Disposals e — (628) (65) 21) — (114)
Depreciation charge HEER (2,967) (7,625) (3,466) (413) = (14,471)
Closing net book amount EXRREFE 54,417 58,281 15,109 1,702 50,579 180,088
As at 31 December 2017 R2017512A31H
Cost AR 75,834 92,346 32,940 3,368 50,579 255,067
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (21,417) (34,065) (17,831) (1,666) = (74,979)
Net book amount REFE 54,417 58,281 15,109 1,702 50,579 180,088
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE B RRMEE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 8. W% WMERREGE)
Depreciation expense has been charged to the consolidated FENXEREREZERERP
statements of comprehensive income as follows: B SIRWT
Year ended 31
HZ12A31HLEE
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 %
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBTT
Cost of sales SHEMAR 13,284 12,044
Administrative expense TR 199 223
Distribution costs FEE T ) 0 #iN 0988 1,558
14,471 13,825
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE I EHRERMEE
9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 9. RENSSHEMIAR
Assets as per balance sheet REEEEEBERNEE
Financial
assets
designated at
fair value
through Loans and
profit or loss receivables Total
BERATLE
sFNIE R BF R
EMEE e FRIE st
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®BTT AR¥ET T AR®ETT
At 31 December 2016 2016412831 H
Trade and other receivables EH5 REMEWIRE — 72,397 72,397
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLEEY — 1,021,999 1,021,999
Total st — 1,094,396 1,094,396
At 31 December 2017 MW2017%£12831H
Trade and other receivables 25 R EHMEWRIE — 135,725 135,725
Financial assets designated BERAFEFA
at fair value through profit or loss BENEemEE 32,671 — 32,671
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY — 1,130,205 1,130,205
Total st 32,671 1,265,930 1,298,601
Liabilities as per balance sheet REBEEEABERNEE
Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
s E ) IWIN
FIBRA H ith
ERaE
RMB’ 000
AR®ETT
At 31 December 2016 72016512831 H
Trade and other payables B REMELTHE 110,345
Total wst 110,345
At 31 December 2017 ®2017E12831H
Trade and other payables B REMETTE 193,302
Total st 193,302
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

10. SUBSIDIARIES 10. MBLAH

(a) The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December (@) 2017F12831 BHBLARA
2017: BT
Particulars of Ownership
Place of incorporation issued share Ownership interest held
and operation and kind  Principal activities capital and interest held by non-controlling
Name of company of legal entity and place of operation debt securities by the Group interests
EMBLRZEHBR 2R BRITREAR FEERE FHEHRERE
AR ETEREY REBEHE EHRSHE HEA RS HE RS
2017 2016 2017 2016
20175 2016%F 20175 2016%F
% % % %
Directly held:
BEfE
Yihai Ltd. British Virgin Islands Investment holding and US$1 100% 100% — -
Limited liability company  consulting in British
Virgin Islands
Yihai Ltd. EEELHBEREMLNT ERBELAHENS ) 100% 100% = —
RERREEH
Indlirectly hela:
BERE
Yihai (China) Food Hong Kong Investment holding and HK$10,000,000 100% 100% — -
Co., Ltd. Limited liability company  consulting in Hong Kong
BE(TE)ERERAR BEEREMLT EEBUSREEREZN 10,000,000 7T 100% 100% = —
Yihai (Shanghai) Food The PRC Sales of hot pot condiment  HK$10,000,000 100% 100% — —
Co., Ltd. Limited liability company  in China
BE(LERAERAT HEERERLT EREIHE N BRR 10,000,000 7 100% 100% = —
Zhengzhou Shuhai The PRC Manufacture and sales of RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - -
Enterprise Co., Ltd. Limited liability company  hot pot condiment in China
(“Zhengzhou Shuhai”)
BHNEEEXERAA  TEERERAF ERELERFENBDH ARH 100% 100% = —
(8MEs)) 1,000,000
Zhengzhou Shuhai The PRC Manufacture and sales of RMB1,000,000 100% 100% — —
Enterprise Co., Ltd. Limited liability company  hot pot condiment in China
(“Zhengzhou shuhai”)
BHNESEXERAA  PEBRERALA EHREEERFEENBRR ARH 100% 100% = -
(k=3 1,000,000 7
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e M RR M

10. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

10. FMIBAR (&)

(a) The following is a list of subsidiaries at 31 December (@) 2017F12831 BHBLARA
2017: (Cont’d) BOTF : (&)
Particulars of Ownership
Place of incorporation issued share Ownership interest held
and operation and kind  Principal activities capital and interest held by non-controlling
Name of company of legal entity and place of operation debt securities by the Group interests
AMBIRSEHER  TEE BRITREAR FEERE FHEHRERE
AR ETEREY REBEHE EHRSHE HEA RS HE RS
2017 2016 2017 2016
20175 2016%F 20175 2016%F
% % % %
Indlirectly held: (Cont'a)
BRRE - (8)
Chengdu Yueyihai The PRC Manufacture and sales of RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. Limited liability company  hot pot condiment in China
REAGEEHEERAR TEERERAAR EREEERHEENBAR ARH 100% 100% = —
1,000,000 70
Yihai Beijing Trading The PRC Sales of hot pot condiment RMB1,000,000 100% 100% - -
Co., Ltd. Limited liability company  in China
BE(LR)BE HEBRERELT EHREHEXBEN ARH 100% 100% = —
BREMLT 1,000,000 7
Yihai (Bazhou) Food The PRC Yet to commence operation  RMB10,000,000 100% 100% — -
Co., Ltd. Limited liability company in China
BEEMNRAERAT PEERERLH HAEREEE AR 100% 100% = —
10,000,000 7t
Yihai (Maanshan) Food ~ The PRC Yet to commence operation  RMB30,000,000 100% — — -
Co., Ltd Limited liability company  in China
BE(RHEL)RRERL TEEREELR HAEREEE ARH 100% - = -
G 30,000,000 7T
Fuhai (Maanshan) Food ~ The PRC Manufacture and sales of RMB2,000,000 100% - — -
Co., Ltd Limited liability company  hot pot condiment in China
Be(ERL)Em HEERERALR EPEEERFENBRR ARH 100% — = —
BRAR 2,000,000
Fuhai (Shanghai) Food ~ The PRC Manufacture and sales of RMB6,000,000 60% — 40% —
Technology Co., Ltd Limited liability company  hot pot condiment in China
BEE(LB)REBE HEBREREAT EHEEERFENBIH ARH 60% - 40% -
BRAR 6,000,000 7T
(b) Non-controlling interests (b) FEZHREL

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2017
amounted to RMB4,420,000 (2016: Nil). No subsidiary has
non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RRM
11. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 11. EEFRBH
() Deferred tax assets (1) EZEHREEE
As at 31 December
W12A31H
2017 2016
2017 &£ 2016 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®F T AR¥T T
Deferred income tax assets: EIEFTSRIEE -
Deferred tax asset to be recovered 12 1# B Uk E#Y
after more than 12 months EILFTEHERE 867 1,019
Deferred tax asset to be recovered 121 8 LAk El#
within 12 months EEFSHERE 9,687 5,565
Total st 10,554 6,584
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mEMBHRRMETE
11. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd) 1. BEFREH )
() Deferred tax assets (Cont’d) () EEREEEGE)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities ERZRERBKEAEEER
during the year ended 2017, without taking into consideration AKEEARREMIERT » REZE
of the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, 017 F L FEMELMEHR
is as follows: EEREBEHUOT :
Unrealised Provision of
profiton  Payrolland trade and
intra- welfare other
Sales Depreciation groupsales  payables receivables
Deferred income rebates differences KERKE  ERHEE EHRHEE  Taxlosses Total
tax assets BRFREHEE HERF  WEER  RER REN ERZESE  HESR @i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARETR  AREFR ARETRT ARETR AREFR ARETR ARETR
As at 1 January 2016 R2016%1F1H 3,866 1,324 - 638 40 — 5,868

Credited/(Charged tothe ~ REFA2EYER
consolidated statements 5T A/ (H1B)
of comprehensive (1,677) (305) 2,501 169 28 - 716

As at 31 December 2016 12016512531 H 2,189 1,019 2,501 807 68 - 6,584

Credited/(Charged) tothe  REEALEMER
consolidated statements 3t A/ (1K)

of comprehensive 1,857 (152) 181 — 19 2,065 3,970
As at 31 December 2017 R 2017£12A31H 4,046 867 2,682 807 87 2,065 10,554
(i) Deferred tax liabilities (i) ELEFREHEE

Cash flow

hedging

W&

RMB’ 000

AR®TT
As at 1 January 2016 20161 A1H (171)
Credited to the comprehensive income sFAZEBA 171
As at 31 December 2016 and 2017 #2016 £ X 2017412831 H —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RRM
INVENTORIES 12. #&
As at 31 December

®12A31H
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 5
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Raw materials FErE 41,519 35,633
Work in progress EHm 6,889 3,247
Finished goods SR 99,209 91,616
Total inventories FEHEE 147,617 130,496

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to RMB909,564,000 (2016:
RMB583,819,000), which included inventory write-down of
RMB279,000 (2016: RMB152,000).

BRAMILTAEERN INEE
A B A R #5909,564,000 7t (2016
F: AR %583819,0007t) HE
¥E 17 & #MUR A K #279,000 7t (2016
F . AR¥152,0007T) °
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e M RR M

13. TRADE RECEIVABLES

13. ESEWIE

As at 31 December

n12H31H
2017 2016
2017 2016 £
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Third parties £=5 21,352 12,866
Related parties (Note 33(d)) B 5 (95T 33(d)) 110,107 54,224
Subtotal N 131,459 67,090
Less: provision for impairment (a) B OBERE () (2 (10)
Trade receivables - net BB EWETE - 5 131,457 67,080

(@ The majority of the Group’s third party sales are conducted
through receiving advances from customers before
delivering the goods to customers, with only few customers
are granted with credit periods ranged from 30 to 90 days.
The related party customers of the Group are granted with
30 days credit period. Ageing analysis based on recognition
date of the gross trade receivables at the respective balance
sheet dates is as follows:

(a) AEERE=TTHEKRIBD U
MEERFEYRINEEF 2
RWHRET > EREEIH
EFEFZHNFI0E0XMN
EEH - XEENEBLSEF
ERHIOXNEER - RiB
HME S EWRENES B R
BEEANRRITOT ¢

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥F T AR¥T T
Within 3 months 3MEB R 131,457 66,878
3 to 6 months 3Z6EA — 202
Total Fakes 131,457 67,080

The carrying amounts of trade receivables above
approximate their fair values.
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13. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

(b)

As at 31 December 2017, no trade receivables were past
due but not impaired (2016: RMB202,000, which related to
a number of independent customers for whom there was no
significant financial difficulty and based on past experience,
the overdue amounts can be recovered). The ageing analysis
of these trade receivables is as follows:

e M BRRME

13. BESEWRIEE)

(b) # Z£2017F12831H- I
EEFEWFIE(2016F © A
F #£202,000 7t ) B @ (B &
BB - ZERIEE R E KB
BRBENETEILIEZFERR
FERBEER  BESEA
WE - ZEE 5 EWEIEN R
BT

As at 31 December

n12H31H
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 5
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETF T AR¥T T
3 to 6 months 3Z6MEA — 202

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B 5 RWSEEREREZE N
T

As at 31 December

®w12H31H
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®FRT ARBTT
As at 1 January W1A1H 10 —
(Reversal of)/Provision B (R, B
for impairment (8) 10
As at 31 December M12A31H 2 10

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in ‘Administrative expenses’
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

RRAL I SRR BB B R IR 1
BEFAGREZHBRERN
MTHFEX] -
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e M RR M

14. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14. FEfFRIERE M EKIIE

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 £
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARETTT
Prepayments BEAERIE
Prepayments for purchase of raw BERMR
materials FARRIE 46,202 24,276
Prepayments for property, ME - BERZE
plant and equipment FERRIE 57,095 8,608
Value added tax recoverable AT U BB 11,499 4,150
Prepayments for legal and EEREEERN
professional fees FEFRIE 8,676 1,933
Prepayments for rental and warehouse & & & FFE{TFUIE 5,667 2,032
Others Hith 358 508
Subtotal NEt 129,497 41,507
Less: Non-current portion W IERENE D (57,095) (8,608)
Current portion REI D 72,402 32,899
Other receivables HiEWARIE
Deposit for utilities NRRERE 3,672 3,271
Advance to employees RHUFEENBE 522 1,595
Related parties (Note 33(d)) BAEE 75 (FIEE 33(d)) — 390
Others Hith 420 323
Less: provision for impairment (a) B OBERE () (346) (261)
Subtotal NEt 4,268 5,318
Total st 76,670 38,217

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.



14. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

15.

(@@ Movements in the provision for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

14, FA{TSIA R H it UL FIR ()

(a) HttEWFRIERERENE
W

As at 31 December

n12H31H
2017 2016
2017 &£ 2016 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥F T ARBT T
As at 1 January Mm1B1H 261 159
Provision for impairment R ERE 85 102
As at 31 December M12H831H 346 261
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15. RERBREEEY
As at 31 December
W12A31H
2017 2016
2017 &£ 2016 &
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBET T AR¥T T
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERSE 1,130,205 1,021,999
As at 31 December
®12H31H
2017 2016
2017 &£ 2016 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥F T AR®T T
RMB AR#E 421,458 195,267
us$ Epv 43,364 80,786
HK$ BT 665,383 745,946
Total @ 1,130,205 1,021,999
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e M RR M

15.

16.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2017, the balance of RMB3,462,000 (2016:
RMB1,749,000) represented deposits held in certain on line
payment platforms.

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are subject
to relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

15.

16.

ReRBeSEWE)

A2017F 128318 &8 AR
#53,462,000 (2016 6 : A R #
1,749,000 T) BEE TRBIRFE
BEENER -

EUARBIENGHRIRERINE
R ZEINETHENRITERRE
TEHPE - RBTHEBFREM
MAERBMNEETRAUKER -

BRATFEHNBHNERAE

As at 31 December
W12A31H

2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Current portion RENER R
Designated (a) FE7E (a) 32,671 —

(@) Balance represented treasury products issued by an unlisted
company with guaranteed principal and expected rate of
return. Such assets are denominated in US$, with maturity
date in September 2018, and are designated as financial
assets are fair value through profit or loss.
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 16. &

OR LOSS (Cont’d) (&

(i) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (i)

During this year, loss of RMB 263,000 represented changes
in fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recorded in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income within ‘Other incomes and gains -
net’ (2016: Nil).

e M BRRME

FEFAEZNEREE

REBEZABRNEHE

F R EB AR®263,000
7T BEAVESABENE
RMEEQATEEE  NEER
&R A E U A R IR E
FRE(ZE—RFHE) -

17. SHARE CAPITAL 17 BA
2017 2016 2017 2016
2017 4 2016 2017 % 2016 &
Shares Shares US$’ 000 US$’ 000
Bz 19 [idn) FEx Ep
Authorised ordinary
shares EEEBER

-On 1January 2016, M 2016%F1H18 -

31 December 2016 2016%12A31H &
and 2017 2017512831 H 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 50,000 50,000

2017 Annual Report



220

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

17. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d) 17. BRA(#)

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares:

ERITRBEEER :

Equivalent

Number of Nominal value nominal value

ordinary of ordinary of ordinary
shares shares shares
LERR
LiEREE LEBEE SEEE
US$ RMB’ 000
£t AR®FT
At 1 January 2016 n2016%£1A1H 488,000,000 4,880 31
Conversion of redeemable B2 13 7] BE 0] ] E5 i
convertible preferred shares (a) BER (a) 54,222 222 542 4
Capitalisation issue (b) BAALRAT () 237,777,778 2,378 16
Issuance of ordinary shares upon PIRBEREIT
Global Offering (c) EER () 260,000,000 2,600 17
Issuance of ordinary shares BELREETER
upon exercise of BITERER ()
over-allotment option (c) 6,900,000 69 —
At 31 December 2016 and 2017 N2016 FE X
2017512A31H 1,046,900,000 10,469 68
(@) Conversion of redeemable convertible preferred shares (a) HEHBRTELERELR

As at 13 July 2016, the redeemable convertible preferred
shares have been automatically converted into 54,222,222
ordinary shares (before the capitalisation issue mentioned in
Note (b) below) upon listing of the Company’s shares on the
Main Board of HKSE.
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17. SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’a)

(b)

(c)

Capitalisation issue

Pursuant to a written resolution of all shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”) passed on 20 June
2016, conditional upon the share premium account of the
Company being credited as a result of the issuance of new
shares pursuant to the Global Offering, the directors of
the Company (the “Director”) were authorised to capitalise
an amount of US$2,378 towards paying up in full at par
of 237,777,778 ordinary shares of US$0.00001 each for
allotment and issue to the persons whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company at the close
of business on the business day before 13 July 2016 in
proportion to their then existing shareholding. Accordingly,
237,777,778 ordinary shares with par value of US$0.00001
each were issued and US$2,378 (equivalent to RMB 15,907)
were credited to share capital.

Issuance of new ordinary shares to public upon Global
Offering

On 13 July 2016, the Company completed its global offering
of its shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited in July 2016 (the “Global Offering”) by
issuing 260,000,000 new ordinary shares with nominal value
of US$0.00001 each at a price of HK$3.3 per share. Since
then, the Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of HKSE.

On 12 August 2016, the Company issued additional
6,900,000 new ordinary shares with nominal value of
US$0.00001 each at a price of HK$3.3 per share pursuant
to the exercise of the over-allotment option of the Global
Offering.

The total gross proceeds from the Global Offering were
approximately HK$ 880,770,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB 759,301,000), of which US$ 2,669 (equivalent to
approximately RMB 17,000) was credited to share capital,
HK$ 880,749,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB
759,284,000) was credited to share premium. The share
issuance costs relating to the Global Offering amounted to
RMB 39,093,000 were recorded in the share premium.

e M BRRME

17. BRAR(E)

(b)

(c)

BT
REAQNTZERR(KRRED
A2016F6 208 BB E
HRER A2 ES(E
EEZEB2378ETTFU
BEARL BUZREEZEH
2237,777,778 Rk = % @ &
0.00001 ETHZER - LME
R2016F7 13 H & XM
HEREFBIIARDTRERAMH
AT RFBEEEBSRELAE
BREBT BASAQITRKR
HRERERBEZIRZEEM
EFEREZ AAEE-
It 237,777,778 RE R EE
0.00001 3£ JT Y& B AR B & 5
TR23T8EXT(HERAR
#15,907 JT) EFFABRARRA °

ERBEARDBALTRTH
ZER

2016 5F7H138 » KA F
EREERI3BITHNEERR
17260,000,0008 & & ™ &
0.00001 E TR E B » B
2016 F7TAEREREBHS
REFERATRZIRBEHR
B ERBE]) - XQBRH
BUHREBBRER L -

MA20165F8 5128 * A& IR
BRENBERREETE K
NEIRERIIBTNEKRE
5h2% 176,900,000 IR =5 IR H B
0.00001 ETHIFZBAR ©

EHRBEMBSRELENA
880,770,000 jT(H E R &
A B #759,301,0007% )

Hi2669X%T(HHERLY A
F #17,00070 ) 5t A BR A&

880,749,000 T (HH E R &
A R #759,284,000 7T ) 5t A
BRAEE - TIRBEFTENR
3817 R A AR %5 39,093,000
TURCEE R R DEE -

2017 Annual Report



222

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

18. SHARES HELD FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME 18. FiEER M IEFERIR K
2017 2016 2017 2016
2017 2016 5 2017 £ 2016 5
Shares Shares RMB’000 RMB’ 000
B% B OARBTFRT AR¥ETR
Shares held for employee Fh{EER#H T2
share scheme E=2=R:0)E0) 77,220,000 77,220,000 5 5

These shares that are held by the Group’s RSU Trustee for the
purpose of issuing shares under the Group’s RSU Scheme (see
Note 20 for further information). Shares issued to employees are
recognised on a first-in-first-out basis.

19. RESERVES

Merger

reserve

Share (Note a)
premium ARE
i (Hzta)
RMB'000  RMB’000

REBMZREROGEMZEART
BRI ARAEEZREIRD
BTEBRITRONAEFESREMW
#£20) - PESRTHRMKEE
JeH AV EERER o

19. &
Share-based
payment
Statutory reserve Hedging
reserve (Note c) reserve

(Note b) R BER (Noted)  Retained

BERE
(KzEb)
RMB’000

ARETR  ARETR ARETR

MAFEE  HEEE  eamings Total
(Hzke) (zkd)  REE @
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETRT ARETR ARETR

As at 1 January 2016 R2016F1518 17,649 (445) 8,843 — 514 115,332 141,893
Profit for the year Emiai - - - - - 186,720 186,720
Shares repurchased BERA 4,161) — - — - (4,161)
Cash flow hedging bkl - - - (514) - (514)
Appropriation to statutory reserves /R - 14,316 - - (14,316) -
Issuance of new ordinary shares BT EER (M3 17(0))

(Note 17(0) 750,284 - - - - — 750084
Capitalisation issue (Note 17(0)) ~ BEA{LE{T (M 17(0) (16) - - - — - (16)
Conversion of redeemable ERTROTEAE LR

convertible preferred shares (& 17(a))

(Note 17(a) 221,997 — —~ — — 19
Share issuance costs (Note 17(c)  BREETAA (M 17() (39,009) - - - - - (39,093)
Share-based payment expense SR AEBENAFER

(Note 20) (MEE20) - - - 102 — - 102
As at 31 December 2016 R2016%E12A31H 955,590 (445) 23,159 102 - 287,736 1,266,142
As at 1 January 2017 R2017E1E18 955,590 (445) 23,159 102 - 287,736 1,266,142
Profit for the year ERER = = = = = 260,670 260,670
Appropriation to statutory reserves EEE 1R = = 30,339 = = (30,339) =
Share-based payment expense  MURGPBEBRNATER

(Note 20) (Mf3E20) - - 8,510 — — 8,510
Dividends paid (Note 29) BT RE (i 29) (33,99) = = = = = (33,99)
As at 31 December 2017 R2017%12 8318 921,594 (445) 53,498 8,612 - 518,067 1,501,326
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19. RESERVES (Cont’d)

(@)

(d)

The merger reserve represented the aggregate difference
between the considerations paid and the carrying amounts
of the acquired Listed Business pursuant to the completion
of the Reorganisation.

The Company’s subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are
required to make appropriations to statutory reserves from
their profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses
carried forward from prior years as determined under the
PRC accounting regulations and before distribution to
equity holders. The percentages to be appropriated to such
statutory reserve are determined according to the relevant
regulations in the PRC, and further appropriation is optional
when the accumulated fund is 50% or more of the registered
capital of the subsidiaries.

In February 2016, the Company adopted Restricted Share
Unit (*“RSU”) Scheme repurchased 53,680,000 ordinary
shares from JLJH YIHAI Ltd., one of the shareholders of the
Company, at a total consideration of US$638,108 (equivalent
to RMB4,166,000). These shares have been held by Vistra
Fiduciary (HK) Limited (“RSU Trustee”) in trust for the benefit
of the participants to the scheme and will be released to
participants upon granting and vesting of each RSU. The
shares under the RSU Scheme have been changed to
77,220,000 after the capitalisation issue as mentioned in
Note 17(b).

The hedging reserve represented the effective portion of the
accumulative change in the fair value of hedging instruments,
net of tax, pending subsequent recognition in profit or loss.

e M BRRME

19. (&)

(@)

BOHRBEEIRERREE
A STRPTULEE £ A ERE
BEENEERE -

2R B R B R A AL B Y
REAARBFRRAP - LI
REPESHRIEENBE
FEAERTTERRUKRRG
REFBEADIRBHE - =5
EERE o BURE R BRI
B2 TR R B R P E
E o MRt ESEMBLRF
AfMEARNS50%sk AL Bl
ARERTFE DR -

R20165F2 8 » XD AR
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e M RR M

20. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Restricted Share Unit Scheme

The Company adopted the RSU Scheme on 24 February 2016
with a duration of 10 years commencing from the adoption date.
The objective of the RSU Scheme is to encourage and retain
selected participants which include directors, employees, officers,
and distributors of the Group, to work with the Group and to
provide additional incentive for them to achieve performance
goals.

The RSU Trustee holds the Company’s shares before they are
vested and transferred to selected participants. As the financial
and operational policies of the Trust are governed by the Group
and Group benefits from the Trust’s activities, the Trust is
consolidated in the Group’s financial statements as a special
purpose entity.

Upon vesting of shares by selected participants (“Restricted
Shares”), the RSU Trustee will release these Restricted Shares.
Restricted Shares will vest gradually after participants complete
a period of service in the Group of 36 months from the date
of grant. The vested shares are transferred to participants at
US$0.0082 per share.

The maximum number of Restricted Shares shall not exceed 5%
of the Company’s share capital in issue from time to time. For
each selected participant, the maximum number of Restricted
Shares granted in aggregate shall not exceed 10,469,000 shares,
being 1% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
adoption date of 24 February 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no shares were
granted under the RSU Scheme. (2016: 9,140,000 shares with fair
value of HK$28,484,000.)

The fair value of Restricted Shares charged to the consolidated
comprehensive income statement was RMB8,510,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB102,000).
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21.

22,

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables were mainly arising from the purchase of
materials. The credit terms of trade payables granted by the
vendors are usually 30 to 90 days. At 31 December 2017, the
ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date is as

follows:

e M BRRME

21. BSEMFRE

ESEMNRETEREBERM
H-BARLENEZESRIBERFEE
HIEE A30EI0K - R20175F 12
B31H ERNBZEAHMNEZEN
RIERBR DT -

As at 31 December

n12H31H
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥F T
Within 3 months 3MEAR 134,084 70,156
3 to 6 months 3MEAZE6MEA 1,582 2,576
6 months to 1 year 6EAZE1EF 916 545
Total st 136,582 73,277

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

22, HittEMTRERESER

As at 31 December

W12H31H
2017 2016
2017 4 2016 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTF T ARET T
Advances from customers BEEBH 30,823 8,746
Other tax payables Hih A HiE 27,490 8,933

Wages, salaries and other TE - HERHEM

employee benefits EEER 25,572 16,019
Sales rebates SHERR 16,182 8,755
Suppliers’ deposits HEmZRE 9,417 3,281
Payables for legal and professional fees FE{EEREXEH 3,420 135
Payables for construction FE{+ Ti2Ek 806 1,176
Related parties (Note 33(d)) B8 5 (M9aE 33(d)) 258 4,045
Listing related expenses EHEBRX — 2,802
Others Hith 1,065 855
Total HBEr 115,033 54,747
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mEMKHRRMT

23. EXPENSES BY NATURE 23. BEEH TR
Expenses included in cost of sales, distribution expenses and STASHERA - LHEBEZRITHE
administrative expenses are analysed as follows: MBS AT

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLLEE

2017 2016
2017 % 2016 F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®FT ARETT
Cost of inventories recognised as BRBEEEMEAE

cost of goods sold NFEE R 909,285 583,667
Employee benefit expenses (Note 24)  {EEFEFIBI X (FizE24) 183,768 122,303
Transportation and related charges EnRkERRH 37,469 19,499
Advertising and other EEREAmEHERE

marketing expenses 30,110 33,116
Non-income taxes and surcharges ISR E R ME 17,729 12,295
Depreciation of property, ¥ BERZETE

plant and equipment (Note 8) (FFEE8) 14,471 13,825
Utilities X ERBRER 14,108 9,854
Rental expenses HERX 14,001 10,753
Warehouse expenses EREA 12,541 7,061
Legal and professional fees EEREFEER 11,674 5,696
Travel and entertainment expenses ERRIBIEEE 9,027 5,825
Auditor’s remuneration A GIEEY)

- Reporting accountant’s services — G ETAIR LT

in relation to listing ALY AR TS — 1,196
- Audit services — ZERE 2,055 1,950
- Non-audit services — B R T 322 330
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH

(Note 7) (FFEET) 851 372
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) * b FARE# S (FizE6) 773 503
Write-down of inventories (Note 12) FEMOR (MiEE12) 279 152
Provision for impairment of receivables  FEUYLFRIE R B B 1%

(Note 13 and 14) (MizE13 % 14) 77 112
Listing related expenses FHiEEER — 10,345
Other expenses Hipaxz 16,905 13,980
Total @ 1,275,445 852,834
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24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 24. BEEFIFEX
2017 2016
2017 £ 2015 %
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®FT ARBTFT
Wages, salaries and bonuses ITE - - HEeREA 183,768 122,303
Five highest paid individuals hEESHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the REBEHZE0I7TFLFEFENA R
Group for the year ended 2017 include 2 (2016:2) directors whose RoHMATEE28EE(2016
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 35. The F:28) EMEAMIEISMAT
aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to the Mo REBEEE(H R
remaining 3 (2016: 3) individuals whose emoluments were the EARXEESTIZREHFEM AL
highest in the Group for the years are as follows: (2016 F : 3B )WENES T :
2017 2016
2017 % 20155
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TRT ARBT T
Wages, salaries and bonuses I8 - -HEeRIELA 2,992 2,098
The emoluments fell within the following bands: ENALLTEE :
Number of individuals
AE
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 &
Emolument bands (in HK$) <& =5 E (B T)
Nil - HK$1,000,000 2% 1,000,000 % T — 3
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000 & T &
1,500,000 & JT 3 —
None of the above employees were paid by the Group as ANEBIIERE L TES ZHEIE
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a Ve B 1 N A S B2 B R s i A S £
compensation for loss of office. No retirement benefits were paid BEAYERRIESBBEE - Ll
to or receivable by any of the above employees. (AR S 485 48 i B =% FE Uk BGR R3S

Ao
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e M RR M

25. OTHER INCOMES AND GAINS - NET

25. HAit A\ RULEFHE

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31HLLEE

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 £
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARETTT
Government grants BT Bh 23,008 12,523
Investment income from financial assets € R&E EMNRE R 5,241 —
Sales of scrap materials EERIE & 887 517
Change in fair value of BATETT ABRN
financial instruments at EREEN AT ERE
fair value through profit or loss (263) —
Loss on disposal of property, plant BBV  WE - &1E
and equipment and intangible assets R EFEEMNEE (284) (780)
Consulting service income SRS ON — 7,547
Others (a) Hb (a) 15,159 1,674
Total other incomes and gains - net Hw AR W &= FEa 4858 43,748 21,481

(@  Included an amount of RMB14 million which represented a reward
provided by an independent third party, the authorised operator as
approved by the local government for planning and construction
of an industrial park in the PRC, in which the Company has
incorporated an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary in 2015.
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26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RRM
FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 26. BEWRNEKRA
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEEE
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T AR¥F T
Finance Income mMEUWA
- Foreign exchange gains —ERUWA = 32,759
— Interest income — R B A 6,651 933
Finance Costs BhE KA
- Foreign exchange losses —EREBX (52,095) —
Finance (cost)/income - net RVE (BAR), WA — 558 (45,444) 33,692
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 27. FiRHREX

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ12A31HILEE

2017 2016

2017 £ 2016

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR¥F T ARETT

Current income tax BNHA AT 1881 111,960 69,085
Deferred tax credit (Note 11) EERIRIE % (e 11) (3,970) (716)
Income tax expense FriS®imx 107,990 68,369
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

27.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Cayman Islands income tax

The Company was incorporated in Cayman lIslands as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is
exempted from payment of local income tax.

Hong Kong income tax

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as there are no
estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong during the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)

The income tax provision of the Group in respect of
operations in the PRC has been calculated at the tax rate
of 25% on the estimated assessable profits for the years
end 31 December 2017 and 2016, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

PRC withholding tax (“WHT”)

According the applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profit derived after 1 January 2008
are generally subject to a 10% WHT. If a foreign investor
incorporated in Hong Kong meets the conditions and
requirements under the double taxation treaty arrangement
entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant
withholding tax rate will be 5%.

According to a shareholder’s resolution of the immediate
holding company of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group dated
31 December 2017, the retained earnings of the Group’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC as at 31 December
2017 will not be distributed in the foreseeable future. As a
result, no deferred tax liability was recognised.
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27. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

(d)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PRC withholding tax (“WHT”) (Cont’d)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the statutory tax

rate as follows:

e M BRRME

27. FifEBiF< (&)

(d) FPEERNB(EHOHR]) (&)
B R BRRB AR R B R
BRHRE R RE A (VWK
HUEFRWT -

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31HLLEE

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥EF T ARETT
Profit before income tax MRETEBBIRR 369,080 255,089
Tax calculated at domestic tax REBERERN SR
rates applicable to profits in Bl B R FTENFIE
the respective countries 108,408 66,703
Expenses not deductible RAINFRE
for tax purposes 672 1,666
Income not subject to tax BERBUA (1,090) —
Taxation charge BB H 107,990 68,369
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share for each of the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 are calculated by dividing
the profit of the Group attributable to the owners of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue less shares held for RSU Scheme during the
year.

28. ERREF

(a)

BREFEF

B £2017F Kk2016%F 124
SIHLEEEERFNERER
BRI DRADBEE AESL
AEBEBRBRUBBTEER
DNREE 9 BUR R Z IR FIAR 1D EE
NETBIFTIFIRDETE -

Year ended 31 December

HZE12831ALEE

2017 2016
2017 % 2016 F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®FT ARET T
Profit attributable to owners RAEHEE AEML
of the Company (RMB’ 000) A (ARETT) 260,670 186,720
Weighted average number 2RITEBERNME
of ordinary shares in issue FIIRUR E R PR
less shares held for BRHOEMFTERFEN
RSU Scheme (thousands) B9 (FA%) 969,680 797,220
Basic earnings per share BRERBA(ARED)
(RMB cents) 26.9 234
(b) BREEERF

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The restricted share granted and assumed vested
(“Restricted Shares”) are the only dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the year ended 31 December 2017. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the RCPS as well as
Restricted Shares were the dilutive potential ordinary shares.
They were anti-dilutive and the dilutive earnings per share as
the same as basic earnings per share.

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.

SREEEFEBEBRME
BrESESBEREGCER  #
mMARCBTEERMESE
HETESEH - BZE2017F
12A3MBALEE 2RER
BRFBZREIIMS ([ZR
B ) B — BT EEE
R B £20165F128318
IEEE - AL ERE LR
RERROABELBELE
- HEARBEESRES
BRSEGRERBRHER -



28. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont’ad)

Diluted earnings per share (Cont’d)

e M BRRME

28. ERREF

(b)

BREERF(E)

Year ended 31 December

BEZ12A31HLEEE

2017 2016
2017 % 2016
Earnings &R —
Profit attributable to owners RARHEE AEEER
of the Company (RMB’ 000) (AR®TT) 260,670 186,720
AJEEE AT SR E KR
Adjustment for fair value loss AHEEBENRE
of RCPS (RMB’ 000) (a) (AR#ETT) () — 35,264
Profit used to determine RAUEESREEET
diluted earnings per share FER(AREFT)
(RMB’ 000) 260,670 221,084
Weighted average number ARTTEBRERER
of ordinary shares in issue WE RITEBRINE
for basic earnings per share FHE(TR)
(thousands) 969,680 797,220
Adjustments for: PUTHBEELFE :
— Assumed conversion — R E% TJ BB 2] AT B4
of RCPS (thousands) BERDER(TR) — 41,458
- Restricted Shares - EREREBREHEE
granted and assumed Y 3 PRI i 19 (F %)
vested (thousands) 5,291 9
Weighted average number AR ESREEET
of ordinary shares for NEBRINEFHH(TR)
diluted earnings per
share (thousands) 974,971 838,687
Diluted earnings per BREERA(ARE D)
share (RMB cent) 26.7 23.4

(@ On 14 December 2015, the Company issued 54,222,222
shares of Series A preferred shares with redemption and
conversion features (“RCPS”). On 13 July 2016, all RCPS

were automatically converted into ordinary shares.

(@ 2015%F12814B> &
N T B 1754,222,222 % T]
BOABERARSELR
([T A EnE kR D) -
A20165F7H13B fT B
T EE R AT ERE LR BB
BAEZBER -

2017 Annual Report



234

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RR M

29,

30.

DIVIDENDS

The total dividends paid in 2017 amounted to RMB36,642,000 or
RMB3.5671 cents per share (2016: Nil), of which RMB2,646,000
were paid to the shares held by the RSU Trustee.

Pursuant to resolution passed on 21 March 2018, the board
of directors of the Company proposed a final dividend of
RMB4.97985 cents per ordinary share of the Company, amounting
to RMB52.134 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 from
the Company’s retain earnings account. The final dividend is to be
proposed for approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting to be held on 27 April 2018.

The aggregate amounts of the dividends paid during 2017 have
been disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.
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e M BRRME

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH 31. FERERERM:E

FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash flows (@) BREIEHANGR EEE AR
used in operations: EREFHENERENT ¢
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HILEEE
2017 2016
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARETT
Profit before income tax BRFTSH AR T 369,080 255,089
Adjustments for: FUTHBEELFE :
Change in fair value of financial BARETABEN

instruments at fair value through &R T ENAFEEH

profit or loss 263 —
Changing in fair value of RCPS T] BE B ] B AR SR AR

N EEE — 35,264
Share-based payment AR AERMN R

expense (Note 20) B8 3% (FfEE 20) 8,510 102
Depreciation of property, ¥ BERREBITE

plant and equipment (Note 8) (FFEES) 14,471 13,825
Amortisation of land use rights + ih {5 AR EE (FIEE6)

(Note 6) 773 503
Amortisation of intangible assets R & E= 8 (ML 7)

(Note 7) 851 372
Losses on disposal of property, BEEYE  BMEKRREN

plant and equipment (Note 25) B (KMizE25) 284 780
Provision for impairment of R IE R B

receivables (Note 13 and 14) (F¥zE13 % 14) 77 112
Write-down of inventories WEEFE (MEE12)

(Note 12) 279 152
Finance cost/(income) RERA,(BA) 45,680 (33,692)
Investment income from ERMEENREBRA

financial assets (5,241) -
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
Inventories FE (17,400) (27,894)
Trade and other receivables and  E 5 R EfhfEINFRIE

prepayments MBS FIE (102,907) 9,896
Trade and other payables and ESREMENRE

accruals MESTEA 123,961 28,733
Cash generated from operations K& Fr51E % 438,681 283,242
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH

FLOWS (Cont’d)

(b)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

and intangible assets comprise:

31. HREREMERMEE)

(b) HEMXE BERRBAER
HERE !

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2017 2016
2017 £ 2016
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT T
Net book amount - property, plant BREEE — Y% - BE
and equipment and intangible REBUREREE
assets (Note 7 and 8) (FizE7 % 8) 744 6,314
Loss on disposal of property, BEEYX BMEREE
plant and equipment and DR EREENER
intangible assets (Note 25) (Ff5E25) (284) (780)
Proceeds from disposal of property, EE¥)% - &=
plant and equipment and REHEUREBREEE
intangible assets FRi8FkIE 460 5,534
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32. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for the year end but not yet

incurred is as follow:

e M BRRME

32, KiE

(a)

BRI

FREFTNEHRELENER
FXaT :

As at 31 December

Ww12A381H
2017 2016
2017 2016 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBT
Property, plant and equipment M - MERZE 40,186 100,002
Non-cancellable operating leases (b) FAHBEKCEEE

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and retail
stores under non-cancellable operating leases expiring
within two to eight years. The leases have varying terms,
escalation clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms
of the leases are renegotiated. Excess warehouse space is
sub-let to third parties also under non-cancellable operating

REERBTURHEEEHEE
HEZERLE  REREE
JEH RMENFEIH - Z5E
HERETENFH - B8
RIFREERE - EERN -
EFHENGE - SHREER

leases. BT RETTHESEHER
HFE=FH -
As at 31 December
®12H31H
2017 2016
2017 &£ 2016 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®ETF T AR¥T T
Within 1 year —F R 4,416 3,013
Between 1 to 5 years —ZHE™ 2,455 3,013
6,871 6,026
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Name and relationship with related parties:

Names of the related parties

AR 77 B8

33. FBARS

(a) BEREEBTNEE:

Nature of relationship

Sichuan Haidilao and its subsidiaries

IR E R EKE AR

HAI DI LAO HOLDINGS PTE. LTD. and its subsidiaries
(“Singapore Haidilao Group”)

HAI DI LAO HOLDINGS PTE. LTD.
REME AR (NSRS SRR ])

Shuhai (Beijing) Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.
(“Shuhai Supply Chain”)

FB(1tR)HEREEFAREET QR ([ BEAERE]

Youdingyou (Beijing) Food Ltd. (“Youdingyou”)

tHZEREEHEEGRAT(ERE)

Sichuan Haidilao Group and Singapore Haidilao Group are

collectively referred to as Haidilao Group.

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

Sales and purchases of goods and services

Companies beneficially owned
by the Ultimate Shareholders
HBERRREDEBNDF
Companies beneficially owned
by the Ultimate Shareholders
HRARREGEENRE

Company beneficially owned
by the Ultimate Shareholders

HBERRREDEBN DT

Company beneficially owned
by the Ultimate Shareholders
BRBRREREBNAT

IO e 165 52 B I ¥ 3R TR

BEEGEAEREEER -
T AR 5 ERARE 5 1T -

HERIEER R R

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HLEE

2017 2016

2017 £ 2016 &

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®TT ARET T

Sales of goods to related parties &) BB S5 E M 915,911 605,728
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d) 33. BEAR5(E)
(b) Warehouse and rental expenses (b) EERESEMRX

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2017 2016

2017 % 2016

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AREETF T ARMET 7

Warehouse expenses BEERX 4,308 3,468

Rental expenses HERX 2,869 2,917
All the Transactions with related parties were conducted in B S T E R S TR IEAR
accordance with the terms of contracts entered into between EENBBMAE BT LHEY

the Group and the related parties. &FRELT ©
(c) Key management compensation (c) EEEHEEEN

Year ended 31 December
HZE12A31HLEE

2017 2016
2017 4 2016 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTF T ARET T
Salaries, allowance e EMREMER
and other benefits 4,422 2,917
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Year-end balances with related parties were as follows:

33. BABKAR 5 (E)

(d)

BRI N ERGHROT ¢

As at 31 December

W12A31H
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTF T ARBT T
Assets EE
Trade receivables B ZEWFIE 110,107 54,224
Other receivables Ht R IR — 390
Total 5t 110,107 54,614
As at 31 December
W12A31H
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 &
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TT ARET T
Liabilities =N
Trade payables g S EAFIE 218 —
Other payables and accrual HAih A FIE R BT E 258 4,045
Total e 476 4,045

All the balances with related parties are unsecured, bear no
interest and short-term in nature.

Free trademark license agreement

On 1 December 2015, the Group entered into two trademark
license agreements with Sichuan Haidilao in respect of
certain trademarks which had been registered by the name
of Sichuan Haidilao in the PRC and certain trademarks which
are in the process of registration by Sichuan Haidilao in the
PRC (collectively, the “Trademark License Agreements”),
pursuant to which Sichuan Haidilao agreed to license such
trademarks for the Group to use in connection with the
Group’s operations on an exclusive and royalty-free basis
for a perpetual term commencing from 1 January 2007 to
the extent permissible under the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE”), relevant laws
and regulations.

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.

(e)

EEEARE S MV PT B BRI MEE T
BRERR  RERER -

REBRET IR

M2015F1281H & &
B IEEEHD) SRS
CSEFEUN) SRR EET
MEvE T EEMER TR
EMAVE TR LM R
HFaHEGB EEr T
DBl mIEREREE
RBERRGRSREERERE
A AEEEE BB LT
FAREREEERATNE
MTREEKEEKAEHZ
£mEiZ 520071 B18H
;zé\ °



COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

34. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

e M BRRME

34. ARREEABRRHEFED

ARAFEERER

As at 31 December

n12H31H
2017 2016
2017 £ 2016 F
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR#ET T ARET T
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBATNERE 1,130,000 1,130,000
Current assets MEEE
Other receivables =R AR 165,408 139,508
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEEY 700,426 819,096
Total current assets REEERE 865,834 958,604
Total assets BEHE 1,995,834 2,088,604
Equity W=
Equity attributable to equity ARBEFIFEA
holders of the Company JE 1 #E 25
Share capital &N 68 68
Shares held for employee share scheme 1E& R 5HElFE R 17 (5) (5)
Reserves it 1,992,436 2,087,927
Total equity B a5E 1,992,499 2,087,990
Liabilities af&
Current liabilities REAaE
Other payables HAthpE(SFIE 3,335 614
Total liabilities =ik 3,335 614
Total equity and liabilities EERaEEHR 1,995,834 2,088,604

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 21 March 2018 and was signed on its behalf

DANG CHUNXIANG
BEE
Director

EFE

RKABEEABBRCEN2018F3H21H
EEEeitE YICREEE-

SUN SHENGFENG

B
Director

EE
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e M RR M

34. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 4. APRFAEEEBRRHESED

COMPANY (Cont’d) (#&)
Reserve movement of the Company RATRFEES
Retained
Share-based earnings/
Share payment Capital (Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses) Total
DTy
-3 ReERw/
BiyiaE fRGE ExfE  (REER) @t

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR  ARETR AR%TRT AR%®TR ARETR

As at 1 January 2016 20161 A1 8 17,649 — 1,130,000 1,404 1,149,053
Profit for the year EREF — — — 831 831
Issuance of new ordinary shares BT B (K15 17(c))

(Note 17(c) 750,284 - - — 759284
Capitalisation issue (Note 17(b) B2k 847 (K 17(0)) (16) — — (16)
Share issuance costs BRABITHA (39,099) — — — (39,093)
Conversion of Redeemable ERTERTERELR

convertible preferred shares 221,927 — — — 221,927
Share-based payment expense MR BER AT

(Note 20) (MizE20) — 102 — — 102
Shares repurchased BERH (4,161) — — — (4,161)
As at 31 December 2016 201612310 955,590 102 1,130,000 2,235 2,087,927
As at 1 January 2017 R2017F1H1H 955,590 102 1,130,000 2,235 2,087,927
Loss for the year FRER = = = (67,359) (67,359)
Share-based payment expense MR AERA 7B % (M 20)

(Note 20) = 8,510 - ~ 8,510
Dividends declared/paid B/ EHRE (36,642) = = = (36,642)
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F12 8318 918,948 8,612 1,130,000 (65,124) 1,992,436
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35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (a)
During the year end 31 December 2017, there were no

director fees paid/payable. The remuneration of the directors

for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is set out

below:

e M BRRME

35. EEFmRER

EERFETHRAEME

B E2017F 128318 1t &
B #BEef[ ENESH
- EEREHE2017E R
2016512 A 31 HILFEMF
EManT :

Salaries, bonus,

allowance and benefits
e e EMRER

2017 2016
2017 % 2016
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
Name e ARBTT ARET T
Executive directors BITES
Ms. Dang Chunxiang (&%) EFFuL 1,285 785
Mr. Sun Shengfeng (&5 1£) BB E % 1,033 749
Non-executive directors EHITES
Mr. Gou Yiqun (BjEkE¥) BBE AL — —
Mr. Zhang Yong (3R E) REBEAE — —
Mr. Shi Yonghong (#&7K %) Mk % e — —
Mr. Pan Di (;&i#) BEEE — —
Independent BIEHITES
non-executive Directors
Mr. Yau Ka Chi (BBZRE3) (e) ERZRES 4 (e) 173 86
Mr. Qian Mingxing ($2B5 £) (e) EEHE LA (o) 173 86
Ms. Ye Shujun (EHE) (e) BEHEL L (o) 173 86
Chief executives FETHAER
Mr. Du Zhuang (#:At) AT k4 849 607
Mr. Xu Hai (&58§) weEE 736 518
4,422 2,917
Ms. Dang Chunxiang and Mr. Sun Shengfeng were EEFLTREBIESERA

appointed as executive directors on 7 March 2016. Mr. Gou
Yiqun, Mr. Zhang Yong, Mr. Shi Yonghong and Mr. Pan
Di were appointed as non-executive directors on 7 March
2016. Mr. Yau Ka Chi, Mr. Qian Mingxing, Ms. Ye Shujun
were appointed as independent non-executive directors on
20 June 2016.Mr. Du Zhuang and Mr. Xu Hai were appointed
as chief executive on 7 March 2016.

2016 F3 A7 HEZEEHIT
BEE - AEBBELLE - REXL
4+ MEKELE  RBEEE
N2016FE3 A7 REZFAE
HITES - BRBGLE - 885
EEEREFGE L 1TR2016
FOHA0REZERBILHF
HITES - At EERBIEE
£R2016F3A7THEZMES
FEITHAE -
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35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(b)

No directors of the Company waived any emoluments
and no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office as
director.

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking.

No payment was made to directors as compensation for the
early termination of the appointment during the year ended
31 December 2017.

No payment was made to the former employer of directors
for making available the services of them as a director of the
Company.

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour
of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Save for the disclosure in the connected transactions section
of the prospectus and the circular of the Company dated
18 October 2017, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

fE 5 B % 42 B B PR 2 B Yihai International Holding Ltd.

35. EEFHRERE)

(b)

BN BRI EB R E WA
e BAREENEEARAQT
FREEXFEAME - A
WEMAREBERIMALRE
EENEBRSIEALREESRH
EEE -

BEESHREFEARLAR
HBARAEBEENE MR
75 177 U ER = BB W B AT SR K AR
Ao

B E2017F128318 I+ &
B AATBWEFRIRF L IE
BB ESEEREANRIESR
tg“:o

AABIEFESREESR
e H AT EE B B R4
;e

B EZ2017%F 128318 It &F

B BELES BRESH
ZEEEAERREHERS

BREANEN  EERRE A
%5 -

BRIEREEBERZRAQF
H 8 £20175 108188 #
BRAMNEESEN  RAAF
HESET I REZE 2017
F12A31 B FELEREH
B E2017F12A8318 It &
ERFERTE BEES
BEEAEZ(ERREEY
EiZ)HE SEEXEKER
WEMEARS ZHREE
28 o
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